
 

 
Agenda compiled by: 
Guy Close 
Governance Services Unit 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
Tel: 24 74356 

 
 
 

 
Area Manager:  
Dave Richmond 
Tel: 24 75536 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 

 

 

 

SOUTH (OUTER) AREA COMMITTEE 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Drighlington Meeting Hall, Drighlington Library, Moorland Road, 

Drighlington, BD11 1JZ 
On Monday, 8th December, 2008 at 4.00 pm  

 
 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
 

J Dunn - Ardsley and Robin Hood 
L Mulherin - Ardsley and Robin Hood 
K Renshaw - Ardsley and Robin Hood 

 
R Finnigan - Morley North 
B Gettings - Morley North 
T Leadley - Morley North 

 
C Beverley - Morley South 
J Elliott - Morley South 
T Grayshon - Morley South 

 
S Golton - Rothwell 
S Smith - Rothwell 
D Wilson - Rothwell 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 
 

A BRIEF EXPLANATION OF 
COUNCIL FUNCTIONS AND EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS 

 
 
There are certain functions that are defined by regulations which can only be carried out at 
a meeting of the Full Council or under a Scheme of Delegation approved by the Full 
Council.  Everything else is an Executive Function and, therefore, is carried out by the 
Council’s Executive Board or under a Scheme of Delegation agreed by the Executive 
Board. 
 
The Area Committee has some functions which are delegated from full Council and some 
Functions which are delegated from the Executive Board.  Both functions are kept 
separately in order to make it clear where the authority has come from so that if there are 
decisions that the Area Committee decides not to make they know which body the 
decision should be referred back to. 
 
 



 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25 of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded.) 
 
(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, written 
notice of an appeal must be received by the Chief 
Democratic Services Officer at least 24 hours 
before the meeting.) 
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:- 

 
 No exempt items or information have 

been identified on this agenda. 
 

 



 

 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration. 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes.) 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
 
To declare any personal/prejudicial interests for the 
purpose of Section 81(3) of the Local Government 
Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of the Members 
Code of Conduct. 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES - 20TH OCTOBER 2008 
 
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on 20th October 2008. 
 

1 - 4 

7   
 

  OPEN FORUM 
 
In accordance with Paragraphs 6.24 and 6.25 of 
the Area Committee Procedure Rules, at the 
discretion of the Chair a period of up to 10 minutes 
may be allocated at each ordinary meeting for 
members of the public to make representations or 
to ask questions on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Area Committee.  This period of 
time may be extended at the discretion of the 
Chair.   No member of the public shall speak for 
more than three minutes in the Open Forum, 
except by permission of the Chair. 
 
(10 mins discussion) 
 

 



 

 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

8   
 

All Wards  LEEDS COLLEGES MERGER - CONSULTATION 
 
To receive and consider a report from the Director 
of Environment and Neighbourhoods on the future 
delivery of post 16 and adult learning by the new 
merged College. 
 
(Council Function) 
(5 mins presentation / 5 mins discussion) 
 

5 - 6 

9   
 

All Wards  THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S PLAN 
(2009-2014) AND THE DEVELOPMENT OF 
LOCAL PRIORITIES FOR ACTION 
 
To receive and consider a report from the Director 
of Children’s Services, which outlines the draft city-
wide Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP) 
framework and priorities. 
 
(Council Function) 
(5 mins presentation / 5 mins discussion) 
 

7 - 10 

10   
 

All Wards  REVISED CHILDREN’S SERVICES 
ARRANGEMENTS FOR MORE EFFECTIVE 
LOCALITY WORKING WITH FAMILIES 
 
To receive and consider a report from the Director 
of Children’s Services, which provides the Area 
Committee with an overview of the evolution of 
locality children’s trust arrangements. 
 
(Council Function) 
(5 mins presentation / 10 mins discussion) 
 

11 - 
28 

11   
 

Ardsley and 
Robin Hood; 
Morley North; 
Morley South; 
Rothwell; 

 COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT PLAN 
 
To receive and consider a report from the Director 
of Environment and Neighbourhoods, which 
outlines the community engagement plan for the 
outer south area of Leeds. 
 
(Executive Function) 
(5 mins presentation / 10 mins discussion) 
 

29 - 
36 



 

 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

12   
 

Ardsley and 
Robin Hood 

 OPERATION CHAMPION 
 
To receive and consider a report from the Director 
of Environment and Neighbourhoods, which 
provides an update on the recent Outer South 
Operation Champion. 
 
(Executive Function) 
(5 mins presentation /  5 mins discussion) 
 

37 - 
40 

13   
 

Ardsley and 
Robin Hood; 
Morley North; 
Morley South; 
Rothwell; 

 OUTER SOUTH AREA COMMITTEE WELL-
BEING BUDGET REPORT 
 
To receive and consider a report from the Director 
of Environment and Neighbourhoods, which 
updates Members on both the capital and revenue 
elements of the Committee’s Well-being budget, 
advises Members of the Small Grants approved 
since the last meeting and invites Members to 
determine the capital and revenue proposals 
detailed within the report. 
 
(Executive Function) 
(5 mins presentation / 5 mins discussion) 
 

41 - 
72 

14   
 

Ardsley and 
Robin Hood; 
Morley North; 
Morley South; 
Rothwell; 

 AREA MANAGER'S REPORT 
 
To receive and consider a report from the Director 
of Environment and Neighbourhoods, which 
provides Members with an overview of the range of 
activities currently taking place within the Outer 
South area of Leeds. 
 
(Executive Function) 
(5 mins presentation / 5 mins discussion) 
 

73 - 
100 

15   
 

  DATES, TIMES AND VENUES OF FUTURE 
MEETINGS 
 
Monday 9th February, 2009 at 4.00 pm 
(Venue – Blackburn Hall, Commercial Street, 
Rothwell, LS26 0AW) 
 
Monday 30th March, 2009 at 4.00 pm 
(Venue – East Ardsley Community Centre, Main 
Street, East Ardsley,  
WF3 2AP) 
 

 



 

 

Item 
No 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

   MAP OF TODAY'S VENUE 
 
Drighlington Meeting Hall, Drighlington Library, 
Moorland Road, Drighlington, BD11 1JZ 
 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 8th December, 2008 

 

SOUTH (OUTER) AREA COMMITTEE 
 

MONDAY, 20TH OCTOBER, 2008 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor T Grayshon in the Chair 

 Councillors C Beverley, J Dunn, J Elliott, 
R Finnigan, S Golton, T Leadley, 
L Mulherin, K Renshaw, S Smith and 
D Wilson 

 
29 Chair's Opening Remarks  
 

The Chair welcomed all in attendance to the October meeting of the South 
(Outer) Area Committee. 
 

30 Declaration of Interests  
 

Agenda Item 8 – ‘Children and Young People Activities in Outer South 
2009/10’ (Minute No. 34 refers). 
 
Councillor Grayshon declared a personal interest in this item, due to being a 
Member of Lewisham Park Centre and Youth Club Management Committees. 
 
Councillor Leadley declared a personal interest in this item, due to being 
Deputy Chairman and Secretary of Lewisham Park Centre and Youth Club 
Management Committees. 
 
Agenda Item 10 – ‘Area Manager’s Report’ (Minute No. 36 refers). 
 
Councillor Elliott declared a personal interest in relation to 11.0 of the report, 
due to being a Member of Morley Literature Festival.  She also declared a 
personal interest in relation to 13.0 of the report, due to being a Member of 
the Morley and Rothwell Town Centre Management Board. 
 
Councillor Finnigan declared a personal interest in relation to 3.0 of the report, 
due to being a Member of Gildersome Action Group.  He also declared a 
personal interest in relation to 11.0 of the report, due to being a Member of 
Morley Literature Festival. 
 
Councillor Leadley declared a personal interest in relation 3.0 of the report, 
due to being a Member of Gildersome Action Group. 
 
A further declaration of interest was made at a later point in the meeting 
(Minute No. 34 refers). 
 

31 Apologies for Absence  
 

Apologies for absence were submitted by Councillor Gettings and Dave 
Richmond (Area Management). 

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 8th December, 2008 

 

 
32 Minutes - 1st September 2008  
 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 1st September, 2008 
be confirmed as a correct record. 
 

33 Open Forum  
 

In accordance with paragraphs 6.24 and 6.25 of the Area Committee 
Procedure Rules, the Chairman allowed a period of up to 10 minutes for 
members of the public to make representations or to ask questions on matters 
within the terms of reference of the Area Committee.  On this occasion, there 
were no matters raised under this item by members of the public. 
 

34 Children and Young People Activities in Outer South 2009/10  
 

The Director of Education Leeds submitted a report, which outlined the 
programme of activities for children and young people across the Outer South 
area of Leeds in 2009/10.   
 
Tom O’Donovan, Area Management Officer, presented the report and 
responded to Members’ questions and comments. 
 
In brief summary, the main highlighted points were:- 
 

• The Area Committee welcomed the programme of activities planned for 
2009/10 across the Outer South area of Leeds.  In particular, Members 
welcomed the involvement of Parish Councils, voluntary and community 
organisations. 

• Members requested to be kept informed of activities that were taking 
place.  It was advised that further information would be reported to future Area 
Committee meetings. 

•  Another Member highlighted the importance of safeguards being in place 
to ensure that resources were spent wisely. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
(a)  That the report be noted; 
(b)  That the Area Committee approves £35,000 revenue funding from the 
2009/10 Well-being Budget, subject to annual approval of the 2009/10 Well-
being revenue budget from the Executive Board; and 
(c)  That the Area Committee receives further information on the programme 
of activities to be funded. 
 
(Councillor Mulherin arrived at 4.05 pm and Councillor Renshaw at 4.10 pm, 
during the consideration of this item). 
 
(Councillor Mulherin declared a personal interest in this item, due to being 
Chair of Rothwell Cluster of Extended Services). 
 

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 8th December, 2008 

 

35 Outer South Area Committee Well-being Budget Report  
 

The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report, which 
updated Members on both the capital and revenue elements of the 
Committee’s Well-being budget and advised the Committee of the Small 
Grants approved since the last meeting. 
 
One Member referred to Appendix 2 of the report, Capital Projects Agreed to 
Date, and pointed out that Denshaw Grove fell within the Morley South ward, 
not Morley North.  Subject to this amendment it was 
 
RESOLVED – That the report and information appended to the report, which 
includes the available balance of the Area Committee’s revenue and capital 
Well-being budgets, and the Small Grant proposals approved since the last 
meeting, be noted. 
 

36 Area Manager's Report  
 

The Committee considered a report from the Director of Environment and 
Neighbourhoods, which updated Members on the work of the Area 
Management Team since the last meeting. 
  
The following information was appended to the report:- 
 

• Appendix 1 – Table of the thematic sub-partnerships and Outer South 
Area Committee Member link; 

• Appendix 2 – Photographs of recycling sites in Morley and Rothwell; 
and 

• Appendix 3 – Queensway Car Park explanatory leaflet. 
 
Tom O’Donovan, Area Management Officer, presented the report and 
responded to Members’ questions and comments. 
 
In brief summary, the following points were discussed:- 
 

• Members considered appointments to the remaining thematic sub-
Partnerships.  Councillor Mulherin expressed an interest to act as ‘champion’ 
and Elected Member link on Learning and Thriving Neighbourhoods 
(worklessness) – Employment, Education, Training, Partnership. 

• A brief update on Conservation Audits was provided.  It was reported that 
public consultation on the draft appraisal was imminent. 

• In relation to operation of the Glutton Cleansing Machine, it was reported 
that feedback from the local community had been positive.  One Member 
suggested operating the Glutton Cleansing Machine in Thorp Village. 

• In response to a query at the previous Area Committee meeting, the Area 
Management Officer confirmed that the location list for additional litterbin 
allocation was complete. 

• It was reported that the new arrangements for recycling in Morley and 
Rothwell were working well.  One Member reported that there had been a 

Page 3



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 8th December, 2008 

 

small number of complaints regarding cars parking too close to the recycling 
facilities, which made access difficult.  

• An update on the Morley Literature Festival was provided to the Area 
Committee.  It was reported that the events had been extremely well 
attended.  Members wished to place on record their thanks to Jill Morris, 
Paula Truman, Tom O’Donovan and Sarah Henderson. 

• In relation to the Robin Hood Dispersal Order, Tom O’Donovan, Area 
Management Officer, informed the Board that he had received a map of the 
area, which could be e-mailed to Members upon request.  It was reported that 
further information about the dispersal order could be obtained from PC Angie 
Dennison.  One Member stated that dispersal orders were not the answer and 
more facilities for young people were needed.  It was reported that 
discussions between the Youth Service and the police had taken place to 
consider proposals to extend operation of the Youth Bus Service. 

• The Chairman provided a brief update on his attendance at a national 
conference for Participatory Budgeting (PB) in Manchester.  It was noted that 
Leeds was one of the 15 areas piloting the PB initiative. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
(a)  That the report and information appended to the report be noted;   
(b)  That the following Elected Members act as champion/key link on behalf of 
the Area Committee for the remaining two thematic priorities/sub-partnerships 
and the associated Area Committee responsibilities for 2008/09, as detailed 
below: 
  

• Learning and Thriving Neighbourhoods (worklessness) – Employment, 
Education, Training, Partnership – Councillor L Mulherin; and 

• Health and Well-being – Health and Well-being – Vacancy; 
 

(c)  That a further report on the Town Centre Management Project be 
provided to a future meeting of the Area Committee. 
 
(Councillor Golton arrived at 4.30 pm, during the consideration of this item). 
 

37 Date, Time and Venue of Next Meeting  
 

Monday 8th December, 2008 at 4.00 pm 
(Venue – Drighlington Meeting Hall, Drighlington Library, Moorland Road, 
Drighlington, BD11 1JZ) 
 
 
(The meeting concluded at 4.43 pm). 
 
 
 

Page 4



 
 
Report of the Area Manager  
 
South Leeds (Outer) Area Committee 
 
Date: Monday 8th December 2008 
 
Subject: Leeds Colleges Merger - Consultation 

 
 

        
  
 
 
 

 
 
Executive Summary 

The City Council’s Executive Board has endorsed the proposed merger of the City’s 3 
largest Colleges, namely Leeds Thomas Danby, Leeds College of Technology and Park 
Lane, which will result in the creation of a new single institution to be known as  Leeds City 
College. This report, supported by a short presentation from the LSC Partnership Director for 
Leeds, informs the Area Committee of the progress made. This will set out the rationale for 
the merger and summarises the outcome of the extensive consultations which have been 
held over the past few years. 
 
The report seeks agreement from the Area Committee on a process by which it is felt 
appropriate influence can be made on future delivery of post 16 and adult learning by the 
new merged College. This could include locations for the centres and sites for the new 
College for the provision of further education in the neighbourhoods and communities served 
by the Area Committee. 

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap  
 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
All 

Originator: John Woolmer 
Tel: 0113 214 5874 
Email: john.woolmer@leeds.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

Delegated Executive 
Function available 
for Call In 

 

Council 
Function 

Delegated Executive 
Function not available for 
Call In Details set out in the 
report 

X     

Agenda Item 8

Page 5



BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

1. The City Council’s Executive Board has endorsed the proposed merger of the City’s 3 
largest Colleges namely Leeds Thomas Danby, Leeds College of Technology and 
Park Lane which will result in the creation of a new single institution to be known as  
Leeds City College. 

 
2. The merger is supported by key partners including Yorkshire Forward, the two Leeds 

Universities, Leeds Trinity and All Saints College, Leeds Chamber and the Leeds 
Skills Board. 

 
3. It will have a budget of in excess of £70m and will provide extensive further education 

opportunities to over 70,000 students. 
 

4. The White File is currently with the Secretary of State (The White File catalogues the 
merger process) and a decision is expected by October 2008. 

 
 

CURRENT POSITION 

5. The Learning and Skills Council ( LSC ) which currently has responsibility for the 
funding of post 16 learning and skills provision is seeking the views of the Area 
Committee members on the future delivery of post 16 and adult learning in the City by 
the new merged College. 

 
6. One of the key issues which the Committee is being asked to consider is the possible 

locations for the centres and sites for the new College for the provision of further 
education in the neighbourhoods and communities served by the Area Committee. 

 
7. Area Committee members need to be aware that from 2010 the Government has 

indicated that the funding of all learning and skills provision for 16-19 year olds will 
transfer from the LSC to the Young Persons Learning Agency (YPLA) and ultimately 
subject to a satisfactory progress check to the individual Local Authorities. Post 19 
funding with be through the Skills Funding Agency (SFA ) which will be a national 
body based in the offices of the former LSC in Coventry. 

 
8. The LSC Partnership Director for Leeds will make a short presentation at the meeting, 

setting out the rationale for the merger and summarising the outcome of the extensive 
consultations which have been held over the past few years.  
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

9. The Area Committee are requested to note the report and agree: 
 

(a) a process by which it can submit views on the future delivery of post 16 and 
adult learning by the new merged College and suggest possible locations for the 
centres and sites for the new College which will help influence the ongoing 
estates review of the new College going forward; and 

(b) to invite a further report on the outcome of the accommodation/estates review of 
the new College once completed in 2009. 

 
 
Background Papers 

 
Report of Chief Executive of Education Leeds to Executive Board, 14 November 2007 

Page 6



 

1 
 

 
 
Report of the Director of Children’s Services 
 
South Leeds (Outer) Area Committee  
 
Date: Monday 8th December 2008 
 
Subject: The Children and Young People’s Plan 2009-14 and the development of local 

priorities for action 

 

        
 
 
 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

This report sets out a proposed structure for the new Children and Young People’s Plan 
(CYPP), describes its first cut priorities after consultation, and suggests how we may 
develop local relevancy to inform the work of Children’s services in the area committee 
area over the next five years. 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
  

The Committee is asked to: 
 

• Note the contents of the report. 

• Nominate an Elected Member to work with the Locality Enabler and the Area 
Manager on behalf of the Area Committee to develop the local context for these 
priorities and develop local actions for the Area Delivery Plan 2009/10. 

 

 
 
 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  
 
All 

 
X 

X 

X 

Originator: Shaid Mahmood 
 
Tel: 0113 39 50215 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  

X 

Council 
Function 

X 
 

Delegated Executive 
Function available 
for Call In 

 

Delegated Executive 
Function not available for 
Call In Details set out in the 
report 

  

Agenda Item 9

Page 7



 

2 
 

 
1.0 Purpose of report 
  
1.1 The purpose of this report is to outline the draft city-wide CYPP framework and 

priorities and seek the involvement of the Area Committee in identifying local 
priorities for children and young people to drive the work of Children’s services in 
this Area Committee area.   

  
2.0 Background 
  
2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.2 

The Children’s Act 2004 required all local authorities to produce a Children and 
Young People’s Plan (CYPP) to act as the single over-arching strategy for 
improving the outcomes of children and young people. The first Leeds Children and 
Young People’s Plan was completed in 2006 and covers the three years 2006-09. 
Currently, we are developing a new plan for the city which – it is envisaged - will run 
for 5 years (2009-14).  
 
It is proposed that we do not develop any further wedge CYPPs or replicate the 
individual service plans for agencies that already exist and have their accountability 
mechanisms in place.  Rather we develop local priorities for joint action and that the 
area delivery plan becomes the definitive document by which area committees 
discharge their enhanced role in influencing, and their developmental and 
consultative responsibilities, in relation to Children’s Services (as per the Exec 
Board of 16 July 2008). 

  
3.0 Process for developing the draft CYPP 2009 
  
3.1 The draft of the new CYPP (2009-14) has been informed by an extended period of 

learning, debate and analysis. Over the past year a wide range of processes and 
the input of a wide range of partners have helped to develop this new framework 
and its contents.  

  
4.0 Draft CYPP 09 priorities 
  
4.1 The improvement priorities set out in the proposed structure are based on those in 

the Leeds Strategic Plan. From our work so far with a range of stakeholders, the 
priorities appear to be  -  

• Improving early learning outcomes in deprived areas (Foundation 
Stage Profile/Key Stage 2) 

• Reducing teenage conception rates 

• Reducing secondary persistent absence 

• Reducing numbers of young people not in employment, education or 
training (NEET) 

• Reducing the need for children to be in care (the priority previously 
known as reducing the number of Looked After Children) 

• Improving outcomes for Looked After Children 

• Reducing child poverty. 

• Places to go, things to do 
 
 
 

Page 8



 

3 
 

  
5.0 Next steps 
  
5.1 
 
 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
 
 
5.3 
 
 
 
 
 

Area Committees and local children’s services leadership teams are being asked to 
review the city-wide priorities described in Section 4.1 within the local context and 
to nominate a lead Elected Member on behalf of the area committee to work with 
the Locality Enabler to identify key local issues which will be built into the Area 
Delivery Plans for 2009/10.  
 
Local Wedge Leadership Teams will hold a collective accountability to deliver the 
actions in collaboration with and supportive of extended service clusters in local 
communities.  Integrated children’s services teams are currently being developed to 
ensure resource is increasingly locked into family-centred responses.  
 
After the recent themed meetings on extended services delivered by Children’s 
Services within many Area Committee areas, Elected Member engagement with 
extended service clusters would be welcomed.  It would provide a greater 
understanding and influencing of the work of Children’s Services in and around their 
wards, as we reengineer resources for more effective and personalized responses 
to family need. 

  
6.0 Recommendations 

 
 The Committee is asked to: 

 
(1)  Note the contents of the report; and 
(2)  Nominate an Elected Member to work with the Locality Enabler and the 

Area Manager on behalf of the Area Committee to develop the local context 
for these priorities and develop local actions for the Area Delivery Plan 
2009/10. 

 

Background Papers 

• Children and Young People’s Plan 2006-09 

• Exec Board Report 16 July 2008: Area Committee Roles for 2008/09 

• Executive Board Report 20 September 2006: Proposed children's trust arrangements 
for Leeds 

• Executive Board Report 2 September 2008: Children's Services Update and 
Framework for the City's Next Children and Young People's Plan. 

 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 
Report of the Director of Children’s Services 
 
South Leeds (Outer) Area Committee  
 
Date: Monday 8th December 2008 
 

Subject: Revised Children’s Services arrangements for more effective locality working 

with families 

 

        
 
 
 
 
 
 

Executive Summary 

Being more responsive to specific local needs was one of the key ambitions 

behind the evolution of our city’s children’s trust arrangements. This approach  
demands a reshaping of our existing wedge children services arrangements and 

the strengthening of wider linkages, e.g. into Area Committees, to support 
extended service clusters1 in their development. We have made considerable 
progress in reshaping the arrangements, however, this is very much a work in 

progress and elected members are requested to engage, support, and influence  
the developments at ward and extended service cluster level. 

 

1.0 Recommendations 

The Committee is requested to: 
 

• Note the report 

                                                
1
 There are some 38 extended service clusters consisting of schools, children’s centres, and other providers in the city.  They offer a range 
of services already, for example, childr care and referrals to more specialised support, and are increasingly becoming key to the delivery of 
integrated services.  These clusters are formalising their governance arrangements to become fit for purpose for service delivery and the 
local commissioning of services, for example, through forming collaborative committees or schools trusts. 
 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  
 
All 

 
X 

X 

X 

Originator: Shaid Mahmood 
 
Tel: 0113 39 50215 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  

X 

Council 
Function 

X  
 

Delegated Executive 
Function available 
for Call In 

 

Delegated Executive 
Function not available for 
Call In Details set out in the 
report 

  

Agenda Item 10

Page 11



2 
 

• Nominate an Elected Member (where committees have not already done so) 
to: 

 
(1)  work with the Locality Enabler and the Area Manager (on behalf of the 

Area Committee) - to take these developments forward; and 
 

(2) to represent the Area Committee on the South Children Leeds 
Partnership, subject to Member Management Committee approval. 

 

It would be helpful if the elected member were the same member for 
developing the local priorities. 

2.0 Appendices 

Appendix 1: Generic diagram of the Leeds Children’s Trust Arrangements when 
they were set up in April 2007 

Appendix 2: A copy of the report to Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee on 

the Leadership Challenge for member information and interest 

Appendix 3:A diagram to show how the developing local picture links to Area 

Committees and ensures engagement beyond Children’s Services 

  Appendix 4: A list of the codes of corporate governance and how the revised 
arrangements will meet them

Page 12



3 
 

1.0 Purpose Of This Report 

1.1 This report provides an overview of the evolution of locality children’s trust 
arrangements. It seeks to inform the committee of developments in recent 
months, confirm the direction of travel for revised arrangements, and seeks 

member involvement in ensuring that priorities and actions are relevant and 
delivered by the Leadership Teams. 

 

2.0   Background Information 

2.1 The Children’s Act 2004 heralded a period of a significant change and 
development for Children’s Services through to 2014. Nationally, developments 

in shared systems and arrangements, integrated planning and commissioning, 
integrated systems, and integrated front line delivery are underway.   

 

2.2 As Appendix 1 shows, it has always been the intention that locality 
arrangements would be an integral part of the overall Children’s Trust 

Arrangements.  The ‘West Leeds Project’2 the work of the Brigshaw cluster in 
East Leeds, the ‘Leadership Challenge’ (Appendix 2 for background 
information) in the NEtWORKS cluster in North East Leeds, and the School 

Partnership Trust in Garforth have helped us to understand better the things we 
need to do to deliver better services to families.  

 

2.3 Most recently, we held a well attended and successful Governance Seminar (July 
2008) with a wide range of stakeholders including elected members, school 
governors, and the voluntary, community, and faith sector.  We received 

overwhelming endorsement of this approach to locality working. 
 

2.4 Guiding principles have been developed through these discussions and these 
are: 
 

• All partners will remain responsible and accountable for decisions on their 

individual services and resources3 
• There will be no change to the accountabilities of council officers or to the 

council’s constitution.  
• Partners should work together locally with a common purpose to secure 

high quality integrated services for children, young people, and their 

families 
• We must reduce duplication of effort and the number of meetings that 

take place around the same family issues in different agencies 
• Revised locality arrangements should ensure leadership by and 

democratic accountability to elected members for the integration of 
children’s services through Area Committees and their Area Delivery 
Plans 

• The responsibilities and accountabilities of existing groups such as the 
Education Area Management Board and their frameworks will be secured 

in the new arrangements and these existing groups dissolved. 
 

                                                
2 The West Leeds Project was established in 2005 in order to develop early knowledge and learning arising from the changes implemented 

by the Children Act, 2004, and the related Every Child Matters agenda. 
3
 The Director of Children’s Services (DCS) holds on behalf of the local authority those statutory accountabilities and responsibilities 
relating to the provision of all the authority’s children’s services. The DCS is accountable for the achievement of national and local 
outcomes and in turn can hold partners to account for delivering the outcomes in the City’s Children and Young People’s Plan. The 
Children’s Act 2004 also requires a Lead or Executive Member for Children’s Services.  Cllr Golton fulfils this role in its broadest sense.  
However, given the size of the portfolio in Leeds, Cllr Harker fulfils the responsibilities in relation to education functions of the Council. Cllr 
Golton and Cllr Harker are supported by two lead members. 

Page 13



4 
 

2.5 All of this collaborative work has determined the following core elements in the 
locality children’s trust arrangements -  

 
2.6.1 A Wedge Children’s Services Partnership with the breadth and depth of 

children, young people, and family services to develop priorities for 
improved targeting of resources. Rather than a formal and separate 
partnership with a plethora of meetings, this could consist of a series of 

community engagement events where local people could help to shape 
these priorities more effectively. We wish to seek help and support on 

how we could best achieve this engagement. 
         

2.6.2 Wedge Children Leeds Leadership Team with officer representation from 
extended service clusters (or other appropriate partnerships) and wedge 
leaders from children, young people, and family services to drive and 

manage service integration in response to the priorities and plans for the 
wedge.  

 
We believe that this development of our locality working gives us more 
opportunities to discuss problems together, work better together, and improve 

professional practice, whilst retaining the lines of accountability that exist 
currently. 

 
2.7 Appendix 3 shows the revised arrangement. These core elements would be 

time limited from April 2009 and exist to deliver integrated children’s services 

teams at cluster level. 
 

2.8 Decision-making at local level often takes place along agency or service lines or 
in small groups working in isolation.  It is envisaged that these emerging 
children’s trust arrangements will help to: 

 
• Reduce duplication of effort and the number of meetings that take place  

   around the same family issues in different agencies 
• Monitor and evaluate the local impact of services 
• Consider and promote redirection of resources, where appropriate, to 

better meet the needs of children, young people and their families  
• Promote a more flexible and creative use of resources. 

• Recognise that children, young people, parents, and carers move across 
wedge and cluster boundaries to attend learning, work opportunities 
and access services.  It is an imperative that service integration at all 

levels recognizes and addresses the associated challenges. 
 

            We need the Area Committees support and help to broaden the engagement of 
this arrangement with other key aspects of its work.  

 

4.0  Legal and Resource Implications 
 

4.1 Implications relate to the provision of advice, guidance and support for the 
further development of the arrangements outlined in this paper. This support 

will come from within existing resources. 
 
4.2    The locality arrangements will fully meet the requirements of the code of 

corporate governance. Report will be taken to the corporate Audit and 
Governance Committee as appropriate. Appendix 4 outlines how the 

arrangements will meet the code of corporate governance. 
 

Page 14



5 
 

5.0 Conclusions 

5.1      Good progress has been made on the development of our concept for locality 

children’s trust arrangements.  The concept is very much a refinement of our 
existing governance and accountability but with greater reach and penetration 
into the localities in the city.  The arrangements emphasize the need to provide 

local leadership to unblock barriers to improving outcomes for children and 
young people and the need for democratic accountability for the deployment of 

publicly funded resources at extended service cluster level. 
 
6.0 Recommendations 

 
The Committee is requested to: 

 
• Note the report 
• Nominate an Elected Member (where committees have not already done so) 

to: 
 

(1)  work with the Locality Enabler and the Area Manager (on behalf of the 
Area Committee) - to take these developments forward; and 

 
(2) to represent the Area Committee on the South Children Leeds 
Partnership, subject to Member Management Committee approval. 

 
It would be helpful if the elected member were the same member for 

developing the local priorities. 

 

Background Papers: 

• Executive Board Report 20 September 2006: Proposed children's trust 
arrangements for Leeds 

• Executive Board Report 2 September 2008: Children's Services Update and 
Framework for the City's Next Children and Young People's Plan 

• Council's Code of Corporate Governance 

 

Page 15



6 
 

(Appendix 1) Leeds Children’s Trust Arrangements 

 

 
 

CHILDREN 

LEEDS  

 

 

Children Leeds 
Partnership 

PARTICIPATING 

 

Integrated Strategic 
Commissioning Board 

COMMISSIONING 

 

Local 
Safeguarding 
Children Board 

SAFEGUARDING 

 

Locality Working 
Arrangements  

DELIVERING 

Director of Children’s 
Services Unit 

SUPPORTING 

 

Open Forums 

LEARNING 

IMPROVING 

OUTCOMES 

P
a
g
e
 1

6



 

7 
 

 
 
Report of the Director of Children’s Services 

 
Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee 

 
Date:  16th October 2008 
 

Subject:  The Leadership Challenge 

 

        
 
 

1.0    Purpose of this Report 
 
1.1    This report seeks to explain why we initiated the Leadership Challenge project, 

how we did it, what we did, what the outcomes were, what we learnt from doing 
it, and what we are going to do with what we have learnt. Throughout the report 

are a number of short inserts taken directly from comments made by those 
involved with the project, as a way of sharing their learning with members of the 
Children’s Services Scrutiny Board.  

2.0   Why did we do it? 
 

2.1 The Leadership Challenge was a collaborative action learning project between 
Leeds City Council, Children Leeds, and the Improvement and Development 
Agency for local government (IDeA).  It enabled the seaming together of three 

specific strands of interrelated work: 
  

• The role of elected members as community leaders and champions for equality 
and diversity 

• The evolving role of leaders and leadership within and around local communities 
• The remodeling of children’s services collaborative working arrangements in 

localities to improve outcomes for children and young people 

 
2.2    What would success for the project look like? 

 
• Elected members would be actively involved and engaged locally and provide 

leadership to help unblock barriers to progress in improving outcomes. 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  
 
All 

 
X 

X 

X 

Originators:  

Shaid Mahmood 

 

Tel: 0113 395 0215 

    Ward Members consulted                          
 ( (referred to in report) 
 

Page 17



 

8 
 

• Connectivity between our local children’s services leadership and our citywide 

children’s trust arrangements would be better understood and improved. 
• The skills and behaviors that leaders need in an integrated children’s services 

world and the roles that we need locally to drive integration would be better 
understood 

• The way we work with families and develop our collaborative problem solving 

skills would be improved 
• Our frontline support staff would be actively involved in decision making 

processes and be supported to work well together on problem solving 
activities. 

• Learning would be shared between those involved on the project, across the 

wedge, the city and nationally. 
 

2.3    The Leadership Challenge centred on the NEtWORKS extended services cluster 
around Carr Manor High School. The cluster was an advanced cluster with 
relationships between the high school, several primary schools, the Children’s 

Centres and local voluntary youth provision already developing at a pace.  It had 
been seeking to determine its future and as a consequence was enthusiastic 

about participating in the Challenge.  Additionally, this cluster was of interest as it 
drew its children and young people from a number of ward boundaries - involving 

different political parties – and from across wedge and therefore service 
boundaries. 

 

“This project has helped us, as leaders, to look towards building sustainable 

relationships with other services, which enable us to do our own jobs better” …..a 
local leader 

 
3.0    How did we do it? 

 
3.1 To initiate the project we brought together a diagonal slice of the key leadership 

components in three distinct strands: 
 

• Equalities 

• Local Leadership, and  
• Strategic Commissioning 

 
3.2  The Equalities Group was a delivery group of frontline practitioners many of whom 

had no history of working together. The Local Leadership Group were local 

children’s service leaders, e.g. Head Teachers, Team Manager Children and Young 
People’s Social Care, Children Centre Manager, or community leaders including 

elected members. The strategic commissioning group consisted of commissioners 
of a range of citywide children’s services. 

 

3.3  A project steering group was established consisting of the Deputy Director of 
Children’s Services, the Locality Enabler for the North East, a senior manager 

form the Equalities Team, a senior manager from the policy, performance, and 
improvement team, a regional associate from the IDeA, and IDeA consultant, and 
a member from the NEtWORKS cluster management Group.  The work was 

supported by two project officers. The role of the steering group was to manage 
the interrelationships of the three separate strands of work, to facilitate and drive 

the project, to negotiate the involvement of specific individuals as appropriate, to 
ensure shared learning opportunities within and across the strands was 
maximized, and to leverage key learning both citywide and nationally. The project 

Page 18



 

9 
 

was to run initially for 6 months – later extended to 9 months - from September 

2007-July 2008. 
 

“Within this cluster, the challenge has helped us to have an ‘open door’ policy 

between our services, though we recognise that there are other services who we 
need to help join this journey”…..a local leader 

 
4.0    What did we do? 

 
4.1 It was quickly determined that the project required a problem solving activity to 

help initiate the work of the individual groups, to ensure a consistent connecting 

theme across the groups, and to elicit leadership behaviors to enable better 
understanding of what it took to unblock barriers to progress locally. It was 

agreed that the number of young people Not in Employment Education and 
Training within the city was a cause of concern.  It had been identified that there 
were a number of common factors that led to a young person becoming NEET, 

however, many of these factors were being addressed with the young person in 
isolation and in the absence of a family approach.  In discussion with the Locality 

Enabler, Primary Head Teachers and colleagues from Early Years had stated that 
the behaviors and conditions that led to young people becoming NEET at 16,17, 

and/or 19 years of age were clearly evident at an early age and that these 
behaviors were prevalent in families. Consequently, the problem-solving activity 
chosen to help initiate activities and elicit leadership behaviors through the course 

of the project was to develop a family based response to NEET.  
 

“The learning from this project has also enabled us to think creatively about how 
a locally based commissioning pilot could work!”....a strategic commissioner 

 

4.2 Families were identified by Head Teachers and Children Centre Managers from 
within the extended service cluster.  Criteria for selection ranged from school 

attendance, difficulties in engaging pupils/parents, carers, and siblings, troubling 
or challenging behaviors, and difficult or challenging family backgrounds.  It was 
determined that the identified families were low income families living in deprived 

neighborhoods and that domestic violence was prevalent in some. 
 

4.3 It became clear through the course of the Leadership Challenge that the common 
assessment framework (CAF) was fundamental to developing and landing an 
integrated response from children’s services. Ideally, the CAF should help to 

identify the gaps in services that a family or an individual may need to improve 
their outcomes and serve as an evidence base for what is needed to do so, so 

that barriers to progress may be unblocked and resolved at the level closest to 
the family.   

 

“Having the opportunity to meet with each other and not to have to work in 

isolation has been really helpful. At the meetings we have been able to discuss 
our families, sharing knowledge and information. What has been really useful is 

that at some of our discussions colleagues know of some agency or somewhere to 
contact with issues that have arisen from their family on a CAF”…..a frontline 
practitioner 

 

4.4 For many frontline practitioners the CAF was new and time was taken to provide 
training, development and follow-up support for the CAF process.  Practitioners 
supported by their line managers found the CAF process easier to adopt than 

those practitioners that were less well supported.  Nevertheless, through the 

Page 19



 

10 
 

course of the Challenge the interrelationships between the equalities group and 

the local leadership group developed to such an extent that support to those 
practitioners less well supported was secured.  

 

“The leaders i.e. our line managers have been very supportive of the process. We 

have been encouraged to attend the meetings and to be fully active in the 
project. To be part of the project has been an empowering process for the group 

members”…..a frontline practitioner 

 
4.5 It also emerged through the period of the Challenge that the team around the 

practitioner within a service must be supportive of the CAF process for the 

practitioner to feel fully supported in implementing the changes that joint working 
arrangements demand.  The project served to further highlight the expertise of 

those working directly with families and the need to further engage and harness 
this expertise in a way that is productive and that seeks to unblock barriers 
through local solutions. 

 

“….the group members who are involved in CAFs and multi agency group 

meetings, (reported) that families are finding that the behaviour their child was 

displaying has improved, and that as the parent they can play a part in improving 
their child’s behaviour”…..a frontline practitioner 

 
4.6 The local leadership group explored professional boundaries and service divisions 

that inhibited their ability to work together.  In addition to wrestling with 
challenges for support and resources from the equalities group and improving 

their knowledge/understanding of strategic commissioning and their role in it, 
they explored leadership and the source of power, influence, and resources.  
Through the nine months of the project these local leaders became a more 

cohesive and cogent group. Attendance was high and increased over time as 
more local leaders joined the project, often actively seeking membership to the 

group.  Apart from bringing knowledge or resources to the table, these Leaders 
brought unique relationship networks into play to help solve problems 
collaboratively.  It became apparent that loyalty to the families increased and the 

notion of joint accountability to children, young people, and families became 
increasingly important. Having the right person, at the right place, at the right 

time was important to ensuring needs were being met.  Involvement in this 
project offered opportunities, information, and insights that were unavailable to 
others.  Often this leadership came from those not in positions of relative power 

or authority.  Leadership meant coordinating the wealth of ideas to help people 
make the right choices in connection with others locally.  This learning informed 

the development of a specific role – the Integrated Services Leader – to add 
capacity and trial how this would work across neighboring clusters 

 

“This project has helped us, as leaders, to look towards building sustainable 

relationships with other services, which enable us to do our own jobs better” …..a 
local leader 

 
4.7 Attendance at the strategic commissioning group diminished over time but the 

group retained a small core membership for the lifetime of the project that 
continued to provide information, advice, and guidance to the local leadership on 

aspects of strategic commissioning.  Both the equalities group and the local 
leadership group felt remote from strategic commissioning and wished to better 
understand the concept, their role in it, and how they could influence it through 

evidence based local intelligence or locally commissioned services. It felt to local 

Page 20



 

11 
 

leadership that strategic commissioners were often remote from the problems 

that needed to be resolved and were not using their local intelligence to inform 
and shape their commissioning work. In response, commissioners shared a simple 

4-stage model of commissioning and worked with the other two groups to test the 
model against the NEET problem described earlier.  Analysis of the local NEET 
picture provided by commissioners helped work on a joint response to NEET for 

the cluster, using outcome based accountability methods. This joint response led 
to discussions about how the local leadership group better aligned resources and 

service delivery to best fit the levels of local need. The collaboration resulted in 
the NEtWORKS cluster contributing to the work on the commissioning 
specification for Information, Advice and Guidance (IAG) services in the city. 

 

“Through involvement with this project the Strategic Commissioning Group have 

recognised the need to engage with localities over the development of 

commissioning in Leeds”…..a strategic commissioner 

 

5.0    What were the outcomes of the project? 
 

5.1    In summary, the Leadership Challenge has: 
• Developed action learning on the leadership behaviors needed locally 

through better integrated service delivery to improve outcomes for 
children, young people, and their families 

• Promoted greater understanding of the changing roles of practitioners, 

local leaders, and strategic commissioners focusing on outcomes 
• Explored what integration means at different levels of need and across 

service delivery through the CAF, directly supporting Narrowing the Gap 
and the governments’ Place Shaping Agenda 

• Introduced family based preventative approaches to children and young 

people at risk of becoming NEET and agreed a common purpose around 
integration defining it for themselves 

• Actively involved and engaged an increasingly broad range of partners and 
stakeholders including the voluntary, community, faith sector, elected 
members, the police and schools 

• Provided a sense of local ownership through the development of local 
solutions 

• Recognised the value of ‘diagonal’ slice working in improving outcomes for 
children, young people, and families 

 

“As leaders we have a critical role in enabling a culture change amongst our staff, 

through implementing our learning from this project”….a local leader 

 
6.0     What have we learnt by doing it? 
 

6.1 We have learnt: 
 

• The value of the active involvement and engagement of elected members 
locally in challenging and supporting children’s services colleagues to help 
unblock barriers to progress in improving outcomes. 

• How to better connect our local children’s services leadership and our 
citywide children’s trust arrangements and improved our understanding of 

the roles that may help foster this connectivity locally. 
• The skills and behaviors that leaders need in an integrated children’s 

services world and the roles that we need locally to drive integration would 

be better understood 

Page 21



 

12 
 

• How we can improve the way we work with families and develop our 

collaborative problem solving skills 
• How our frontline support staff should be actively involved in decision 

making processes, supported in their work, and the methods we can use to 
help us solve problems and overcome barriers to progress. 

• What we need to develop to help the learning from the Leadership 

Challenge to be shared between those involved on the project, across the 
wedge, the city and nationally. 

 

“As a leadership group, our specific response to enabling leadership capacity to 

support integrated working, is through the appointment of an ‘Integrated Services 
Leader’ who will be enabled, with our full permissions to lead integration in our 

cluster”…..a local leader 

 
7.0     What are we doing with what we have learnt? 
 

7.1 We are: 
 

• Informing the work of member development in the local authority in 
relation to leadership of children’s services locally. 

• Informing the work of children’s services leadership development in the 
city. 

• Developing products to use nationally so that others may aspire to their 

own leadership challenge and provide pointers on how to lead together that 
explore local joint accountability and the leadership skills and behaviors 

that underpin it. 
• Informing the work on revising our strategic commissioning framework to 

bring in the benefits of local intelligence to inform city wide and local 

commissioning and bring meaning and connectivity to the integrated 
strategic commissioning strategy locally. In doing so, we have sought to 

build in learning from the recent work of the Joint Preventative 
Commissioning Panel on wedge based innovation funding. 

• Informing the work on our locality children’s trust arrangements to deliver 

step-changes in the way children’s services leaders collaborate together 
locally. Indeed, children services in the North East wedge have assembled 

a Children’s Service Leadership Team based on their experience of 
connected leadership and are developing their working arrangements 
further to provide effective support for local solutions. 

• Trialing a new role – the integrated services leader – in the cluster and 
across other extended service clusters to better integrate in an 

environment where there are movements of children and young people to 
attend learning or support. 

• Providing CAF and lead professional training across the North East Wedge 

with increasing engagement. 
• Exploring with Health, PCT, Police, the VCFS, and Housing how we better 

engage and have the right leadership in our leadership teams locally. 
 

“Connected leadership is something which will enable us to deliver better and 

more  integrated children’s services”…..a local leader 

 

8.0    Conclusions 

8.1    Earlier in this report we articulated our success criteria as being: 

 

Page 22



 

13 
 

• Elected members would be actively involved and engaged locally and provide 

leadership to help unblock barriers to progress in improving outcomes. 
• Connectivity between our local children’s services leadership and our 

citywide children’s trust arrangements would be better understood and 
improved. 

• The skills and behaviors that leaders need in an integrated children’s 

services world and the roles that we need locally to drive integration would 
be better understood 

• The way we work with families and develop our collaborative problem solving 
skills would be improved 

• Our frontline support staff would be actively involved in decision making 

processes and work well together on problem solving activities. 
• Learning would be shared between those involved on the project, across the 

wedge, the city and nationally. 
 
8.2 We have made strong progress across all 6 criteria in completing the Leadership 

Challenge project. We have taken stock of our learning and are beginning to 
apply it in a range of further developments – fulfilling our original intention of 

action learning. 
 

8.3 Creating strong, prosperous, and cohesive communities - in which the Council’s 
role in providing community leadership and nurturing it in others is crucial - is 
both a corporate priority and an integral part of the Vision for Leeds.  The 

Leadership Challenge has responded directly to the key requirements of the next 
CPA Corporate Assessment and the ‘Strong and Prosperous Communities’ white 

paper in relation to leadership development and partnership working.  
 
8.4 The Leeds Strategic Plan articulates a single shared set of outcomes and priorities 

for the city in agreement with partners.  The Leadership Challenge has enabled a 
collaborative problem solving focus on a family approach to NEET that directly 

contributes to the achievement of these priorities and affords a new way to 
approach our individual and joint accountabilities in relation to the Strategic Plan 
and its local derivations. 

 
8.5 The Leadership Challenge has directly influenced the shape of the locality 

dimension of our children’s trust arrangements in the city. Children’s services are 
developing leadership teams of officers from Children’s Services and partnerships 
– which we envisage - would have a key role for elected members to provide 

connected leadership of our collaborative work. It has also influenced our work on 
the revised commissioning framework and introduced important opportunities to 

commission services and develop our thinking on the roles that can help the 
integration of Children’s services locally. 

 

8.6 Finally, the Leadership Challenge has been both a local and a national 
collaboration. The opportunity for Leeds to contribute to national work on 

developing leadership in an integrated children’s services world is significant and 
we will ensure that the opportunity is not lost. 

 

9.0    Recommendations 
 

The Committee is requested to: 
 

• Note the report 

• Request a further report on the work to develop elected member roles around 
children’s services aspects, the work to develop local children’s trust 

Page 23



 

14 
 

arrangements and associated commissioning developments, and the products 

developed from the leadership challenge and their dissemination. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 24



 

15 
 

Appendix 3 – What the revised arrangements will look like 

 
 Children Leeds Partnership 

Integrated Strategic Commissioning Board 

Leeds Safeguarding Children Board 

 
Wedge Children Leeds Partnership 

(Not a formal meeting more a forum for community and wider partner engagement, e.g. adult services, to ensure that Children’s Services 

priorities are locally relevant) 

 

Wedge Children Leeds Leadership Team 

Working 
Group 3 

 

Area Committee Delivery Plan 

2009/10 

 
Working 
Group 2 

Inner Area Committee 

Outer Area Committee 

 

Leeds Children and Young People’s Plan 

2009-14 

 
Working 
Group 1 

P
a
g
e
 2

5



 

16 
 

 

Appendix 4 - How we will meet the requirements of the Code 

of corporate governance? 
 

1.1 Focussing on the Council’s purpose and community needs  
a. The wedge based arrangements described above will directly support the 

delivery of the priorities of the Leeds Children and Young People’s Plan.  
b. Wedge children and young people’s plans will be expressed in area 

delivery plans at area committee level ensuring connectivity to the Leeds 

Strategic Plan.  These local plans will help to deliver services that meet 
the needs of the local community and ensure that services are prioritised 

and resources directed to those who need it most.   
c. The wedge partnership will ensure that local priorities are developed, 

understood, and direct the work of children’s services officers at 

leadership teams. The wedge partnership will also develop effective 
relationships and partnerships with other public, private and voluntary, 

community, and faith sector organisations. 
 

1.2       Having clear responsibilities and arrangements for accountability 

a.   The revised arrangements at locality level propose no changes to the 
scheme of delegated council responsibilities to Directors and other 

appropriate officers at this time.   
b. Reports on the activities of local arrangements will be provided to the 

Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee to discharge the council’s scrutiny 
responsibilities.   

c. There will be no change to the council’s Constitution including the scheme 

of delegation of Council and Executive functions in relation to Children’s 
Services, protocols governing member/ Children’s Services officer 

relations and the roles of members and officers in decision making. 
 

1.3       Good conduct and behaviour  

a.   The Council’s values, codes of conduct, and protocols will apply to elected 
members and officers/employees on wedge based locality arrangements 

so that employees of the authority are not influenced by prejudice, bias, 
or conflicts of interest in dealing with different stakeholders. 

b.   The governance framework that applies to significant partnerships such as 

the Children Leeds Partnerships and indeed that of the children trust 
arrangements in the city will apply to these local arrangements. 

 
1.4 Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to 

effective scrutiny and risk management.  

a. Decision-making by Council officers at wedge level will be transparent and 
decisions taken will be recorded in minutes of meetings and reports and 

these will be available publicly. 
b. Decisions and decision makers will be scrutinised and held to account 

through Children’s Services Scrutiny Committees and locally by Area 

Committees, through reports on children’s services actions in Area 
Committee delivery plans. 

c. In quality assuring the children’s services arrangements at locality level 
the council’s risk management process in relation to significant 
partnerships will apply. 

 
1.5 Developing the capacity and capability of members and officers to be 

effective.  

Page 26



 

17 
 

a. We will communicate with the Council’s committees on the developments 

on locality working arrangements. 
b. We will inform member development programmes to ensure 

understanding of what we are doing and engage elected members on the 
locality working arrangements. 

c. We have held a number of meetings and seminars in wedges and with 

officers at the centre, including those of partners agencies, to engage in 
discussion on the new arrangements and will work with officers and 

elected members to develop the arrangements in the coming months. 
d. We have and will continue to communicate through the Every Child 

Matters Update document that is distributed widely on a fortnightly basis. 

e. We will work with corporate governance/legal officers to develop the 
detailed terms of reference for the arrangements and communicate them 

widely. 
f. We will ensure that what we have learnt in developing locality 

arrangements informs leadership development programmes such as from 

‘Good to Great’ so that we share the experience in a ‘one council’ 
approach. 

 
1.6 Engaging with local people and other stakeholders  

a. The locality trust arrangements will form and maintain relationships with 
the leaders of other organisations 

b. Local forum events will be held by the partnership to ensure local 

priorities are expressed in wedge children and young people’s plans 
c. Themed meetings on aspects of children’s services will be held in 

collaboration with elected members at area committees and with the 
community 

d. Extended service clusters will express local priorities in their development 

plans that will be supported by wedge leaders 
e. The local children and young people’s plans will be expressed in the area 

committee delivery plan 
f. The participation of children, young people, parents and carers in shaping 

local services will be integral to the locality trust arrangements as they are 

to the city wide arrangements. 
 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



  
Report of the Director of Environment & Neighbourhoods Directorate 
 
South Leeds (Outer) Area Committee  
 
Date: Monday 8th December 2008 
 
Subject: Community Engagement Plan 
 

        
  
 
 
 

 
 
Executive Summary 

This report outlines a community engagement plan for the Area Committee and describes 

how this will increase the number of people involved in, and who feel they have an influence 

over local decision making.  It presents a timetable of events for members consideration and 

includes information on different styles that could be used to organise the events. 

 
1.0 Purpose Of This Report 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to present a community engagement plan for the Area 

Committee which will enable the Committee to increase the number of local people 
involved in, and who feel they have influence over local decision making. 

 
2.0 Background Information 
 
2.1 In November 2007 the Executive Board agreed an increase in the responsibilities of 

Area Committees.  This included community engagement. 
 
2.2 At the same time, the Executive Board agreed to end the district partnership structure, 

which had previously provided a framework for multi-agency partnership working in 
the city under Leeds Initiative. 

 
 

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap  
 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
Ardsley and Robin Hood 
Morley North 
Morley South 
Rothwell 
 
 

Originator: 
 Thomas O’Donovan  
Sarah Henderson 
Tel: 39 51654  

 

X 

 

Delegated Executive 
Function available 
for Call In 

 

Council 
Function 

Delegated Executive 
Function not available for 
Call In Details set out in the 
report 

 X  

                Ward Members consulted 
                (referred to in report) 
    

Agenda Item 11

Page 29



2.3 The Area Committees now have a greater role in overseeing partnership work in their 
area.  The Area Delivery Plans (ADP) have been changed to reflect this, as they are 
now linked to the Leeds Strategic Plan and its priorities.  The Leeds Strategic Plan 
replaces the Vision for Leeds, the Leeds Regeneration Plan and the Council’s 
Corporate Plan. 

 
2.4 Two of the key improvement priorities in the ADP under the Stronger Communities 

theme are: 
 

o ‘an increase in the number of local people that are empowered to have a greater 
voice and influence over local decision making and a greater role in public service 
delivery’. 

 
o ‘an increase in the number of local people engaged in activities to meet community 

needs and improve the quality of life for local residents’. 
 
3.0 Current Community Engagement 
 
3.1  A significant form of community engagement currently undertaken in the Outer South 

is delivered through the Neighbourhood Improvement Plans. The NIP programme 
began in 2004 and brought together the resources of partners to tackle issues 
identified through consultation with residents, members and officers. The working 
groups established to steer the Neighbourhood Improvement Plans, consider and 
propose coordinated actions to address these issues. In the period 2005 – 2008 NIPs 
have been implemented in Newlands and Denshaws, John O’Gaunts and Eastleighs 
Fairleighs. Support work has also been carried out in Wood Lane and Oakwells 
Fairfaxes. Six new NIP areas have been identified to be completed by the Priority 
Neighbourhood Worker (PNW) during 2008-11. The PNW will employ a standard level 
of engagement in each NIP including a community consultation, the development of a 
Tenants and Residents Association, production of a newsletter and a community day. 

 
3.2  As part of the 2008-11 NIP process, all households in the NIP area will be consulted 

by a questionnaire to be returned with comments in a freepost envelope to the Area 
Management Team.  The responses will be used to develop the NIP action plan – 
which in turn will be an action in the Area Delivery Plan and so can be seen as 
another effective method of involving local people in how services are delivered in 
their area.    

 
3.3 An integral part of the NIP process is the development and support of Tenants and 

Residents Associations (TARA’s). In conjunction with the Customer Involvement 
Officers from Aire Valley Homes (AVH), the PNW engages with residents to build their 
capacity to administer their affairs effectively as residents to resolve issues and 
engage with services. The Area Committee has agreed that the 2008/11 NIP process 
introduce a ‘Supported Area’ status in recognition of the work required to maintain and 
sustain the TARAs in their work when a NIP is completed. The PNW and the AVH 
Customer Involvement Officer will ensure that the in supported areas TARAs are 
aware among other things of community skip provision, grant schemes, contacts for 
key cores services and support from the Area Management Office to produce 
promotional literature. 

 
 
 
 

Page 30



3.4 A Small Grants programme is delivered by the Area Management Team from Member 
approved Wellbeing funding. The grant offers up to £500 for community groups to 
complete projects that address ADP priorities and benefit their members and the 
wider community. As part of the community engagement process, small grants will 
offer another method of engaging and supporting local groups to build their capacity 
and skills base. 

 
3.5 The Rothwell 600 Committee was set up in 2007 to deliver the Rothwell 600 

celebrations with support from the Area Management Team. The committee meets 
monthly to provide updates on all aspects of the work and a Vetting Panel meets 
when required to consider applications for funding support from the Area Committee 
commissioned £15,000. This project demonstrates the Area Committees commitment 
to its enhanced role in community engagement and to the ADP priority of developing 
residents capacity to take roles in their community to influence decisions in their area. 

 
3.6 Six Area Committees are held in each municipal year, they are public meetings where 

residents can attend and view the formal process of decision making in their locality. 
The Open Forum offers the opportunity for residents to participate and comment on 
issues that concern them. The December Area Committee will also see the first of the 
new pre-Area Committee Partnership Events. These events link thematic partnerships 
with the Area Committee and provide an opportunity for residents and Members to 
find out what activities each partnership is undertaking in the area. Consultation will 
also be carried out at each event that will influence the future delivery of services by 
the partnership. 

 
3.7 The Area Committee fund a three year Town Centre Management (TCM) project. As 

part of this project annual community engagement events called ‘Summits’ are held. 
These events held in Morley and Rothwell provide an opportunity for the businesses 
and local residents to find out about work completed through the project and have a 
say in shaping the towns action plan for the future year. The TCM project also has 
regular engagement with residents through seasonal events leaflets and household 
information leaflets. Each town has an active Town Centre Partnership of traders and 
quarterly meetings provide further engagement and consultation with businesses and 
interested groups on the development of the town and the TCM project.  

 
3.8 Further engagement in the form of a quarterly newsletter is currently undertaken by 

the Area Management Team on behalf of the Area Committee which provides an 
update to residents and groups in Outer South. It also provides an opportunity for 
community groups to promote their work and events to the wider community.  

 
3.9 The Council has recently launched ‘Talking Point’ which is an online consultation 

portal.  It contains details of all consultation council departments are undertaking.  It 
will in the future have the ability to be used as a consultation website, so that 
residents can leave comments online.  At the moment it provides details of what is 
being consulted on, and how residents can take part.  It also has a section where 
residents can find out the results of consultation and hopefully see how we have 
improved services as a result.  The Area Committee could take advantage of this 
technology as a further way of consulting with residents of Outer South Leeds who 
may not be able to attend an event, but want to leave their views. 

 
 
 

Page 31



3.10  A major event funded by the Area Committee and supported by the Area 
Management Team is the Morley Literature Festival. This annual event held in mid 
October has given the Area Management Team an opportunity to support and 
develop the capacity of residents through the establishment of the ‘Festival 
Organising Committee’ and the ‘Friends of Morley Literature Festival’. The third 
Morley Literature Festival in 2008 had over 1500 people attend events over the seven 
days of the festival. This level of participation, predominantly by the local community, 
has developed community spirit and raised the profile of the Area Committee through 
its financial support to the festival.  

 
3.11 The Parish and Town Councils within the Outer South area are recognised as key  

partners for the Area Committee for engaging with residents and in the delivery of 
projects requiring the input of local communities.  

 
3.11.1 The Participatory Budgeting pilot held in Drighlington in 2008 demonstrates the 

excellent work that can be achieved when the Area Committee and Parish Councils 
work in partnership.  ‘Big Spender’ successfully met the ADP priorities of increasing 
the number of people feeling empowered to have a say in local decision making and 
developing community spirit. Drighlington Parish Council are building on this positive 
community engagement activity by considering the development of a Parish Plan with 
support from the Area Management Team. This process will engage with all residents 
on services and facilities within Drighlington and what developments they would like to 
see.  

 
3.12  Rothwell Ward Members are currently considering support for the production of 

Design Statements which can also be used as a vehicle for engagement and 
recording residents views and ideas for the development of their area. Area 
Management are currently working with Leeds City Council partners and local 
residents to develop a proposal to be reported to the Area Committee.  

 
3.13 The Area Committee has also supported consultations on Smithy and Thorpe 

Recreational Grounds. Parks and Countryside were commissioned by the Area 
Committee to engage with partners and residents to record their views on the planned 
proposals. Youth Service, Tingley TARA and Parks and Countryside Officers 
consulted Members, residents and young people through questionnaires, public 
meetings and information boards on their views of the planned development 
proposals. 

 
4.0 Future Arrangements 
 
4.1 For residents to feel they are involved in local decision making and promote Members 

as community champions, the Area Committee needs to strengthen their role in the 
community engagement process. 

 
4.2 Area Committees can influence and change service delivery on behalf of residents 

through their Area Delivery Plan (ADP). Council service departments now have a duty 
to consult with Area Committees when developing their annual service plans – and 
issues identified in the ADP can be used as a tool for influencing service planning. 

 
4.3 The Area Committee has agreed to hold two community engagement events per ward 

per year.  It is proposed these form the central focus of the Area Committee’s 
community engagement plan to influence the ADP.   

 

Page 32



4.4 It is proposed the events should focus on innovative ways to involve local people in 
identifying the priorities for next year’s ADP.  Officers will talk Members through the 
choices of style and location of the event in each ward and the final format can be 
agreed locally through Ward Member briefings.   

 
4.5 An indicative timetable is suggested below.  Final dates will be locally determined in 

consultation with local ward members;  
 

• Autumn. Engagement activities should be an integral part of the service 
planning process so that results can be fed directly into decisions about 
service provision. This event will provide an opportunity for local residents to 
identify local priorities and help shape the Area Delivery Plan.  By defining 
issues and solving problems together, the public and local services can target 
resources where they are most needed. This helps the Area Committee to 
provide services that are more responsive to the needs of local communities. 

• Summer. This event can be an opportunity for a summer festival style event. 
It will provide an opportunity for the Area Committee to feedback to residents 
what it has done with the information they provided at the first event, and 
celebrate what progress has been made over the year around achieving the 
ADP. 

4.6 Because we are already half way through the year, it is proposed to hold the service 
planning events in spring 2009.  This will still enable resident’s views to influence the 
ADP for 2009/10, but may mean we don’t have as much progress to report back at 
the summer event as we would do in future years. 

4.7 Publicity for the events will be key.  A comprehensive publicity plan will be prepared 
for each event and Ward Members will be consulted as part of this process.  Effective 
publicity can be costly.  The Area Committee is asked to approve a top up to the 
communication budget to enable us to effectively publicise and stage these future 
events.  The specific funding request is referred to in the Wellbeing report presented 
elsewhere. 

5.0 Potential Methods of Community Engagement 

5.1 Area Management recognise Ward wide events are unlikely to engage everyone 
across an area.  People have different lifestyles and different preferences for how 
they want to interact with the Council.  

5.2  A variety of methods are available, some listed below, officers will talk Members 
through these choices at Ward member meetings to aid members in considering what 
format would best suit the local situation. 

5.3  Planning for Real  

A structured consultation method that uses a map of the neighbourhood to ascertain 
what physical changes people want in their area. Members of community can come 
and highlight key issues such as anti-social behaviour, environmental problems, and 
suggest solutions. The information gathered at this event will be used to inform the 
development of the ADP. 

 

 
Page 33



5.4  A Celebration Event  

A celebration event hosted by the Area Committee would recognise and celebrate the 
positive contribution of voluntary organisations make to the outer area. Both in terms 
of the support and networks they offer to residents, and also the service delivery 
contribution they make in the area.  It is suggested that this event will also provide the 
opportunity to consult with community members around the issues in their locality to 
inform the development of the ADP.  

5.5 Market Place and Roadshows 

A market place type set up to a community engagement event, with various agencies 
attending with stalls to provide information and advice to people attending the 
sessions  

5.6 Network Meals 

 Strong communities are built when different people choose to sit down together, talk 
and connect with one another. Network meals are informal and create opportunities to 
make this happen.  Issues raised and these meetings are recorded and can be used 
to feed into the ADP. 

5.7  Participatory Budgeting (PB) 

 Funding is identified for an area and promoted to the community group as a budget 
which they will decide how it is spent in their neighbourhood. Consultation is 
completed with residents on issues and projects developed to tackle these issues. 
The process culminates in a ‘Decision Day’ held in a local community building where 
residents hear presentations on projects and vote on which ones which get funding.  

5.8  Following a presentation by Area Management Team, £30,000 match funding has 
been secured from the AVH Outer South Area Panel towards the Area Committee PB 
community engagement projects in 2008/09 and 2009/10. A request for Area 
Committee to consider match funding this initiative is referred to in the Wellbeing 
report presented elsewhere. 

5.9  Members are asked to note that following the increase in levels of community 
engagement activities, it is likely that in the future there will be a number of funding 
submissions to the Area Committee to support projects that will be developed out of 
the engagement process. 

6.0 Other Departments / Agencies Consultation Activities 

6.1 Council departments and other agencies will be required to consult with residents in 
the locality, and it is important that this is recognised and linked in with the Area 
Committee’s community engagement plan.  The report already refers to the ‘Talking 
Point’ website which will list all Council consultation.  

6.2 As part of the community engagement plan we will keep a list of area based 
consultation activities other agencies are carrying out, and where possible and 
appropriate, try and link these in with any community engagement events being 
organised by Area Management.  This list will also be useful for informing members 
and community groups in the area as a source of publicity for the departments. 

 

Page 34



7.0 Implications For Council Policy and Governance 
 
7.1 There are no direct implications associated with Council Policy and Governance as a 

result of this report. 
 
8.0 Legal and Resource Implications 
 
8.1 There are no direct legal implications associated with this report.  
 
9.0 Recommendations 
 
9.1 The Area Committee is requested to: 
 

a) Note the contents of this report 
b) Approve the community engagement plan for 2008/09 
c) Agree to receive a detailed plan based on the outcome of further discussions with 

Ward Members. 
 
 
Background Papers 
 

Ø Community Engagement 25th February 2008 
 
Ø Area Committee Roles 2008/09 1st September 2008 

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Report of the Director of Environments and Neighbourhoods 
 
South Leeds (Outer) Area Committee  
 
Date:  Monday 8th December 2008 
 
Subject: Operation Champion 
 

        
  
 
 
 

 
 
Executive Summary 

This report provides the Area Committee with an update on the recent Outer South 
Operation Champion, coordinated by Area Management Team and held in October 2008.   
 
1.0 Purpose Of This Report 
 
1.1  This report summarises the activities and achievements of the Operation Champion 

held in the Tingley and West Ardsley areas of Ardsley and Robin Hood ward.  
 
2.0 Background Information 
 
2.1 Operation Champion is a multi agency crime and grime initiative.  It brings together a 

range of agencies working in partnership to: 
 

• Reduce crime and anti social behaviour. 

• Tackle environmental issues such as litter, rubbish dumping and graffiti removal. 

• Provide public reassurance and support. 
 
2.2 The most recent Operation Champion was held from the 14th to 16th October 2008, 

and concentrated on specific streets in Tingley and West Ardsley where anti-social 
behaviour was identified by partner agencies as a significant problem.  

 
 

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap  
 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

Ardsley and Robin Hood 
 

Originator: Kate Sibson 
 
Tel:  2475517        

 

 

 

Delegated Executive 
Function available 
for Call In 

 

Council 
Function 

Delegated Executive 
Function not available for 
Call In Details set out in the 
report 

 X 

 
 

                Ward Members consulted 
                (referred to in report) 
 

Agenda Item 12

Page 37



2.3 The Operation coincided with the Home Office’s ‘Not in my Neighbourhood Week’, an 
initiative to raise awareness of the work carried out by agencies to tackle crime and 
anti-social behaviour at a local level. Safer Leeds had funds to support this initiative 
and provided £1,000 additional funding for the Operation. This will be used to fund 
anti-climb paint on Blackgates Primary School.  

 
2.4 The range of agencies involved in the Operation included Area Management, West 

Yorkshire Police, West Yorkshire Fire Service, HM Courts Service, HM Customs and 
Excise, DVLA, Aire Valley Homes, ASBU, Environmental Services, Probation Service, 
Environmental Health and Victim Support. 

 
3.0 Outcomes from Operation Champion 
 
3.1      A planning meeting was held two weeks before the Operation to identify priority 

neighbourhoods and seek commitment from partner agencies, co-ordinate work and 
maximise the impact. An environmental audit was also carried out and jobs allocated 
to individual services.  

 
3.2 The activities and outcomes from the Operation are as follows:  
 
 Community Engagement 
 
3.3 A school gate consultation was carried out on 10th October with parents at Blackgates 

Primary School. The purpose of the consultation was to publicise Operation 
Champion and identify additional areas where anti-social behaviour, fly tipping and 
litter are an issue for local residents.  

 
3.4 Police Community Support officers and officers from the Area Management Team, 

Aire Valley Homes and Fire Service carried out a door to door survey in the streets 
around the Fairleighs and Eastleighs to provide reassurance, gather intelligence and 
offer fire home safety checks.  

 
3.5 A newsletter was distributed to 500 households providing information on the 

Operation, current community safety initiatives including ‘Dob in a Dealer’ and the 
‘Lighten Up’ campaign, as well as useful telephone numbers.  

 
3.6 The Anti-Social Behaviour Unit organised a publicity stand at Morley Asda for two 

days of the Operation. They were supported by officers from the Police, Safer Leeds 
and Victim Support. The stall offered advice and reassurance, and a range of crime 
prevention materials for sale at discount prices.  

 
 Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour  
 
3.7 Officers from the Police, Anti-Social Behaviour Unit and Aire Valley Homes visited 

seven properties where occupants were believed to be responsible for anti-social 
behaviour in the area. This work was supported by door to door reassurance visits to 
neighbouring properties to encourage reporting and update on action being taken.  

 
3.8 DVLA carried out patrols on one day supported by police officers, 14 tickets issued. 
 
3.9 Police and Parkswatch carried out off road motorbike patrols in known hotspots for 

nuisance motorbikes.  
 

Page 38



3.10  HM Customs, supported by police officers, stopped and checked 117 vehicles for 
illegal use of red diesel. No detections were made 

 
3.11 HM Courts Services, supported by police officers, spent one day in the area to serve 

civilian warrants.  
 
3.12 The Youth Service undertook outreach work on Tuesday evening in ASB hotspots 

identified by partner agencies. One group of well behaved young people were 
approached, and advised of youth provision in the area.  

 
Environmental Activity 

 
3.13 Streetscene provided a team over three days to clear fly tipped land between Garden 

House Lane and Eastleigh Drive and on Northfield Place.  
 
3.14   Aire Valley Homes estate caretakers cleared untidy gardens. 
 
3.15    Probation Services cut back and cleared a ginnel between Eastleigh Drive and the 

doctor’s surgery on Bradford Road.  
   
3.16 Environmental Enforcement Officers inspected 143 properties with 11 referrals for 

further waste in garden enforcement action. 26 warning letters sent to suspected fly 
tippers and four new enquiries started. 3 commercial premises within the Champion 
area were visited as part of on-going enforcement activity.  

 
4.0 Evaluation 
 
4.1 A de-brief session was held after the operation to evaluate its success. Partners 

viewed the levels of community engagement and involvement from agencies in the 
operation as very positive. The one day of activities targeting ASB  issues, was 
highlighted as a format that was effective and had a positive impact on offenders and 
victims. Abandoned vehicle officer, dog warden and trading standards were identified 
as agencies to engage with future operations where appropriate.  

 
5.0 Future Operations 
 
5.1  A schedule of future Operations for 2009 is within the Area Managers Report to be 

presented to members. The Outer South Operation Champions are scheduled for the 
following dates:  

 24th – 26th February 2009 – Morley South 
 4th – 6th August 2009 – Morley North 
 
6.0 Implications For Council Policy and Governance 
 
6.1 There are no direct implications for the above as a result of this report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39



7.0 Legal and Resource Implications 
 
7.1 There are no legal implications as a result of this report.  
 
7.2 At the July Area Committee, Members approved £400 towards the two planned 

Operation Champions in 2008/09. The total budget for the Ardsley and Robin Hood 
Champion was £1,200. This was £1,000 from the Home Office as part of the ‘Not in 
My Neighbourhood Week’ and £200 from the Area Committee. 

 
7.3 The budget for Operation Champion was as follows: 
 Community Centre venue hire   £162 
 Discount vouchers for crime reduction equipment £40 
 Police overtime for off road bike patrols  £364 
 Anti-climb paint  £624 
 Total  £1,190 
 
8.0 Conclusion 
 
8.1 The Operation Champion in Tingley & West Ardsley was a successful operation, 

supported by a variety of agencies and well publicised within the local community. 
 
8.2 A de-brief session took place with participating agencies on 14th November, updating 

on actions taken and providing feedback on new referrals from the Operation.  
 
8.3 Action on Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour is reviewed monthly at the police led multi-

agency tasking meeting.  
 
9.0 Recommendations 
 
9.1 The Outer South Area Committee is asked to note this report.   
 
 
Background Papers 
 

Ø Operation Champion 7th July 2008 
 

Page 40



 
Report of the Director of Environments and Neighbourhoods   
 
Outer South Leeds Area Committee  
 
Date: Monday 8th December 2008 
 
Subject: Outer South Area Committee Well being Budget Report 
 

        
  
 
 
 

 
 
Executive Summary 

This report seeks to provide Members with: 

a)  the current position on the Well being Budget. 

b)  details of the 2008/09 Well being budget allocations. 

c)  details of revenue and capital funding for consideration and approval 

d)  details revenue projects agreed to date (Appendix 1) 

e)  details of capital projects agreed to date (Appendix 2). 

 

Members are asked to note the current position regarding the Well being budget, the position 
of the Small Grants Budget, and agree any actions.  

 
1.0 Purpose Of This Report 
 

The report provides:  
 

• An update on both the revenue and capital elements of the Area Committee’s 
budget. 

• Details of projects that require approval 

• A summary of all revenue and capital projects agreed to date 

• Small Grant applications which have been approved. 

 

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap  
 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

Ardsley & Robin Hood 
Morley North 
Morley South 
Rothwell 
 
 

Originator:  
Thomas O’Donovan 
Tel: 224 3040 

 

 

 

Delegated Executive 
Function available 
for Call In 

 

Council 
Function 

Delegated Executive 
Function not available for 
Call In Details set out in the 
report 

 X 
 

 

                Ward Members consulted 
                (referred to in report) 
    

Agenda Item 13

Page 41



2.0 Background Information 
 

2.1 Each Area Committee has been allocated a Well being Budget which it is responsible 
for administering. The aim of this budget is to support the social, economic and 
environmental wellbeing of the area by using the funding to support projects that 
contribute towards the delivery of the Area Delivery Plan (ADP). 

 

2.2      The Well being Budget for the Outer South is comprised of a revenue and capital  

allocation. The revenue allocation for 2008/09 financial year, approved by the 
Executive Board, has been confirmed as £203,880. The capital allocation is £106,700 
for the financial year 2008/2009.  

 
3.0 Well being Budget Position 
 

Members should note the following points:-  

 

3.1 Revenue 2007/08 

 

3.1.1 The total amount of revenue funding available for 2007/08 was £409,241. 
 
3.1.2 The Area Committee is asked to note that £256,105 had been allocated and spent 

from the 2007/08 Well being Revenue Budget as listed in Appendix 1.  
 
3.1.3 Therefore, the balance of the 2007/08 well being fund to be rolled forward to 2008/09 

is £153,136. 
 
3.1.4 These figures include the additional allocation of £50,000 revenue approved by 

Executive Board for each Area Committee 2007/08. 
 

3.2 Revenue 2008/09 

 

3.2.1  The revenue budget for 2008/09 approved by Executive Board 2008/09 is £203,880. 
 
3.2.2 The amount of roll-forward of unallocated funds from the 2007/08 budget is £153,136. 
 
3.2.3 Therefore the total amount of revenue funding available to the Area Committee for 

2008/09 is £357,016. 
 
3.2.4 The Area Committee is asked to note that £321,561 has already been allocated from 

the 2008/09 Well being Revenue Budget as listed in Appendix 1. This leaves a 
balance yet to be committed of £35,455. 

 

3.2.5  These commitments for 2008/09 include proposed ringfenced amounts for small 
grants, skips, communication, community centres and neighbourhood improvement 
plans that have been approved. 

 

Page 42



3.3.6  The ringfenced amounts for 2008/09 outlined in Appendix 1 have the actual spend in 
brackets. 

 

3.3 Capital 

 

3.3.1 Of the £587,008 capital funding allocated to the Area Committee for 2004/09 a total of 
£429,689.53 has been committed to date leaving a balance of £157,318.47.    

 
3.3.2 Members are asked to note the capital allocation by Ward. 

The spend broken down by Ward is as follows:  
 

 Ardsley and 
Robin Hood 

Morley North Morley South Rothwell 

2004-08 
allocation 

£120,077 £120,077 £120,077 £120,077 

2008/09 
allocation 

£26,675 £26,675 £26,675 £26,675 

Spend to date £78,945.94 £116,077.41 £120,592.38 £114,073.80 

New Balance £67,806.06 £30,674.59 £26,159.62 £32,678.20 

 

3.3.3 Members are invited to bring forward suitable capital projects to be developed by 
Area Management Team. 

 

3.3.4    Members are asked to note that at present the NIP areas have been given no 
capital allocations and therefore any capital projects for the NIP areas must be 
submitted to the Area Committee for approval. 

 

4.0 Well being Projects 

 

4.1 Appendix 1 details revenue projects that have been commissioned by the Area 
Committee to date, including a current position statement and project outputs.  

 

4.2 It is possible that some of the projects in Appendix 1 may not use their allocated 
spend. This could be for several reasons including the project no longer going ahead, 
the project not taking place within the dates specified in the funding agreement or 
failure to submit monitoring reports. Due to this the revenue balance may be greater 
than the amount specified in 3.2.4.  

 

4.3 Details of projects agreed for the capital budget to date, including a current position 
statement and project outputs are listed in Appendix 2. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 43



 

4.4 Members are asked to consider the following projects:- 

 
4.4.1  Project Title: Outer South Communications Budget 

Name of Group or Organisation: Area Management 
Total Project Cost: £10,000  
Amount proposed from Well being Budget 2008/2009: £5,000 revenue (£5,000 
already approved) 
Ward Covered: All Wards 
Project Summary: Members approved £5,000 for an Outer South Communications 
budget to enable effective communication and consultation on Area Committee 
issues. Outer South newsletters and publicity for community groups are examples of 
work funded through the budget. To continue and develop the Area Committees role 
of community engagement, the Outer South Area Management Team has identified a 
community engagement framework to improve resident’s participation and influence 
over service delivery through the Area Delivery Plan. Members are asked to consider 
increasing the amount allocated to the communications budget in recognition of this. 
The additional funding will be used for venue costs, promotional material to increase 
the awareness of Outer South Area Committee events and continue to support 
community groups in promoting their work.  
 
Area Committee/Area Delivery Plan Key Themes and Action Plan Priorities: 
This proposal supports the Area Committee priority to increase the number of people 
engaged in activities to meet community needs and improve the quality of life for local 
residents, under the ADP theme of ‘Stronger Communities’. 
 

4.4.2  Project Title: Youth Bus 
Name of Group or Organisation: Youth Service 
Total Project Cost: £76,197 
Amount proposed from Well being Budget 2008/2009: £6,960 revenue 
Ward Covered: All Wards 
Project Summary: At present the mobile provision has been operational since 20th 
October 2008 and is delivering sessions for sixteen and a half hours per week 
covering the Ardsley & Robin Hood / Rothwell Wards. The Youth Service, is currently 
recruiting staff who when appointed will see the unit operational five nights per week 
across the Outer South Area. The mobile provision is new to the Outer South Area 
and is aimed primarily at young people aged 13+, the facility will enable the Youth 
Service to focus its work  in parts of the area that have previously been difficult to 
engage with young people. The priorities for the Youth Service are to provide 
guidance, support and be an advocate while assisting young people to develop their 
lifestyle. Youth Workers aim to guide young people into becoming more active citizens 
within their community, while addressing issues of anti social / criminal behaviour. The 
mobile is a warm welcoming facility that is proving popular and reducing the level of 
ASB reports. The mobile provision will increase the number of opportunities for young 
people to engage in positive activities. 

 
The facility aims to contribute to the reduction of anti social behaviour and target 
areas of concerns. Young people will have access to facilities that support the 
reduction teenage pregnancies / STD’s. Young people will be able to utilise their 

Page 44



social time in a positive manner, and supported in directing their energy into 
constructive outcomes. 

 
The facility will aim to develop positive relationships between young people / youth 
workers, residents and the Police, reducing the negative image of young people in the 
community. 

 
Youth Service will work with partners such as the Police, Members and AMT to 
identify priority areas in addition to those already listed by Youth Service Managers: 
Ardsley & Robin Hood (West Ardsley / Robin Hood / Hopefields) 
Rothwell Ward (Wood Lane /  Woodlesford) 
Morley North (Drighlington / Gildersome) 
Morley South ( Central Morley / Newlands) 

 
Youth Service Match Funding 
Purchase of the mobile    £40,000 
Youth Workers @ 5 hours per night  £27,297 
@ £13.48 = £202.20 @ 3 night’s  
= £606.60 @ 45 weeks per year      
Fuel £120.00 per month @ 12 month   £1,440.00 
Parking per annum   £500 
Total from Leeds Youth Service       £69,237.00 

 
A breakdown of funding is provided below.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Area Committee/Area Delivery Plan Key Themes and Action Plan Priorities: 
This proposal supports the Area Committee priority to reduce offending by developing 
and supporting diversionary activities, under the ADP theme of ‘Thriving 
Communities’. 
 
 
 

 

Item Number Cost Total 

Laptop Computer 4 £430 £1720 

Computer Dongles 4 £75 £300 

Monthly Internet Access 4 £20 £960 

Play station 3 Console 1 £350 £350 

Nintendo Wii Console 1 £200 £200 

Xbox 360 Console 1 £200 £200 

Mixture of Games (4 Each)
  

12 £40 £480 

Sports Equipment  £750 £750 

Educational and Social 
development Games 

 £750 £750 

Arts and crafts materials 1 £750 £750 

Consumables (Paper / 
Refreshments / Food)  

 £500 £500 

 £6,960 

Page 45



 
 
 
4.4.3   Project Title: Morley Elderly Action Building Extension  

Name of Group or Organisation: Morley Elderly Action 
Total Project Cost: £90,000  
Amount proposed from Well being Budget 2008/2009: £40,000 capital 
Ward Covered: All Morley, parts of Ardsley and Robin Hood 
Project Summary: Morley Elderly Action (MEA) assist the over 60s to live 
independently at home. The Tea Rooms and meeting areas supply a friendly 
environment for the elderly, combat social isolation and via games and quizzes also 
encourage good mental health. MEA have identified the need to create additional 
usable space that will expand the use of their headquarters building and offer further 
services. 

 
The project will allow for the formation of an extension to the existing Tea Rooms, an 
additional meeting room and a wheelchair accessible disabled adapted toilet at the 
lower level of our office building to serve the Tea Rooms and meeting room.  
 
The whole project will significantly enhance MEA ability to provide more services to 
the elderly of Greater Morley in line with their mission statement of “Assisting the over 
60s to live independently at home” and will place them in a stronger position to better 
serve the public by offering a greater range of midweek daily services.  
 
Project benefits include: 
 

• Additional room to act in a day centre capacity 

• Additional room to offer meal services 

• Provide access to the internet (silver surfing service). 

• Additional room to provide companionship, friendship opportunities, activities and 
services to enhance the quality of life for the over 60s. 

 

The project will be delivered in phases: 
Planning and architects involvement 
Conversion of current boiler house into meeting room 
Creation of disabled adapted toilet 
Drainage 
Footings 
Final phase of building and outfitting the conservatory 

 
An application is being made to Biffa for a sum of up to £50,000 towards the project 
costs. Planning permission has been granted for the building works and the 
anticipated start date of the project is June 2009 (subject to funding being in place). 
 
Members are asked to consider approving this funding request subject to confirmation 
that the full project costs have been secured. 
 
Area Committee/Area Delivery Plan Key Themes and Action Plan Priorities: 

Page 46



This proposal supports the Area Committee priority action to support groups who help 
vulnerable people to leave independent lives, under the ADP theme of ‘Health and 
Wellbeing’. 
 

4.4.4   Project Title: Participatory Budgeting 
Name of Group or Organisation: Area Management 
Total Project Cost: £70,000 
Amount proposed from Well being Budget 2008/2009: £40,000 revenue 
Ward Covered: All Wards 
Project Summary: As outlined in the Community Engagement Report earlier on the 
agenda, Area Management have recommended Participatory Budgeting (PB) as a 
process to effectively achieve the Area Committees community engagement role. 
Area Management Team (AMT), in partnership with Aire Valley Homes and 
Drighlington Parish Council, completed a successful Participatory Budgeting (PB) 
Pilot in South Leeds. This pilot was based in Drighlington, and included the priority 
neighbourhood of Oakwells and Fairfaxes. 

 
The principle behind PB is that local residents decide how a pot of funding is spent in 
their area to benefit the community. PB is an excellent form of community 
engagement, building capacity amongst residents including raising their confidence 
and understanding of how to resolve local problems themselves. 

 
The process involves identifying projects that can be delivered within the timescale 
and meet the agreed criteria. Where possible local community groups and individuals 
are encouraged to complete an application form to deliver the project themselves. In 
some cases this is not appropriate and local partners and agencies will apply for 
funding, with support from residents, to deliver the project e.g. Groundwork, Parks 
and Countryside, Parish Council, Police or the Fire Service. 

 
The community development work culminates in a ‘Decision Day’ where 
representatives from each of the projects present their idea to the community at a 
local venue. Residents score the projects on value for money, community benefit and 
achievability. Projects are ranked based on the scores and the funding is distributed 
down the list until it has run out. The unsuccessful projects are supported in 
identifying alternative funding sources. 

 
Following a presentation by AMT, £30,000 match funding has been secured from the 
Aire Valley Homes Outer South Area Panel towards the Area Committee PB 
community engagement projects in 2008/09 and 2009/10. The Area Committee are 
asked to allocate £40,000 to deliver PB initiatives in neighbourhoods across the Outer 
South during 2008/09 and 2009/10. PB provides the Area Committee with the 
opportunity to engage effectively with residents, raise its profile amongst residents 
and fund projects that have a positive impact on the communities in the Outer South. 

 
Area Committee/Area Delivery Plan Key Themes and Action Plan Priorities: 
This proposal supports the Area Committee priority action to increase in the number 
of local people that are empowered to gave a greater voice and influence over local 
decision making and a greater role in public service delivery, under the ADP theme of 
‘Stronger Communities’. 

 

Page 47



 

5.0 Small Grants Update 
 

5.1 Four small grants have been approved since the last meeting and are listed here for 
information. 

   

Organisation Project Amount 

Churwell Junior Youth 
Club 

Churwell Junior Youth 
Club(Start Up) 

£500 

St Paul’s Community 
Centre 

Kitchen Upgrade £481 

 
5.2 Members are asked to note the small grants as outlined in 5.1.  
 

6.0 Implications For Council Policy and Governance 
 
6.1  There are no direct implications for the above as a result of this report. 
 
7.0 Legal and Resource Implications 
 
7.1  Legal implications as a result of this report will be reflected in any subsequent                                       
       Funding Agreements and Contracts to Tender that arise from projects funded by  
        the Well being Budget. 

 
7.2  Resource implications will be that the remaining balance of the Well being Budget for                  

revenue will be reduced and remaining balance of the Well being Budget for capital 
will be reduced as a result of any projects funded.  

 
8.0 Conclusions 
 
8.1   The report provides up to date information on the Area Committee’s Well being       

Budget. 

9.0 Recommendations 

 

9.1  Members of the Outer South Area Committee are requested to: 

• Note the revenue and capital allocations for 2008/2009 as listed in 2.2 

• Note the budget position of the Well being Budget as set out at 3.2 and 3.3. 

• Consider and agree capital and revenue project funding detailed in section 4.0 

• Note the Well-being revenue projects agreed as listed in Appendix 1. 

• Note the Well-being capital projects already agreed as listed in Appendix 2. 

• Note the small grant applications approved as set out in 5.0. 

 

 

 

 

Page 48



Background Papers: 

 

Ø Well Being Report 20th October 2008 

 

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



8
th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 A
re
a
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
 

 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

D
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v

\D
a

ta
\A

g
e

n
d

a
It

e
m

D
o

c
s

\4
\2

\5
\A

I0
0

0
1

6
5

2
4

\O
u

te
rS

o
u

th
A

re
a

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
W

e
llb

e
in

g
B

u
d

g
e

tR
e

p
o

rt
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

1
0

.d
o

c
 

1
 

O
u
te
r 
S
o
u
th
 W
e
ll
 B
e
in
g
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 P
ro
je
c
ts
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
o
 d
a
te

 
 

P
ro
je
c
t 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 

A
c
tu
a
l 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

c
o
s
ts
 0
7
/0
8
 

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 C
o
s
ts
 

a
n

d
 (
s
p
e
n
d
 t
o
 

d
a
te
) 
0
8
/0
9
 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tp
u
ts
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

A
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 

£
1

9
9

,8
8

0
 

£
2

0
3

,8
8

0
 

 
 

 

C
a
rr
y
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 

£
1

5
9

,3
6

1
 

£
1

5
3

,1
3

6
 

 
 

 

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
A
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 

£
5

0
,0

0
0

 
 

 
 

 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

T
O
T
A
L
 

£
4
0
9
,2
4
1
 

£
3
5
7
,0
1
6
 

 
 

 

O
u

te
r 

S
o

u
th

 S
k

ip
s

 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
S

o
u

th
 E

a
s

t 
A

re
a

 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
  

£
5

,8
6

9
 

£
5

,0
0

0
 

(£
1

,7
5

0
) 

T
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

k
ip

s
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 u
s

e
. 

•
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 
g

ro
u

p
s

  
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
 c

le
a

n
-

u
p

s
 

•
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 s
tr

e
e

ts
c

e
n

e
 i

n
 

lo
c

a
l 

n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

 

•
 

In
c

re
a

s
e

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 p

ri
d

e
 

O
u

te
r 

S
o

u
th

 S
m

a
ll 

G
ra

n
ts

 F
u

n
d

 
S

o
u

th
 E

a
s

t 
A

re
a

 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
 

£
5

,8
8

9
.2

1
 

 
£

1
0

,0
0

0
 

(£
6

,7
9

8
) 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
 s

m
a

ll 
g

ra
n

ts
 f

u
n

d
 f

o
r 

s
m

a
ll 

s
c

a
le

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 
b

a
s

e
d

 p
ro

je
c

ts
 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

 A
re

a
 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 P

la
n

 
p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

. 

•
 

V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 a
n

d
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 
g

ro
u

p
s

 
s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 g

ra
n

t 
a

id
 

•
 

In
c

re
a

s
e

d
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 a
c

ti
v

it
y

 

•
 

In
c

re
a

s
e

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 

•
 

In
c

re
a

s
e

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 p

ri
d

e
 

•
 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
A

re
a

 D
e

liv
e

ry
 

P
la

n
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

 

O
u

te
r 

S
o

u
th

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

s
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
o

u
th

 E
a

s
t 

A
re

a
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 
£

1
,0

4
8

.5
5

 
£

5
,0

0
0

 
(£

2
,6

3
5

.2
5

) 
 C

o
p

ie
r 

£
2

,4
8

3
  

(£
2

,4
8

2
.9

7
) 

A
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
to

 e
n

a
b

le
 

e
ff

e
c

ti
v

e
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 A

re
a

 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

 i
s

s
u

e
s

 i
n

 
th

e
 O

u
te

r 
S

o
u

th
 

•
 

5
 n

e
w

s
le

tt
e

rs
 

•
 

Q
u

e
s

ti
o

n
n

a
ir

e
s

 

•
 

P
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
a

l 
m

a
te

ri
a

l 

•
 

In
c

re
a

s
e

d
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s

s
 o

f 
th

e
 

O
u

te
r 

S
o

u
th

 A
re

a
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

•
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 c
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

 t
h

a
t 

c
a

n
 i

n
fo

rm
 l

o
c

a
l 

p
ro

je
c

ts
 

a
n

d
 p

la
n

s
. 

•
 

P
u

b
lic

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 i

n
 

p
ro

je
c

ts
 /

 p
la

n
s

. 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
A

re
a

 
- 

E
a

s
tl

e
ig

h
s

 &
 

F
a

ir
le

ig
h

s
 

S
o

u
th

 E
a

s
t 

A
re

a
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 
£

2
,0

3
4

.5
0

 
£

5
,0

0
0

 
(£

5
0

0
) 

 A
 p

la
n

 a
im

e
d

 a
t 

m
a

k
in

g
 

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 i

n
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

•
 

P
ro

je
c

ts
 a

im
e

d
 

a
t 

th
e

 p
ri

o
ri

e
s

 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

: 
T

h
e

 
e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t,
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 

•
 

N
a

rr
o

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 g
a

p
: 

im
p

ro
v

e
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 a
n

d
 

w
e

llb
e

in
g

 o
f 

th
e

 a
re

a
. 

Page 51



8
th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 A
re
a
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
 

 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

D
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v

\D
a

ta
\A

g
e

n
d

a
It

e
m

D
o

c
s

\4
\2

\5
\A

I0
0

0
1

6
5

2
4

\O
u

te
rS

o
u

th
A

re
a

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
W

e
llb

e
in

g
B

u
d

g
e

tR
e

p
o

rt
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

1
0

.d
o

c
 

2
 

P
ro
je
c
t 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 

A
c
tu
a
l 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

c
o
s
ts
 0
7
/0
8
 

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 C
o
s
ts
 

a
n

d
 (
s
p
e
n
d
 t
o
 

d
a
te
) 
0
8
/0
9
 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tp
u
ts
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

 
in

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t,

 
y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
. 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
A

re
a

 
- 

N
e

w
la

n
d

s
 &

 
D

e
n

s
h

a
w

s
 

S
o

u
th

 E
a

s
t 

A
re

a
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 
£

2
,7

6
6

 
N

IP
 w

o
rk

p
la

n
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

A
 p

la
n

 a
im

e
d

 a
t 

m
a

k
in

g
 

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 i

n
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

 

•
 

P
ro

je
c

ts
 a

im
e

d
 

a
t 

th
e

 5
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

’s
 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
: 

•
 

D
ru

g
s

, 
T

h
e

 
e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t,
 

A
S

B
, 

a
c

ti
v

it
ie

s
 

fo
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

•
 

N
a

rr
o

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 g
a

p
: 

im
p

ro
v

e
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 a
n

d
 

w
e

llb
e

in
g

 o
f 

th
e

 a
re

a
. 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
A

re
a

 
- 

J
o

h
n

 O
'G

a
u

n
ts

 

S
o

u
th

 A
re

a
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
 

£
3

,7
2

6
.0

9
 

£
5

,0
0

0
 

(£
2

,7
5

1
) 

A
 p

la
n

 a
im

e
d

 a
t 

m
a

k
in

g
 

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 i

n
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

 

•
 

P
ro

je
c

ts
 a

im
e

d
 

a
t 

th
e

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 a

s
: 

•
 

A
S

B
, 

y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
, 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t,

 
u

n
e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t,

 
c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

in
v

o
lv

e
m

e
n

t 

•
 

N
a

rr
o

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 g
a

p
: 

im
p

ro
v

e
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 a
n

d
 

w
e

llb
e

in
g

 o
f 

th
e

 a
re

a
 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
A

re
a

 
–

 O
a

k
w

e
lls

 &
 

F
a

ir
fa

x
e

s
 

S
o

u
th

 E
a

s
t 

A
re

a
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

£
8

3
8

 
£

5
,0

0
0

 
(£

2
8

5
1

) 
A

 p
la

n
 a

im
e

d
 a

t 
m

a
k

in
g

 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 

•
 

P
ro

je
c

ts
 a

im
e

d
 

a
t 

th
e

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 o

f 
: 

A
S

B
, 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t,

 
y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

fa
c

ili
ti

e
s

. 

•
 

N
a

rr
o

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 g
a

p
: 

im
p

ro
v

e
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 a
n

d
 

w
e

llb
e

in
g

 o
f 

th
e

 a
re

a
. 

     

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
A

re
a

 
–

 H
a

rr
o

p
s

 

S
o

u
th

 E
a

s
t 

A
re

a
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

£
4

2
6

 
£

5
,0

0
0

 
(£

0
) 

A
 p

la
n

 a
im

e
d

 a
t 

m
a

k
in

g
 

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 i

n
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s
 

•
 

P
ro

je
c

ts
 a

im
e

d
 

a
t 

th
e

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
: 

C
ri

m
e

 
a

n
d

 A
S

B
, 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
 

•
 

N
a

rr
o

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 g
a

p
: 

im
p

ro
v

e
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 a
n

d
 

w
e

llb
e

in
g

 o
f 

th
e

 a
re

a
 

Page 52



8
th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 A
re
a
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
 

 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

D
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v

\D
a

ta
\A

g
e

n
d

a
It

e
m

D
o

c
s

\4
\2

\5
\A

I0
0

0
1

6
5

2
4

\O
u

te
rS

o
u

th
A

re
a

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
W

e
llb

e
in

g
B

u
d

g
e

tR
e

p
o

rt
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

1
0

.d
o

c
 

3
 

P
ro
je
c
t 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 

A
c
tu
a
l 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

c
o
s
ts
 0
7
/0
8
 

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 C
o
s
ts
 

a
n

d
 (
s
p
e
n
d
 t
o
 

d
a
te
) 
0
8
/0
9
 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tp
u
ts
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
A

re
a

 
–

 W
o

o
d

 L
a

n
e

 

S
o

u
th

 E
a

s
t 

A
re

a
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

£
4

2
6

 
£

5
,0

0
0

 
(£

0
) 

A
 p

la
n

 a
im

e
d

 a
t 

m
a

k
in

g
 

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 i

n
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s
 

•
 

P
ro

je
c

ts
 a

im
e

d
 

a
t 

th
e

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
: 

th
e

 
e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t,
 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 
a

n
d

 c
ri

m
e

 a
n

d
 

A
S

B
. 

  

•
 

N
a

rr
o

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 g
a

p
: 

im
p

ro
v

e
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 a
n

d
 

w
e

llb
e

in
g

 o
f 

th
e

 a
re

a
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 
C

e
n

tr
e

s
 

S
o

u
th

 E
a

s
t 

A
re

a
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

£
1

,0
0

0
 

£
5

,0
0

0
 

(£
0

) 
 

A
 r

in
g

fe
n

c
e

d
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
to

 c
o

v
e

r 
a

n
y

 
e

s
s

e
n

ti
a

l 
w

o
rk

 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 C
e

n
tr

e
s

 
S

u
b

-G
ro

u
p

. 
 

•
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 
c

e
n

tr
e

 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

. 

•
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

 

•
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 u
s

e
 

M
o

rl
e

y
 I

n
 B

lo
o

m
 

G
ro

u
p

s
 0

8
/0

9
 

M
o

rl
e

y
 i

n
 B

lo
o

m
 

£
0

 
£

2
,0

0
0

 
(£

0
) 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
M

o
rl

e
y

 i
n

 
B

lo
o

m
. 

•
 

P
la

n
ti

n
g

 
s

c
h

e
m

e
s

 i
n

 
M

o
rl

e
y

. 

•
 

C
le

a
n

e
r 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

 

•
 

V
ib

ra
n

t 
to

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
 

•
 

c
re

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 
s

p
ir

it
. 

 

M
o

rl
e

y
 I

n
 B

lo
o

m
 

0
7

/0
8

 
M

o
rl

e
y

 I
n

 B
lo

o
m

 0
7

/0
8

 
£

0
 

£
4

,1
4

0
 

(£
4

,1
3

8
.9

7
) 

 

 
•

 
 

•
 

 

R
o

th
w

e
ll 

in
 B

lo
o

m
 

R
o

th
w

e
ll 

in
 B

lo
o

m
 

£
4

7
,2

4
2

.3
3

 
£

2
,0

0
0

 
(£

0
) 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
R

o
th

w
e

ll 
in

 B
lo

o
m

. 
•

 
P

la
n

ti
n

g
 

s
c

h
e

m
e

s
 i

n
 

R
o

th
w

e
ll.

 

•
 

C
le

a
n

e
r 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

 

•
 

V
ib

ra
n

t 
to

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
 

•
 

C
re

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 
s

p
ir

it
. 

 

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

S
o

u
th

 E
a

s
t 

A
re

a
 

£
2

,4
8

3
 

£
5

7
,2

7
0

 
A

 T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

•
 

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

•
 

P
le

a
s

e
 r

e
fe

r 
to

 t
o

w
n

 

Page 53



8
th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 A
re
a
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
 

 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

D
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v

\D
a

ta
\A

g
e

n
d

a
It

e
m

D
o

c
s

\4
\2

\5
\A

I0
0

0
1

6
5

2
4

\O
u

te
rS

o
u

th
A

re
a

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
W

e
llb

e
in

g
B

u
d

g
e

tR
e

p
o

rt
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

1
0

.d
o

c
 

4
 

P
ro
je
c
t 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 

A
c
tu
a
l 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

c
o
s
ts
 0
7
/0
8
 

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 C
o
s
ts
 

a
n

d
 (
s
p
e
n
d
 t
o
 

d
a
te
) 
0
8
/0
9
 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tp
u
ts
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
 

(£
5

7
,2

7
0

) 
 (A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
£

1
0

,0
0

0
 I

n
c

o
m

e
 

fr
o

m
 M

o
rl

e
y

 
T

o
w

n
 C

o
u

n
c

il)
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
e

m
p

lo
y

e
d

 
to

 h
e

lp
 b

ri
n

g
 

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 

M
o

rl
e

y
 a

n
d

 R
o

th
w

e
ll 

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
fo

r 
M

o
rl

e
y

 a
n

d
 

R
o

th
w

e
ll.

 

c
e

n
tr

e
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
s

 

U
p

g
ra

d
e

 o
f 

C
o

lo
u

r 
P

h
o

to
c

o
p

ie
r 

S
o

u
th

 E
a

s
t 

A
re

a
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 
£

4
,2

1
5

 
£

4
,2

1
5

 
(£

0
) 

U
p

g
ra

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

A
re

a
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
te

a
m

’s
  

p
h

o
to

c
o

p
ie

r 

•
 

O
n

e
 u

p
g

ra
d

e
d

 
p

h
o

to
c

o
p

ie
r 

fo
r 

th
e

 O
u

te
r 

S
o

u
th

 
A

re
a

 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
. 

•
 

T
h

e
 c

a
p

a
c

it
y

 t
o

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

 
m

o
re

 q
u

e
s

ti
o

n
n

a
ir

e
s

, 
p

u
b

lic
it

y
 a

n
d

 n
e

w
s

le
tt

e
r 

to
 

a
 h

ig
h

e
r 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

. 
 

A
rd

s
le

y
 &

 R
o

b
in

 
H

o
o

d
 a

n
d

 R
o

th
w

e
ll 

G
a

rd
e

n
in

g
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 

C
a

re
 &

 R
e

p
a

ir
 

£
1

4
,0

5
0

 
£

1
6

,0
3

1
 

(£
8

,0
0

5
.5

0
) 

E
s

ta
b

lis
h

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
 

g
a

rd
e

n
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
fo

r 
R

o
th

w
e

ll 
th

a
t 

w
ill

 
b

e
 a

im
e

d
 a

t 
o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 (
p

e
o

p
le

 o
v

e
r 

6
0

) 
a

n
d

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 
d

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
 w

h
o

 a
re

 
c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y

 u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 

m
a

in
ta

in
 t

h
e

ir
 

g
a

rd
e

n
s

 

•
 

5
0

 g
a

rd
e

n
s

 i
n

 
th

e
 f

ir
s

t 
y

e
a

r 

•
 

7
5

 g
a

rd
e

n
s

 i
n

 
th

e
 s

e
c

o
n

d
 y

e
a

r 

•
 

1
0

0
 g

a
rd

e
n

s
 i

n
 

th
e

 t
h

ir
d

 y
e

a
r 

•
 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 

•
 

P
e

o
p

le
 b

e
in

g
 h

e
lp

e
d

 t
o

 
m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h

e
ir

 o
w

n
 h

o
m

e
s

 

•
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 s
a

fe
ty

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 

D
a

n
c

e
 C

la
s

s
e

s
 

D
a

n
c

e
 A

c
ti

o
n

 Z
o

n
e

 
L

e
e

d
s

 
£

9
,1

2
0

.0
0

 
£

1
5

,3
6

8
 

(£
1

5
,3

6
8

) 
D

a
n

c
e

 c
la

s
s

e
s

 f
o

r 
y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 a

t 
ri

s
k

 
o

f 
b

e
in

g
 i

n
v

o
lv

e
d

 i
n

 
a

n
ti

-s
o

c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v

io
u

r.
 

•
 

F
o

u
r 

d
a

n
c

e
 

c
la

s
s

e
s

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

O
u

te
r 

S
o

u
th

 

•
 

H
e

a
lt

h
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 t

o
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 

•
 

In
c

re
a

s
e

 i
n

 s
e

lf
 e

s
te

e
m

 f
o

r 
y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 i

n
v

o
lv

e
d

 

•
 

T
a

rg
e

te
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
t 

le
s

s
 r

is
k

 o
f 

c
o

m
m

it
ti

n
g

 a
n

ti
 

s
o

c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v

io
u

r 
 

M
o

re
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 –

 S
u

m
m

e
r 

A
c

ti
v

it
ie

s
 

Y
o

u
th

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 

£
8

,7
5

7
.0

7
 

£
1

0
,0

0
0

 
(£

1
0

,1
7

3
) 

In
v

o
lv

e
 m

o
re

 y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 i

n
 m

o
re

 
a

c
ti

v
it

ie
s

 

•
 

S
u

m
m

e
r 

a
c

ti
v

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

•
 

M
o

re
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 

in
v

o
lv

e
d

 i
n

 a
c

ti
v

it
ie

s
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
h

o
lid

a
y

s
 

Page 54



8
th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 A
re
a
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
 

 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

D
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v

\D
a

ta
\A

g
e

n
d

a
It

e
m

D
o

c
s

\4
\2

\5
\A

I0
0

0
1

6
5

2
4

\O
u

te
rS

o
u

th
A

re
a

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
W

e
llb

e
in

g
B

u
d

g
e

tR
e

p
o

rt
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

1
0

.d
o

c
 

5
 

P
ro
je
c
t 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 

A
c
tu
a
l 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

c
o
s
ts
 0
7
/0
8
 

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 C
o
s
ts
 

a
n

d
 (
s
p
e
n
d
 t
o
 

d
a
te
) 
0
8
/0
9
 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tp
u
ts
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

a
c

ro
s

s
 t

h
e

 O
u

te
r 

S
o

u
th

 a
re

a
. 

•
 

R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 o

f 
a

n
ti

 s
o

c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v

io
u

r 
in

 t
h

e
 

a
re

a
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 h

o
lid

a
y

s
. 

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 

W
o

rk
e

r 

S
o

u
th

 E
a

s
t 

A
re

a
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

£
2

9
,2

2
6

.4
4

 
£

3
1

,6
2

2
 (

e
n

d
 

d
a

te
 3

1
s

t  M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
0

9
) 

(£
1

3
,7

3
6

.6
9

) 

R
e

v
ie

w
 &

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 f
o

r 
 

•
 

E
a

s
tl

e
ig

h
s

/ 
F

a
ir

le
ig

h
s

 

•
 

N
e

w
la

n
d

s
/ 

  
  

  
D

e
n

s
h

a
w

s
 

•
 

J
o

h
n

 O
’G

a
u

n
ts

 

•
 

W
o

o
d

 L
a

n
e

 
E

s
ta

te
 

•
 

F
a

ir
fa

x
e

s
 a

n
d

 
O

a
k

w
e

lls
 

•
 

T
h

e
 H

a
rr

o
p

s
 

    

•
 

O
n

e
 w

o
rk

e
r 

(o
r 

tw
o

 p
a

rt
 t

im
e

 
w

o
rk

e
rs

) 
to

 h
e

lp
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s

 N
IP

 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 

•
 

N
IP

 a
c

ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 b

e
in

g
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 m
o

re
 

e
ff

e
c

ti
v

e
ly

 w
it

h
 g

re
a

te
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
. 

•
 

In
c

re
a

s
e

d
 s

o
c

ia
l 

c
a

p
it

a
l 

th
ro

u
g

h
 c

a
p

a
c

it
y

 b
u

ild
in

g
 o

f 
s

m
a

ll 
g

ro
u

p
s

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 
v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c

to
r.

 

S
it

e
 B

a
s

e
d

 
G

a
rd

e
n

e
rs

 
P

a
rk

s
 a

n
d

 C
o

u
n

tr
y

s
id

e
 

£
8

,2
5

0
 

£
6

0
,3

8
0

 
(£

2
2

,5
0

0
) 

 

S
it

e
 b

a
s

e
d

 
g

a
rd

e
n

e
rs

 a
t 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 p
a

rk
s

 

•
 

3
 f

u
ll 

ti
m

e
 

G
a

rd
e

n
e

rs
 f

o
r 

1
 

y
e

a
rs

. 

•
 C

ri
m

e
 r

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 

R
e

d
u

c
in

g
 f

e
a

r 
o

f 
c

ri
m

e
 

•
 In

c
re

a
s

in
g

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 a
n

d
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

•
 C

le
a

n
e

r 
s

a
fe

r 
p

u
b

lic
 g

re
e

n
 

s
p

a
c

e
s

 

M
o

rl
e

y
 L

it
e

ra
tu

re
 

F
e

s
ti

v
a

l 
S

o
u

th
 E

a
s

t 
A

re
a

 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
£

3
2

,8
0

0
 

(e
n

d
 d

a
te

 
3

1
s

t  O
c

t 
0

7
) 

 

£
1

5
,0

0
0

 
(£

1
5

,0
0

0
) 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 

th
e

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 

re
v

e
n

u
e

 
c

o
s

ts
 o

f 
h

o
ld

in
g

 t
h

e
 

e
v

e
n

t 

•
 

A
 f

iv
e

 d
a

y
 f

e
s

ti
v

a
l 

w
it

h
 a

 f
u

ll 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

. 

•
 In

c
re

a
s

e
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 s
p

ir
it

, 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
c

ti
v

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

fa
m

ili
e

s
. 

 

•
 E

n
c

o
u

ra
g

e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

o
rk

 

Page 55



8
th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 A
re
a
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
 

 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

D
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v

\D
a

ta
\A

g
e

n
d

a
It

e
m

D
o

c
s

\4
\2

\5
\A

I0
0

0
1

6
5

2
4

\O
u

te
rS

o
u

th
A

re
a

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
W

e
llb

e
in

g
B

u
d

g
e

tR
e

p
o

rt
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

1
0

.d
o

c
 

6
 

P
ro
je
c
t 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 

A
c
tu
a
l 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

c
o
s
ts
 0
7
/0
8
 

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 C
o
s
ts
 

a
n

d
 (
s
p
e
n
d
 t
o
 

d
a
te
) 
0
8
/0
9
 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tp
u
ts
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

£
1

3
,0

6
2

.5
0

 
(1

s
t  N

o
v

 0
7

 –
 

3
1

s
t  M

a
r 

0
8

) 
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 a

n
d

 
p

ri
v

a
te

 s
e

c
to

rs
. 

 

•
 E

n
g

e
n

d
e

r 
a

 s
tr

o
n

g
e

r 
c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 l

in
k

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 t
o

w
n

 
c

e
n

tr
e

. 
 

M
in

i 
T

e
n

n
is

 
        

O
u

te
r 

S
o

u
th

 P
ri

m
a

ry
 

S
c

h
o

o
ls

 
£

2
2

,5
0

0
 

£
5

0
0

 
(£

5
0

0
) 

M
in

i 
te

n
n

is
 c

o
a

c
h

in
g

 
to

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 i
n

 
O

u
te

r 
S

o
u

th
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 
s

c
h

o
o

ls
 

•
 

N
o

 o
f 

te
a

c
h

e
r 

tr
a

in
e

d
. 

•
 

N
o

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 

e
n

g
a

g
e

d
. 

  

•
 In

c
re

a
s

e
d

 p
h

y
s

ic
a

l 
a

c
ti

v
it

ie
s

 
fo

r 
s

c
h

o
o

ls
 c

h
ild

re
n

 t
o

 
in

c
re

a
s

e
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 

w
e

llb
e

in
g

 o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

R
o

th
w

e
ll 

6
0

0
 

C
e

le
b

ra
ti

o
n

s
 

R
o

th
w

e
ll 

6
0

0
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

 
£

5
,0

0
0

 
£

2
,0

0
0

 
(£

0
) 

A
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

a
c

ti
v

it
ie

s
 e

v
e

n
ts

 t
o

 
m

a
rk

 t
h

e
 6

0
0

th
 

a
n

n
iv

e
rs

a
ry

 o
f 

R
o

th
w

e
ll’

s
 R

o
y

a
l 

C
h

a
rt

e
r.

 

•
 

S
e

v
e

ra
l 

e
v

e
n

ts
 

a
n

d
 a

c
ti

v
it

ie
s

 r
a

n
 

b
y

 l
o

c
a

l 
c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

g
ro

u
p

s
 

•
 

E
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 p
e

o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 a
 

w
id

e
 v

a
ri

e
ty

 o
f 

b
a

c
k

g
ro

u
n

d
s

 
to

 s
h

a
re

 a
n

d
 a

p
p

re
c

ia
te

 t
h

e
 

c
u

lt
u

re
 a

n
d

 h
e

ri
ta

g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 
a

re
a

. 

•
 

U
s

e
 t

h
e

 c
e

le
b

ra
ti

o
n

s
 a

s
 

v
e

h
ic

le
 t

o
 r

e
g

e
n

e
ra

te
 t

h
e

 
W

a
rd

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 a
 v

a
ri

e
ty

 o
f 

m
e

th
o

d
s

, 
p

ro
m

o
ti

n
g

 
c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 p

ri
d

e
 a

n
d

 
id

e
n

ti
ty

. 
 

C
o

n
s

e
rv

a
ti

o
n

 
A

re
a

s
 A

u
d

it
 o

f 
M

o
rl

e
y

 a
n

d
 

R
o

th
w

e
ll 

S
o

u
th

 A
re

a
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
 

£
5

,0
0

0
 

£
1

6
,0

0
0

 
(£

1
6

,0
0

0
) 

T
o

 c
a

rr
y

 o
u

t 
a

 
c

o
n

s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 a

re
a

 
re

v
ie

w
 i

n
 b

o
th

 
R

o
th

w
e

ll 
a

n
d

 M
o

rl
e

y
 

  

•
 

C
o

n
s

e
rv

a
ti

o
n

 
s

tu
d

y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 

in
 b

o
th

 R
o

th
w

e
ll 

a
n

d
 M

o
rl

e
y

 

•
 

S
tu

d
y

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
 d

o
c

u
m

e
n

t 
to

 
s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c

e
 o

f 
b

u
ilt

 h
e

ri
ta

g
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 t

o
w

n
s

. 

Page 56



8
th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 A
re
a
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
 

 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

D
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v

\D
a

ta
\A

g
e

n
d

a
It

e
m

D
o

c
s

\4
\2

\5
\A

I0
0

0
1

6
5

2
4

\O
u

te
rS

o
u

th
A

re
a

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
W

e
llb

e
in

g
B

u
d

g
e

tR
e

p
o

rt
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

1
0

.d
o

c
 

7
 

P
ro
je
c
t 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 

A
c
tu
a
l 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

c
o
s
ts
 0
7
/0
8
 

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 C
o
s
ts
 

a
n

d
 (
s
p
e
n
d
 t
o
 

d
a
te
) 
0
8
/0
9
 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tp
u
ts
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

B
u

lb
 B

o
n

a
z

a
 

G
ro

u
n

d
w

o
rk

 
£

5
0

0
 

£
2

5
0

 
(£

0
) 

T
o

 p
la

n
t 

b
u

lb
s

 a
t 

k
e

y
 

lo
c

a
ti

o
n

s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 
to

w
n

 

•
 

B
u

lb
s

 p
la

n
te

d
  

•
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
 t

h
e

 a
p

p
e

a
ra

n
c

e
 o

f 
th

e
 t

o
w

n
 

M
o

rl
e

y
 H

e
ri

ta
g

e
 

S
o

c
ie

ty
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ro

p
e

rt
y

 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
£

1
,8

7
5

.0
0

 
£

4
0

0
 

(£
4

0
0

) 
P

ro
v

is
io

n
 o

f 
a

n
 

a
rc

h
iv

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

rl
e

y
 

H
e

ri
ta

g
e

 S
o

c
ie

ty
 

     

•
 

N
e

w
 a

rc
h

iv
e

 t
o

 
h

o
u

s
e

 a
n

d
 s

h
o

w
 

a
rt

e
fa

c
ts

 o
f 

M
o

rl
e

y
 H

e
ri

ta
g

e
 

S
o

c
ie

ty
 

 

•
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 g
ro

u
p

 

T
h

o
rp

e
 R

e
c

re
a

ti
o

n
 

G
ro

u
n

d
 

P
a

rk
s

 a
n

d
 C

o
u

n
tr

y
s

id
e

 
 

£
8

,0
0

0
 

(£
0

) 
D

e
s

ig
n

 f
e

e
s

 f
o

r 
c

o
n

s
tr

u
c

ti
o

n
 o

f 
n

e
w

 
p

la
y

g
ro

u
n

d
 a

n
d

 m
u

lt
i 

u
s

e
 g

a
m

e
s

 a
re

a
 a

t 
T

h
o

rp
e

 R
e

c
re

a
ti

o
n

 
G

ro
u

n
d

 
 

•
 

N
e

w
 p

la
y

g
ro

u
n

d
 

a
n

d
 g

a
m

e
s

 a
re

a
 

fo
r 

lo
c

a
l 

re
s

id
e

n
ts

 

•
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 g
ro

u
p

 

•
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
a

c
ti

v
it

ie
s

 f
o

r 
y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 

G
a

rd
e

n
 

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c

e
 

S
c

h
e

m
e

 M
o

rl
e

y
 

E
ld

e
rl

y
 A

c
ti

o
n

 

M
o

rl
e

y
 E

ld
e

rl
y

 A
c

ti
o

n
 

£
1

0
,0

0
0

 
£

7
,5

0
0

 
(£

7
,5

0
0

) 
P

ro
v

is
io

n
 o

f 
G

a
rd

e
n

 
M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 
S

c
h

e
m

e
 f

o
r 

e
ld

e
rl

y
 

a
n

d
 d

is
a

b
le

d
 w

h
o

 
a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y

 u
n

a
b

le
 

to
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h

e
ir

 
g

a
rd

e
n

s
 

  

•
 

1
0

0
 g

a
rd

e
n

s
 

v
is

it
e

d
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 

c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

y
e

a
r 

•
 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 

•
 

P
e

o
p

le
 b

e
in

g
 h

e
lp

e
d

 t
o

 
m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h

e
ir

 h
o

m
e

s
 

•
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 S
a

fe
ty

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 

P
ilo

t 
B

re
e

z
e

 
P

ro
je

c
t 

O
u

t 
o

f 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
A

c
ti

v
it

ie
s

 
T

e
a

m
, 

C
h

ild
re

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

£
4

,0
0

0
 

£
7

5
0

 
(£

0
) 

P
ilo

t 
o

f 
B

re
e

z
e

 C
a

rd
 

re
c

o
rd

in
g

 m
a

c
h

in
e

 
•

 
M

o
n

it
o

r 
a

tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e

 a
t 

B
re

e
z

e
 a

c
ti

v
it

ie
s

 
a

t 
5

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 
v

e
n

u
e

s
 i

n
 O

u
te

r 
S

o
u

th
 

•
 

E
v

a
lu

a
te

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
c

ti
v

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 
 

Page 57



8
th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 A
re
a
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
 

 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

D
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v

\D
a

ta
\A

g
e

n
d

a
It

e
m

D
o

c
s

\4
\2

\5
\A

I0
0

0
1

6
5

2
4

\O
u

te
rS

o
u

th
A

re
a

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
W

e
llb

e
in

g
B

u
d

g
e

tR
e

p
o

rt
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

1
0

.d
o

c
 

8
 

P
ro
je
c
t 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 

A
c
tu
a
l 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

c
o
s
ts
 0
7
/0
8
 

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 C
o
s
ts
 

a
n

d
 (
s
p
e
n
d
 t
o
 

d
a
te
) 
0
8
/0
9
 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tp
u
ts
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

W
e

s
t 

A
rd

s
le

y
 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 P
ro

je
c

t 
T

h
e

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 P
ro

je
c

t 

 

£
9

6
0

 
(£

9
6

0
) 

T
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
n

 
a

ft
e

rs
c

h
o

o
l 

c
lu

b
 f

o
r 

9
 

–
 1

3
y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s

 i
n

 
W

e
s

t 
A

rd
s

le
y

. 

•
 

W
e

e
k

ly
 s

e
s

s
io

n
 

o
v

e
r 

th
re

e
 

m
o

n
th

s
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 
a

c
ti

v
it

ie
s

 f
o

r 
y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
. 

 

•
 

B
u

ild
in

g
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 

s
k

ill
s

 o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 

•
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
ft

e
r 

s
c

h
o

o
l 

fa
c

ili
ti

e
s

 f
o

r 
y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
. 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

C
h

a
m

p
io

n
 

S
o

u
th

 A
re

a
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

 

£
4

0
0

 
(£

0
) 

T
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 m

u
lt

i 
a

g
e

n
c

y
 c

ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 
c

ri
m

e
 i

n
it

ia
ti

v
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

O
u

te
r 

S
o

u
th

 w
a

rd
s

. 

•
 

T
w

o
 O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

 
C

h
a

m
p

io
n

s
 i

n
 

th
e

 O
u

te
r 

S
o

u
th

 
in

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

 

•
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

 
a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
a

c
ti

o
n

s
 

c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t.

 

•
 

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
 c

ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 f
e

a
r 

o
f 

c
ri

m
e

 a
s

 a
 r

e
s

u
lt

 o
f 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 s
a

fe
ty

 w
o

rk
. 

 

S
m

it
h

y
 L

a
n

e
 

R
e

c
re

a
ti

o
n

 G
ro

u
n

d
 

P
a

rk
s

 &
 C

o
u

n
tr

y
s

id
e

 

 

£
6

,5
0

0
 

(£
0

) 

T
o

 f
u

n
d

 d
e

s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 
c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 f

e
e

s
 f

o
r 

w
o

rk
 o

n
 S

m
it

h
y

 
L

a
n

e
 R

e
c

 

•
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

c
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 

d
e

s
ig

n
 w

o
rk

s
 f

o
r 

c
a

p
it

a
l 

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
to

 
S

m
it

h
y

 L
a

n
e

 
R

e
c

 

•
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 e
n

g
a

g
e

d
 i

n
 

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 l

o
c

a
l 

a
m

e
n

it
ie

s
. 

•
 

F
ir

s
t 

s
ta

g
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 i

n
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 l
o

c
a

l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
. 

 

J
o

h
n

 O
 G

a
u

n
ts

 
E

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
W

e
e

k
 

S
o

u
th

 A
re

a
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

 

£
2

,3
6

7
 

(£
2

,3
6

7
) 

T
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 l

o
c

a
l 

re
s

id
e

n
ts

 o
n

 J
O

G
 

e
s

ta
te

, 
in

 
c

o
n

ju
n

c
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

, 
G

ro
u

n
d

w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 
A

ir
e

 V
a

lle
y

 H
o

m
e

s
 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
n

 
e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

w
e

e
k

. 
 

•
 

V
a

ri
e

ty
 o

f 
e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s

 a
n

d
 

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
in

it
ia

ti
v

e
s

 
c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 e
.g

. 
b

u
lk

y
 w

a
s

te
 

c
le

a
ra

n
c

e
, 

lit
te

rp
ic

k
s

, 
p

o
s

te
r 

c
o

m
p

e
ti

ti
o

n
s

, 

•
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

lo
c

a
l 

re
s

id
e

n
ts

 t
o

 l
iv

e
. 

•
 

In
c

re
a

s
e

d
 s

e
n

s
e

 o
f 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 s
p

ir
it

 a
n

d
 p

ri
d

e
 

o
v

e
r 

th
e

ir
 n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

. 
 

Page 58



8
th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 A
re
a
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
 

 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

D
:\

m
o

d
e

rn
g

o
v

\D
a

ta
\A

g
e

n
d

a
It

e
m

D
o

c
s

\4
\2

\5
\A

I0
0

0
1

6
5

2
4

\O
u

te
rS

o
u

th
A

re
a

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
W

e
llb

e
in

g
B

u
d

g
e

tR
e

p
o

rt
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

1
0

.d
o

c
 

9
 

P
ro
je
c
t 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 

A
c
tu
a
l 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

c
o
s
ts
 0
7
/0
8
 

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 C
o
s
ts
 

a
n

d
 (
s
p
e
n
d
 t
o
 

d
a
te
) 
0
8
/0
9
 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tp
u
ts
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

e
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

s
e

s
s

io
n

s
 o

n
 

re
c

y
c

lin
g

 a
n

d
 

re
u

s
in

g
. 

 R
o

th
w

e
ll 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 
E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

 (
C

R
T

 
F

u
n

d
in

g
) 

 

A
re

a
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

 

£
5

,0
0

0
 

(£
0

) 

T
o

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 m

a
tc

h
 

fu
n

d
in

g
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 a

 
C

R
T

 b
id

. 

•
 

If
 C

R
T

 
a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 

s
u

c
c

e
s

s
fu

l,
 

£
3

0
0

,0
0

0
 f

o
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

w
o

rk
 i

n
 J

O
G

 
a

n
d

 W
o

o
d

 L
a

n
e

 
E

s
ta

te
s

. 
 

•
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

w
o

rk
e

rs
 p

ro
v

id
in

g
 h

e
a

lt
h

 
re

la
te

d
 s

e
s

s
io

n
s

 a
n

d
 

b
u

ild
in

g
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 

s
k

ill
s

 t
o

 a
s

s
is

t 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 

a
c

c
e

s
s

in
g

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t.
 

J
o

h
n

 O
 G

a
u

n
ts

 
J

u
n

io
r 

A
llo

tm
e

n
ts

  
G

ro
u

n
d

w
o

rk
 

 

£
4

2
5

 
(£

4
2

5
) 

T
o

 p
u

rc
h

a
s

e
 a

 
ti

m
b

e
r 

fo
r 

p
la

n
t 

s
ta

g
in

g
, 

h
e

a
te

rs
 a

n
d

 
e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
to

 c
a

rr
y

 
o

u
t 

a
llo

tm
e

n
t 

ta
s

k
s

 
d

u
ri

n
g

 b
a

d
 w

e
a

th
e

r.
 

•
 

A
c

ti
v

it
ie

s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 f
o

r 
y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
. 

•
 

E
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s

 o
n

 
h

o
rt

ic
u

lt
u

re
. 

•
 

Y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 e
n

g
a

g
e

d
 w

it
h

 
lo

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
. 

•
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 

•
 

In
c

re
a

s
e

 i
n

 g
re

e
n

 s
p

a
c

e
 

a
re

a
. 

 
 T
O
T
A
L
 

P
ro
je
c
ts
 a
g
re
e
d
  

 

 £
2
5
6
,1
0
4
.6
9
 

 

 £
3
2
1
,5
6
1
 

 
 

 

  
B
a
la
n
c
e
 

£
1
5
3
,1
3
6
.3
1
 

£
1
9
4
,1
1
4
.3
8
 

 
 

 

  
 

Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



8
th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 A
re
a
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

  

 
1
 

O
u

te
r 

S
o

u
th

 W
e
ll
 B

e
in

g
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

2
0
0
4
/2

0
0
8
 

C
a
p

it
a
l 
P

ro
je

c
ts

 a
g

re
e
d

 t
o

 d
a
te
 

 

P
ro

je
c
t 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

 O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
C

a
p

it
a
l 
c
o

s
t 

 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
O

u
tp

u
ts

  
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

£
5

8
7

,0
0
8

.0
0

 
 

A
rd

s
le

y
 &

 R
o

b
in

 H
o

o
d

 
S
p
o
rt
s
 F
a
c
ili
ty
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
in
g
le
y
 A
th
le
ti
c
 F
o
o
tb
a
ll 

C
lu
b
 

£
2
0
,0
0
0
.0
0
 
T
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 

h
o
m
e
 g
ro
u
n
d
 s
it
e
 w
it
h
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
 

c
lu
b
 h
o
u
s
e
 f
o
r 
T
in
g
le
y
 

A
th
le
ti
c
 J
u
n
io
r 
F
o
o
tb
a
ll 

C
lu
b
 

•
 

C
le
a
ra
n
c
e
 o
f 

th
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 s
it
e
 

L
e
v
e
lli
n
g
 a
n
d
 

d
ra
in
a
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
it
e
 

•
 

P
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
 

n
e
w
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 

p
o
in
t 
w
it
h
 c
a
r 

p
a
rk
in
g
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 

•
 

B
u
ild
 o
f 
a
 n
e
w
 

c
lu
b
h
o
u
s
e
 w
it
h
 

c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 

m
u
lt
i 
p
u
rp
o
s
e
 

ro
o
m
 .
 

              

•
 

M
o
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

a
re
a
 b
e
n
e
fi
ti
n
g
 f
ro
m
 

lo
c
a
l 
s
p
o
rt
s
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
. 

                     

Page 61



8
th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 A
re
a
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

  

 
2
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

 O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
C

a
p

it
a
l 
c
o

s
t 

 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
O

u
tp

u
ts

  
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

W
e
s
t 
A
rd
s
le
y
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

C
it
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t/
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o

o
d
s
 &
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

£
1
6
,5
6
4
.0
0
 
R
e
p
a
ir
s
 t
o
 b
ri
n
g
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
 b
a
c
k
 

in
to
 a
c
ti
v
e
 u
s
e
 

•
 

R
e
s
to
re
 o
u
ts
id
e
 

lig
h
ti
n
g
  

•
 

R
e
p
la
c
e
 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

h
a
n
d
ra
ils
 

•
 

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

fe
n
c
in
g
 

•
 

R
o
lle
r 
s
h
u
tt
e
r 

d
o
o
r 

•
 

R
e
p
la
c
e
 g
u
tt
e
r 

a
n
d
 f
a
ll 
p
ip
e
s
 

•
 

C
o
n
n
e
c
t 
g
a
s
 

s
u
p
p
ly
 t
o
 

c
e
n
tr
e
 

•
 

M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 

w
o
rk
s
 t
o
 g
e
n
ts
 

to
ile
ts
 

•
 

A
ft
e
r 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 

y
o
u
th
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 

 •
 

M
o
re
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 

d
iv
e
rs
io
n
a
ry
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
. 

  •
 

A
 b
a
s
e
 f
o
r 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

to
 h
o
ld
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 a
re
a
. 

L
it
te
rb
in
s
 A
rd
s
le
y
 &
 

R
o
b
in
 H
o
o
d
 2
0
0
5
/2
0
0
6
 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

£
3
,0
0
0
.0
0
 
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
lit
te
rb
in
s
 f
o
r 

a
re
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 

p
ro
b
le
m
a
ti
c
 f
o
r 
lit
te
r 
 

•
 

1
7
 D
u
a
l 

c
o
m
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t,
 

fr
e
e
 s
ta
n
d
in
g
 

lit
te
r 
b
in
s
 

•
 

A
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
lit
te
r 
in
 

th
e
 a
re
a
. 

 •
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

th
e
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
 

            

Page 62



8
th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 A
re
a
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

  

 
3
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

 O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
C

a
p

it
a
l 
c
o

s
t 

 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
O

u
tp

u
ts

  
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

E
a
s
t 
A
rd
s
le
y
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

F
e
n
c
e
 

C
it
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

£
1
3
,1
9
3
.0
0
 
S
e
c
u
ri
ty
 m

e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 

a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 E
a
s
t 
A
rd
s
le
y
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
 w
h
ic
h
 

h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
 h
o
ts
p
o
t 
fo
r 

a
n
ti
 s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 

•
 

A
 s
e
c
u
ri
ty
 

fe
n
c
e
 t
o
 b
e
 

in
s
ta
lle
d
 

a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 

C
e
n
tr
e
. 

S
e
c
u
ri
ty
 

•
 

L
ig
h
ti
n
g
 t
o
 b
e
 

in
s
ta
lle
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

e
x
te
ri
o
r 
o
f 
th
e
 

c
e
n
tr
e
. 

•
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 

p
e
rm

is
s
io
n
 t
o
 

b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 

fr
o
m
 C
it
y
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

•
 

A
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

v
a
n
d
a
lis
m
 t
h
e
 

c
e
n
tr
e
 w
a
s
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
in
g
. 

 

W
e
s
te
rt
o
n
 R
o
a
d
 

A
llo
tm
e
n
ts
 F
e
n
c
in
g
 

P
a
rk
s
 &
 C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

£
1
0
,0
7
1
.7
5
 
T
o
 e
re
c
t 
s
te
e
l 
fe
n
c
in
g
 

a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 b
a
c
k
 o
f 

W
e
s
te
rt
o
n
 R
o
a
d
 

A
llo
tm

e
n
ts
 

•
 

A
 s
te
e
l 
s
e
c
u
ri
ty
 

fe
n
c
e
. 

•
 
R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
  

v
a
n
d
a
lis
m
, 
a
n
d
 

a
n
ti
 s
o
c
ia
l 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r.
 

 

L
it
te
rb
in
s
 2
0
0
7
/2
0
0
8
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

£
2
,4
0
0
.0
0
 
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
lit
te
rb
in
s
 f
o
r 

a
re
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 

p
ro
b
le
m
a
ti
c
 f
o
r 
lit
te
r 

•
 

6
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

lit
te
r 
b
in
s
 

•
 

A
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
lit
te
r 
in
 

th
e
 a
re
a
. 

 •
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

th
e
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
 

 

T
in
g
le
y
 A
th
le
ti
c
 J
u
n
io
r 

F
o
o
tb
a
ll 
C
lu
b
 –
 C
a
r 

P
a
rk
 P
ro
v
is
io
n
 

T
in
g
le
y
 J
u
n
io
r 
A
th
le
ti
c
 

F
o
o
tb
a
ll 
C
lu
b
 

£
1
2
,0
0
0
 
T
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
T
in
g
le
y
 J
u
n
io
r 
A
th
le
ti
c
 

F
C
 b
y
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
e
 

in
s
ta
lla
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
 

s
u
rf
a
c
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
rf
lo
w
 

c
a
r 
p
a
rk
 

•
 

N
e
w
 O
v
e
rf
lo
w
 

c
a
r 
p
a
rk
 f
o
r 

u
s
e
rs
 o
f 

T
in
g
le
y
 F
C
. 

•
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

to
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

in
v
o
lv
in
g
 m

o
re
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
. 

 

Page 63



8
th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 A
re
a
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

  

 
4
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

 O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
C

a
p

it
a
l 
c
o

s
t 

 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
O

u
tp

u
ts

  
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 D
ra
in
a
g
e
 t
o
 

P
u
b
lic
 F
o
o
tp
a
th
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
2
0
 R
o
th
w
e
ll 
a
t 

O
a
k
le
y
 u
n
d
e
rp
a
s
s
 

P
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

£
1
,7
1
7
.1
9
 
In
s
ta
lla
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 g
u
lly
 t
o
 

p
re
v
e
n
t 
a
 k
e
y
 p
u
b
lic
 r
ig
h
t 

o
f 
w
a
y
 b
e
in
g
 f
lo
o
d
e
d
. 

•
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 

fo
o
tp
a
th
. 

•
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
 

•
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 l
o
c
a
l 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
 

A
rd

s
le

y
 &

 R
o

b
in

 H
o

o
d

 S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l 
£

7
8

,9
4

5
.9

4
 

 

 A
ll

 M
o

rl
e

y
 

M
o
rl
e
y
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

R
a
d
io
 

M
o
rl
e
y
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 R
a
d
io
 

£
1
0
,0
0
0
.0
0
 
A
 r
a
d
io
 s
ta
ti
o
n
 t
o
 b
e
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

M
o
rl
e
y
 a
re
a
 

•
 

B
ro
a
d
c
a
s
te
d
 1
2
 

d
a
y
s
 i
n
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 

1
0
 d
a
y
s
 i
n
 J
u
ly
 

•
 

4
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
e
re
 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
. 

•
 

M
a
n
y
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 

a
n
d
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

fe
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
is
 

a
n
d
 g
a
v
e
 

in
te
rv
ie
w
s
 o
n
 

a
ir
 

 

•
 

M
o
re
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 

b
e
in
g
 a
w
a
re
 a
n
d
 

a
b
le
 t
o
 v
o
ic
e
 t
h
e
ir
 

o
p
in
io
n
 o
n
 l
o
c
a
l 

is
s
u
e
s
 

 

M
o
rl
e
y
 L
e
is
u
re
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 A
c
c
e
s
s
 

L
e
is
u
re
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

£
1
5
,0
0
0
.0
0
 
M
e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 

M
o
rl
e
y
 L
e
is
u
re
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

D
D
A
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
t.

 

•
 

N
e
w
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 

c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 

•
 

L
o
w
e
ri
n
g
 o
f 

re
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 

c
o
u
n
te
r 

 

•
 

M
o
re
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 

p
e
o
p
le
 b
e
in
g
 a
b
le
 

to
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 M
o
rl
e
y
 

L
e
is
u
re
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 t
h
a
t 

w
ill
 c
o
m
e
 f
ro
m
 t
h
a
t.
 

    

Page 64



8
th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 A
re
a
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

  

 
5

 

P
ro

je
c
t 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

 O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
C

a
p

it
a
l 
c
o

s
t 

 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
O

u
tp

u
ts

  
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

T
o
w
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

M
o
rl
e
y
 I
n
 B
lo
o
m
 

£
1
,0
0
0
.0
0
 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 M
o
rl
e
y
 

T
o
w
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

•
 

P
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 o
f 

fl
o
w
e
rs
, 
s
h
ru
b
s
, 

p
la
n
te
rs
 a
n
d
 

tu
b
s
 a
n
d
 

g
a
rd
e
n
in
g
 

e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 

u
s
e
 i
n
 M
o
rl
e
y
 

T
o
w
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

•
 

A
 m

o
re
 p
le
a
s
a
n
t 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
in
 

M
o
rl
e
y
 T
o
w
n
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
 

m
o
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 

s
h
o
p
 t
h
e
re
. 

       

N
e
w
 C
re
a
ti
o
n
 

G
ro
u
n
d
w
o
rk
 

£
1
,0
0
0
.0
0
 
T
o
 r
u
n
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 

p
ro
je
c
ts
 i
n
 M
o
rl
e
y
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 u
n
ti
l 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 

2
0
0
8
. 

•
 

Y
e
llo
w
 W

o
o
d
s
 

C
h
a
lle
n
g
e
  

•
 

R
e
c
y
c
le
d
 

C
h
ri
s
tm

a
s
 

D
e
c
o
ra
ti
o
n
s
 

p
ro
je
c
ts
. 

•
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

b
ri
n
g
 b
a
n
k
 s
it
e
s
 

in
 M
o
rl
e
y
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
. 

•
 

C
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 i
n
 

M
o
rl
e
y
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

•
 

L
it
te
r 
p
ic
k
 w
it
h
 

S
e
v
e
n
 H
ill
s
 

p
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l.
 

•
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 

fa
m
ily
’s
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 

o
f 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 

is
s
u
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 

re
c
y
c
lin
g
 

•
 

A
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 

re
c
y
c
lin
g
 r
a
te
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 O
u
te
r 
S
o
u
th
 

•
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 

th
e
 O
u
te
r 
S
o
u
th
 

M
o
rl
e
y
 B
o
tt
o
m
s
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t,
 

L
C
C
 

£
3
0
,0
0
0
 
P
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
re
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

th
e
 M
o
rl
e
y
 B
o
tt
o
m
s
 a
re
a
 

•
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 

a
p
p
e
a
ra
n
c
e
 

•
 

F
e
n
c
in
g
 

•
 

L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
in
g
 

•
 

S
ta
b
ili
z
in
g
 b
a
n
k
 

•
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 l
a
y
 b
y
 

•
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 

a
p
p
e
a
ra
n
c
e
; 
q
u
a
lit
y
 

a
n
d
 v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

lo
c
a
l 
a
re
a
 a
s
 w
e
ll 

im
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 

re
a
lm
 a
n
d
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
 

Page 65



8
th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 A
re
a
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

  

 
6
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

 O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
C

a
p

it
a
l 
c
o

s
t 

 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
O

u
tp

u
ts

  
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

S
c
a
tc
h
e
rd
 P
a
rk
 W

a
r 

M
e
m
o
ri
a
l 

P
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

£
1
0
,0
0
0
 
R
e
s
to
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 w
a
r 

m
e
m
o
ri
a
l 

•
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 

a
p
p
e
a
re
n
c
e
 

•
 

P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
 a
 

lo
c
a
l 
h
e
ri
ta
g
e
 s
it
e
 

a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 

g
e
n
e
ra
l 
a
p
p
e
a
ra
n
c
e
 

o
f 
th
e
 p
a
rk
 w
h
ile
 

p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 p
ri
d
e
 i
n
 

th
e
 a
re
a
. 

E
le
c
tr
ic
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 

B
a
n
d
s
ta
n
d
  

 

C
iv
ic
 B
u
ild
in
g
s
 

£
9
3
6
 
In
s
ta
lla
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
n
 

o
u
td
o
o
r 
p
o
w
e
r 
p
o
in
t 
a
t 

th
e
 b
a
n
d
s
ta
n
d
  

•
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 

te
c
h
n
ic
a
l 

in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 o
f 

th
e
 t
o
w
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
 

•
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
u
td
o
o
r 

e
n
te
rt
a
in
m
e
n
t 
s
u
c
h
 

a
t 
th
e
 M
o
rl
e
y
 l
ig
h
t 

s
w
it
c
h
 o
n
 a
n
d
 f
u
tu
re
 

e
v
e
n
ts
 

G
lu
tt
o
n
 S
tr
e
e
t 

C
le
a
n
s
e
r 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

£
6
,0
0
0
 
P
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 o
f 
a
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
ic
a
l 
s
w
e
e
p
e
r 
 

•
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
e
a
ra
n
c
e
 

o
f 
th
e
 T
o
w
n
 

a
n
d
 

s
u
rr
o
u
n
d
in
g
 

a
re
a
 

 

•
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 s
tr
e
e
t 

c
le
a
n
in
g
 o
f 

M
o
rl
e
y
 t
o
w
n
 

c
e
n
tr
e
 

C
a
r 
p
a
rk
in
g
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 a
t 

Q
u
e
e
n
s
w
a
y
 C
a
r 
P
a
rk
 

C
it
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

£
6
,0
0
0
 
In
s
ta
lla
ti
o
n
 o
f 
e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
v
id
in
g
 t
im
e
 l
im
it
e
d
 

p
a
rk
in
g
 i
n
 c
a
r 
p
a
rk
 

§
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 c
a
r 

p
a
rk
in
g
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 i
n
 

to
w
n
 

•
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

to
w
n
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 

in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

M
o
rl
e
y
 H
e
ri
ta
g
e
 

S
o
c
ie
ty
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

£
1
,8
0
0
 
P
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
a
n
 a
rc
h
iv
e
 

fo
r 
M
o
rl
e
y
 H
e
ri
ta
g
e
 

S
o
c
ie
ty
 

§
 

N
e
w
 a
rc
h
iv
e
 t
o
 

h
o
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 

s
h
o
w
 a
rt
e
fa
c
ts
 

o
f 
M
o
rl
e
y
 

H
e
ri
ta
g
e
  

 

•
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

g
ro
u
p
 

M
o
rl
e
y
 B
ri
n
g
 S
it
e
 

C
it
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

£
6
,6
1
2
.2
5
 
Im

p
ro
v
e
 a
n
d
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 R
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 i
n
 M
o
rl
e
y
 

§
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 

re
c
y
c
lin
g
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 i
n
 

M
o
rl
e
y
 

•
 

E
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

re
c
y
c
le
, 
re
u
s
e
 

a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 

w
a
s
te
 

Page 66



8
th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 A
re
a
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

  

 
7
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

 O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
C

a
p

it
a
l 
c
o

s
t 

 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
O

u
tp

u
ts

  
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

M
o
rl
e
y
 T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

£
3
1
,0
0
0
 
Im

p
ro
v
e
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
t 

M
o
rl
e
y
 T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll 

§
 

F
o
u
r 
ro
o
m
s
 i
n
 

T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll 
to
 b
e
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 a
n
d
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
. 

§
 

 

•
 

E
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 

T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll 
to
 b
e
 

re
n
te
d
 o
u
t 
b
y
 

th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 a
n
d
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 r
e
n
ta
l 

in
c
o
m
e
. 

M
o
rl
e
y
 B
o
tt
o
m
s
 

C
it
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

£
8
,0
0
6
.5
7
 
In
s
ta
ll 
n
e
w
 l
a
y
b
y
 a
lo
n
g
 

w
it
h
 s
e
a
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 f
e
n
c
in
g
 

•
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
 

 

A
ll

 M
o

rl
e

y
 S

u
b

 T
o

ta
l 

£
1

2
7

,3
5
4

.8
2

 
 

    M
o

rl
e

y
 N

o
rt

h
 

G
ild
e
rs
o
m
e
 

S
p
ri
n
g
b
a
n
k
 G
re
e
n
 

D
o
o
rs
te
p
 P
ro
je
c
t 

G
ild
e
rs
o
m
e
 A
c
ti
o
n
 G
ro
u
p
 

£
5
,0
0
0
.0
0
 
T
h
e
 t
ra
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
n
 

a
re
a
 o
f 
u
n
d
e
r 
u
s
e
d
 

p
u
b
lic
 g
re
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
 t
h
a
t 

is
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 f
ly
 t
ip
p
in
g
 

a
n
d
 v
a
n
d
a
lis
m
 i
n
to
 a
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
. 

•
 

C
le
a
ra
n
c
e
 o
f 

a
re
a
 

•
 

L
it
te
r 
b
in
s
 i
n
 

a
re
a
 

•
 

B
e
n
c
h
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

a
re
a
 

•
 

S
o
ft
 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
in
g
 

 

•
 

A
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 

th
e
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

a
re
a
. 

G
ild
e
rs
o
m
e
 C
C
T
V
 

S
c
h
e
m
e
 

G
ild
e
rs
o
m
e
 A
c
ti
o
n
 G
ro
u
p
 

£
1
2
,6
0
0
.0
0
 
T
h
e
 i
n
s
ta
lla
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 

C
C
T
V
 s
y
s
te
m
 a
ro
u
n
d
 

G
ild
e
rs
o
m
e
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 H
a
ll 

to
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 i
n
c
id
e
n
c
e
s
 o
f 

A
S
B
 a
n
d
 v
a
n
d
a
lis
m

 

•
 

7
 h
ig
h
 

re
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 d
a
y
 /
 

n
ig
h
t 
c
a
m
e
ra
s
 

to
 b
e
 i
n
s
ta
lle
d
 

•
 

A
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

in
c
id
e
n
ts
 o
f 
c
ri
m
e
 

a
n
d
 A
S
B
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

a
re
a
. 

•
 

A
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

fe
a
r 
o
f 
c
ri
m
e
 

a
m
o
n
g
s
t 
lo
c
a
l 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
. 

  

Page 67



8
th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 A
re
a
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

  

 
8
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

 O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
C

a
p

it
a
l 
c
o

s
t 

 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
O

u
tp

u
ts

  
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

D
ri
g
h
lin
g
to
n
 L
ib
ra
ry
 

D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 p
a
rk
in
g
 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 &
 L
e
is
u
re
 

£
4
,5
0
0
.0
0
 
Im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

D
ri
g
lin
g
to
n
 L
ib
ra
ry
 a
n
d
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 h
a
ll 
to
 m
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 

b
u
ild
in
g
 m

o
re
 D
D
A
 

c
o
m
p
lia
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 d
is
a
b
le
d
 u
s
e
rs
. 

•
 

T
w
o
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

d
is
a
b
le
d
 

p
a
rk
in
g
 b
a
y
s
 

•
 

A
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 

o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 b
e
in
g
 

a
b
le
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 

a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
t 

D
ri
g
h
lin
g
to
n
 L
ib
ra
ry
 

a
n
d
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 h
a
ll.
 

M
in
ib
u
s
 

B
ir
c
h
fi
e
ld
 S
c
h
o
o
l 

£
5
,0
0
0
.0
0
 
A
 n
e
w
 m

in
i 
b
u
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
to
 h
e
lp
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

th
e
 p
u
p
ils
 s
p
o
rt
in
g
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

•
 

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 

to
w
a
rd
s
 m

in
i 

b
u
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 

•
 

M
o
re
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 

d
iv
e
rs
io
n
a
ry
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
. 

D
ri
g
h
lin
g
to
n
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 

H
a
ll 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 a
n
d
 L
e
is
u
re
 

£
7
,5
0
0
.0
0
 
Im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 

D
ri
g
h
lin
g
to
n
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 h
a
ll 
 
•
 

U
p
g
ra
d
e
 o
f 

K
it
c
h
e
n
 

•
 

U
p
g
ra
d
e
 o
f 

to
ile
ts
 

•
 

N
e
w
 s
to
ra
g
e
 

•
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 u
s
e
 o
f 

D
ri
g
h
lin
g
to
n
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 h
a
ll 
b
y
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 g
ro
u
p
s
. 

 

L
it
te
rb
in
s
 2
0
0
7
/0
0
8
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

£
2
,4
0
0
.0
0
 
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
lit
te
rb
in
s
 f
o
r 

a
re
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 

p
ro
b
le
m
a
ti
c
 f
o
r 
lit
te
r 

•
 

6
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

lit
te
r 
b
in
s
 

•
 

A
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
lit
te
r 
in
 

th
e
 a
re
a
. 

 •
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

th
e
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
 

 

S
p
ri
n
g
fi
e
ld
 M
ill
 P
a
rk
 

F
ri
e
n
d
s
 o
f 
S
p
ri
n
g
fi
e
ld
 M
ill
 

P
a
rk
 

£
5
,0
0
0
 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

S
p
ri
n
g
fi
e
ld
 M
ill
 P
a
rk
 

•
 

N
e
w
 f
o
o
tp
a
th
, 

h
e
d
g
in
g
 a
n
d
 

p
la
n
ts
. 

•
 

N
e
w
 n
o
ti
c
e
 

b
o
a
rd
 a
n
d
 

b
a
s
e
s
 f
o
r 
p
ic
n
ic
 

b
e
n
c
h
e
s
 

•
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 h
a
b
it
a
ts
 

fo
r 
w
ild
lif
e
 

•
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
it
e
 

•
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

Page 68



8
th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 A
re
a
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

  

 
9
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

 O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
C

a
p

it
a
l 
c
o

s
t 

 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
O

u
tp

u
ts

  
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

C
h
u
rw
e
ll 
C
C
T
V
 

P
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

£
5
,4
0
0
 
In
s
ta
ll 
C
C
T
V
 a
t 
C
h
u
rw
e
ll 

P
a
rk
 

•
 

N
e
w
 C
C
T
V
 

s
y
s
te
m
 

in
s
ta
lle
d
 

•
 

L
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

g
ro
u
p
 C
h
u
rw
e
ll 

A
c
ti
o
n
 G
ro
u
p
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 i
n
 

d
e
te
rr
in
g
 v
a
n
d
a
lis
m
 

to
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

w
o
rk
s
. 

C
h
u
rw
e
ll 
P
a
rk
 

P
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

£
5
,0
0
0
 
Im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

C
h
u
rw
e
ll 
P
a
rk
 

•
 

N
e
w
 

b
e
n
c
h
e
s
 

a
n
d
 p
la
n
ts
 

fo
r 
s
h
ru
b
 

b
e
d
s
 

•
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

to
 t
h
e
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

 

M
o

rl
e

y
 N

o
rt

h
 S

u
b

 T
o

ta
l 

£
5

2
,4

0
0

 
 

  M
o

rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
A
re
a
 –
 

N
e
w
la
n
d
s
 &
 D
e
n
s
h
a
w
s
 

S
o
u
th
 A
re
a
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

£
2
7
,1
0
0
.0
0
 
A
 p
la
n
 t
o
 a
im
e
d
 a
t 

m
a
k
in
g
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

•
 

A
lb
e
rt
 D
ri
v
e
 

S
h
o
p
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

 •
 

K
ic
k
 a
ro
u
n
d
 

a
re
a
 i
n
 

N
e
w
la
n
d
s
 

 •
 

L
e
w
is
h
a
m
 P
a
rk
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

•
 

M
o
re
 d
iv
e
rs
io
n
a
ry
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 

  •
 

A
 s
a
fe
r 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 w
it
h
 

a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

fe
a
r 
o
f 
c
ri
m
e
 

a
m
o
n
g
s
t 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
. 

R
e
in
 P
a
rk
 –
 M
o
rl
e
y
 

S
o
u
th
 

P
a
rk
s
 &
 C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

£
3
,0
0
0
.0
0
 
A
n
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
h
a
n
d
 o
v
e
r 
o
f 

th
e
 P
u
b
lic
 O
p
e
n
 S
p
a
c
e
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 R
e
in
 R
o
a
d
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
in
 M
o
rl
e
y
 

S
o
u
th
, 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
r 
to
 P
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 

C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 

in
 a
n
 a
re
a
 w
it
h
 a
 h
ig
h
 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 
A
S
B

 

•
 

L
a
n
d
 a
d
o
p
te
d
 

•
 

F
e
n
c
in
g
  

•
 

T
re
e
s
 p
la
n
ti
n
g
 

•
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
re
p
o
rt
e
d
 

in
c
id
e
n
ts
 o
f 
a
n
ti
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
in
 

th
e
 a
re
a
. 

Page 69



8
th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 A
re
a
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

  

 
1
0
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

 O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
C

a
p

it
a
l 
c
o

s
t 

 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
O

u
tp

u
ts

  
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

M
o
rl
e
y
 S
o
u
th
 l
it
te
r 
B
in
s
 

2
0
0
5
/0
6
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

£
4
,7
0
0
.0
0
 
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
lit
te
r 
b
in
s
 f
o
r 

a
re
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 

p
ro
b
le
m
a
ti
c
 f
o
r 
lit
te
r 

•
 

1
4
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

d
u
a
l 

c
o
m
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t,
 

fr
e
e
 s
ta
n
d
in
g
 

lit
te
r 
b
in
s
 f
o
r 

M
o
rl
e
y
 S
o
u
th
. 

•
 

A
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
lit
te
r 
in
 

th
e
 a
re
a
. 

 •
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

th
e
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

  

M
a
g
p
ie
 L
a
n
e
 –
 M
o
rl
e
y
 

S
o
u
th
 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
o
u
th
 H
o
m
e
s
 

£
8
,0
0
0
.0
0
 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 s
e
c
u
re
 

M
a
g
p
ie
 L
a
n
e
 a
n
d
 

p
re
v
e
n
t 
tr
a
v
e
lle
rs
 f
ro
m
 r
e
 

e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
it
e
. 

•
 

M
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

ta
k
e
n
 t
o
 

p
re
v
e
n
t 

tr
a
v
e
lle
rs
 f
ro
m
 

re
-e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

s
it
e
 o
n
 M
a
g
p
ie
 

L
a
n
e
 

•
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 

th
e
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

a
re
a
. 

 •
 

R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 

a
re
a
 f
e
e
lin
g
 m
o
re
 

s
e
c
u
re
. 

 

L
e
w
is
h
a
m
 P
a
rk
 Y
o
u
th
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 C
C
T
V
 

C
it
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
L
C
C
 

£
9
,5
0
0
 
C
C
T
V
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 f
o
r 

L
e
w
is
h
a
m
 p
a
rk
 y
o
u
th
 

c
e
n
tr
e
 

•
 

C
C
T
V
 

•
 

A
 d
e
c
re
a
s
e
 o
f 
A
S
B
 

in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
. 

•
 

S
a
fe
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 

L
it
te
rb
in
s
 2
0
0
7
/0
8
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

£
2
,4
0
0
.0
0
 
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
lit
te
rb
in
s
 f
o
r 

a
re
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 

p
ro
b
le
m
a
ti
c
 f
o
r 
lit
te
r 

•
 

6
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

lit
te
r 
b
in
s
 

•
 

A
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
lit
te
r 
in
 

th
e
 a
re
a
. 

 •
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

th
e
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
 

 

D
e
n
s
h
a
w
 G
ro
v
e
 

L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
in
g
 

G
ro
u
n
d
w
o
rk
 

£
2
,2
1
4
.9
7
 
C
le
a
r 
fl
y
 t
ip
p
in
g
, 
le
v
e
l 
th
e
 

a
re
a
 a
n
d
 s
e
e
d
, 
c
re
a
te
 

p
a
th
 a
n
d
 i
n
s
ta
ll 
a
 f
e
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 l
o
c
k
a
b
le
 g
a
te
 

 

•
 

S
a
fe
r 
s
tr
o
n
g
e
r 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

A
 s
a
fe
 a
n
d
 p
le
a
s
a
n
t 

p
la
c
e
 t
o
 p
la
y
 

M
o

rl
e

y
 S

o
u

th
 S

u
b

 T
o

ta
l 

 
£

5
6

,9
1

4
.9

7
 

 

Page 70



8
th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 A
re
a
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

  

 
1
1
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

 O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
C

a
p

it
a
l 
c
o

s
t 

 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
O

u
tp

u
ts

  
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

 R
o

th
w

e
ll

 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
A
re
a
 –
 

J
o
h
n
 O
’G
a
u
n
ts
 

S
o
u
th
 A
re
a
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

£
2
0
,6
0
0
.0
0
 
A
 p
la
n
 t
o
 a
im
e
d
 a
t 

m
a
k
in
g
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 

•
 

D
iv
e
rs
io
n
a
ry
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

 •
 

P
a
th
w
a
y
s
 

In
it
ia
ti
v
e
 

 •
 

G
a
rd
e
n
in
g
 

In
it
ia
ti
v
e
 

 •
 

Y
o
u
th
 S
h
e
lt
e
r 

 

•
 

M
o
re
 d
iv
e
rs
io
n
a
ry
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 

  •
 

A
 s
a
fe
r 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 w
it
h
 

a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

fe
a
r 
o
f 
c
ri
m
e
 

a
m
o
n
g
s
t 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
. 

•
 

A
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 

th
e
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

a
re
a
 

L
it
te
r 
B
in
s
 R
o
th
w
e
ll 

2
0
0
5
/0
6
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

£
5
,0
0
0
.0
0
 
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
lit
te
r 
b
in
s
 f
o
r 

a
re
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 

p
ro
b
le
m
a
ti
c
 f
o
r 
lit
te
r 

•
 

1
7
 D
u
a
l 

c
o
m
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t,
 

fr
e
e
 s
ta
n
d
in
g
 

lit
te
r 
b
in
s
 

•
 

A
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
lit
te
r 
in
 

th
e
 a
re
a
. 

•
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

th
e
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

O
u
lt
o
n
 &
 W

o
o
d
le
s
fo
rd
 

S
p
o
rt
s
 &
 S
o
c
ia
l 

F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 

P
a
rk
s
 &
 C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

£
2
0
,0
0
0
.0
0
 
T
h
e
 r
e
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

e
x
te
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 /
 c
lu
b
 

h
o
u
s
e
 a
t 
O
u
lt
o
n
 a
n
d
 

W
o
o
d
le
s
fo
rd
 S
p
o
rt
s
 a
n
d
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
C
lu
b
. 

•
 

T
w
o
 n
e
w
 

c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 

ro
o
m
s
 

•
 

O
ff
ic
ia
ls
 r
o
o
m
 

w
it
h
 t
o
ile
t 
a
n
d
 

s
h
o
w
e
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

•
 

M
o
re
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 m

o
re
 

s
p
o
rt
in
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

•
 

F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 

S
p
o
rt
s
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 

R
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
ty
 

R
o
s
e
 L
u
n
d
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

P
a
rk
s
 &
 C
o
u
n
tr
y
s
id
e
 

£
2
0
,0
0
0
.0
0
 
T
h
e
 e
x
te
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

R
o
s
e
 L
u
n
d
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

•
 

2
 n
e
w
 c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 

ro
o
m
s
 

•
 

O
ff
ic
ia
ls
 r
o
o
m
 

w
it
h
 t
o
ile
t 
a
n
d
 

s
h
o
w
e
r 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 

•
 

M
o
re
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 s
p
o
rt
in
g
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 

S
p
o
rt
s
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 

R
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
ty
 

Page 71



8
th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 A
re
a
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

  

 
1
2
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

 O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 
C

a
p

it
a
l 
c
o

s
t 

 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
O

u
tp

u
ts

  
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

L
it
te
rb
in
s
 2
0
0
7
/0
8
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

£
2
,4
0
0
.0
0
 
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
lit
te
rb
in
s
 f
o
r 

a
re
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 

p
ro
b
le
m
a
ti
c
 f
o
r 
lit
te
r 

•
 

6
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

lit
te
r 
b
in
s
 

•
 

A
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
lit
te
r 
in
 

th
e
 a
re
a
. 

 •
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

th
e
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
 

 

R
o
th
w
e
ll 
L
it
te
rb
in
s
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

£
5
,0
0
0
 
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
lit
te
rb
in
s
 f
o
r 

a
re
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 

p
ro
b
le
m
a
ti
c
 f
o
r 
lit
te
r 

•
 

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
lit
te
r 

b
in
s
 

•
 

A
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
lit
te
r 
in
 

th
e
 a
re
a
. 

 •
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

th
e
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
 

R
o
th
w
e
ll 
B
ri
n
g
 S
it
e
 

C
it
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

£
6
,4
5
2
.8
0
 
Im

p
ro
v
e
 a
n
d
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 R
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 i
n
 M
o
rl
e
y
 

§
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 

re
c
y
c
lin
g
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 i
n
 

M
o
rl
e
y
 

§
 

E
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
c
y
c
le
, 

re
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 

w
a
s
te
 

W
in
d
m
ill
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

£
3
0
,7
0
7
 
Im

p
ro
v
e
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
t 

W
in
d
m
ill
 Y
o
u
th
 C
lu
b
 

•
 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

c
e
n
tr
e
 

•
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

u
s
e
 o
f 
b
u
ild
in
g
. 

R
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 b
ri
n
g
 s
it
e
s
 

(a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l)
 

C
it
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

£
3
,9
1
4
 
R
e
s
u
rf
a
c
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 s
it
e
  

•
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 

re
c
y
c
lin
g
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 i
n
 

M
o
rl
e
y
 

•
 

E
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
c
y
c
le
, 

re
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 

w
a
s
te
 

R
o

th
w

e
ll
 S

u
b

 T
o

ta
l 

£
1
1
4
,0

7
3
.8

0
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 T

O
T

A
L

 
P

ro
je

c
ts

 a
g

re
e
d

  
 

  
£
4
2
9
,6

8
9
.5

3
 

 
B

a
la

n
c
e
 

£
1
5
7
,3

1
8
.4

7
 

 

 

Page 72



  
Report of the Director of Environments & Neighbourhoods Directorate 
 
South Leeds (Outer) Area Committee  
 
Date: Monday 8th December 2008 
 
Subject: Area Managers Report 
 

        
  
 
 
 

 
 
Executive Summary 

This report details a range of activities taking place within the Outer South Leeds Area, some 
of which are dealt with in greater detail elsewhere on the agenda.  
 
1.0 Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To bring to Members’ attention in a succinct fashion, brief details of the range of 

activities with which the Area Management Team are engaged, and that are not 
addressed in greater detail elsewhere on this agenda.  It provides opportunities for 
further questioning or the opportunity to request a more detailed report on a particular 
issue. 

 
2.0  Heritage Telephone Boxes 
 
2.1  The Director of City Development has contacted BT regarding their policy of adopting 

or sponsoring their heritage phone boxes. It is understood that BT have written to all 
Local Authorities notifying them of the option to buy a phone box for £1 if the 
telephone is removed or £500 per annum if the Local Authority wishes to sponsor a 
box. The Director of City Development has informed BT that no record can be found 
of this letter and requested confirmation from BT of a deadline when they would need 
an official response from Leeds City Council. The Director has stressed that the 
deadline must offer a reasonable timeframe for consideration by officers and 
members to identify locations and the course of action to be taken. 
 
 
 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
  
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected: 
  

Ardsley & Robin Hood 
Morley North 
Morley South 
Rothwell 
 

Originator: 
Dave Richmond  
Tel: 224 3040  

 

 

Delegated Executive 
Function available 
for Call In 

 

Council 
Function 

Delegated Executive 
Function not available for 
Call In Details set out in the 
report 

 
 

üüüü 

 

 

üüüü   Ward Members consulted 
(referred to in report) 

Agenda Item 14

Page 73



2.2  A number of communities may want to keep their boxes as part of local heritage and 
there also may be a number which are significant to the conservation area and street 
scene. The Conservation Unit and Town Centre Manager have been consulted and 
have been unable to identify any telephone boxes within Morley and Rothwell 
conservation areas to put forward to be considered for this proposal. Members are 
asked to consider whether there are any phone boxes they wish to keep and would 
want to fund the maintenance of. 

 
3.0  CCTV 
  
3.1 Further to the report on CCTV considered at the July Area Committee and pending 

the results of discussions at Executive Board, Members at the September meeting 
agreed a monitoring form be sent to groups who had existing and planned schemes 
funded by the Area Committee.  

 
3.2  Completed monitoring forms have been received from the following groups: 
 
 Drighlington Parish Council 
 Churwell Action Group 
 Gildersome Action Group 
 
3.3  The Leedswatch Code of Practice has been used as a base to create a draft protocol 

that will ensure all groups who operate CCTV schemes that receive funding from the 
Outer South Area Committee are clear about their legal responsibilities in relation to 
the scheme. 

 
3.4  Area Management and the Community Safety Coordinator are arranging meetings 

with the three community groups to discuss their responsibilities and highlight areas 
were support can be offered to ensure their schemes meet the DPA requirements. 

 
3.5  A detailed report will be presented to members at a future Area Committee. 
  
4.0  Smithy Lane Recreational Ground 
 
4.1 The Steering Group continue to develop options for the works at Smithy Lane 

Recreational Ground following consultation with residents. Option are currently being 
costed for a phased development which will be considered by the Steering Group. 
Members may wish to allocate a proportion of the Capital Well-being funding in 
anticipation of these options being brought forward. 

 
5.0 Priority Neighbourhood Worker Post 
 
5.1  At the September Area Committee meeting, members agreed to continue supporting 

a Priority Neighbourhood Worker (PNW) post, employed by South Leeds Health for 
All, to work across the Outer South. This post will be funded for three years, subject to 
annual Executive Board approval of the delegated Well-being Budget.  

 
5.2 Area Management has been working with South Leeds Health for All on the 

recruitment process. 13 applications were received for the Outer South Priority 
Neighbourhood Worker post. Following interviews on Thursday 23rd October, Nicky 
Greening was appointed from a strong field of four short-listed candidates as the 
Outer South Priority Neighbourhood Worker. 

 

Page 74



5.3  I can confirm that the PNW will take up her duties on Monday 8th December. An 
induction programme is currently being put into place. In line with previous reports, 
members are reminded that when not working in the areas, the PNW will be based at 
Dewsbury Road One Stop Centre.  

 

6.0   Community Centres  
 
6.1 The Outer South Community Centres Sub Committee took place on Wednesday 19th 

November. Minutes of this meeting along with minutes of the previous Sub Committee 
held on Wednesday 13th August, are both attached (Appendix 1). Agenda items at 
these meetings covered key holding and an update on all community centres which 
form the Area Committees facilities portfolio. Future meeting will consider backlog 
maintenance issues and the sub committee members will prioritise works in 
anticipation of funding becoming available. 

 
6.2 Key holding has been implemented successfully at Tingley Youth & Community 

Centre with Tingley Athletic FC, Tingley Brass Band and Tingley Tenants and 
Residents Association. St Gabriel’s Management Committee have also been issued 
with keys for the St Gabriel’s Centre and implementation of the key holding policy is 
being explored for some users at Lewisham Park Centre and Windmill Youth Club. All 
user groups issued with keys have benefited from reduced lettings fees, as they don’t 
have to pay the additional £9 per hour caretaking charges. 

 
6.3 Work is ongoing to look at the future options of community centre provision in the 

Churwell area. Discussions have taken place with Ward Members and Asset 
Management Unit around the future viability of Churwell Community Centre and also 
the possibility of re-opening Stanhope Memorial Hall. An estimate for costs to re-open 
Stanhope stand at approximately £235,000 and the sale value of Churwell has been 
estimated in the region of £110,000. A meeting to discuss the way forward with this 
will be held in the New Year.  

 
6.4 A request to review the level of rent at West Ardsley Community Centre has been put 

forward by Kaleidoscope, who lease the facility from the Council for the provision of 
before and after school childcare. They have requested that the rent remain at £3,000 
for 2009/10. This is mainly due to the likely impact on numbers of a similar provision 
opening at the nearby Westerton Primary School. Area Management are awaiting for 
further information from Kaleidoscope and this will be presented to the February Area 
Committee for consideration and decision. 

 
7.0    Cleaner Neighbourhoods Sub Group  
 
7.1  The Cleaner Neighbourhoods Sub Group met on Tuesday 4th November, minutes at 

Appendix 2, to discuss Environmental issues and actions from the Area Delivery Plan 
(ADP). The new action plan format (Appendix 3) was agreed by the sub group to 
reflect the link with the ADP and to prioritise actions. 

 
7.2  Operation Champion is a multi agency crime and grime initiative.  It brings together a 

range of agencies working in partnership to; reduce crime and anti social behaviour, 
tackle environmental issues such as litter, and provide public reassurance and 
support. A full report on the recent Operation Champion held in Ardsley and Robin 
Hood will be considered elsewhere on the agenda. The Divisional Community Safety 
Partnership has approved the 2009 schedule (Appendix 4) for Operation Champion 
across South Leeds. Outer South continues to receive the two Champions per year 
and Members are asked to approve this schedule. 

Page 75



7.3  Litterbins 
 
7.3.1  Recent weekends have seen installations of new litterbins in all four wards across the 

Outer South. Area Management continue to work with Environmental Services on 
litterbin installation and it is expected that the 2005/06 and 2007/08 litterbins projects 
will be completed by the end of the January 2009. 

 
7.3.2   As a result of new litterbins being installed in Leeds City Centre, the old city centre 

litterbins are being refurbished to locate across the wider area. This will provide the 
Outer South Area Committee with an additional two litterbins per ward. Environmental 
Services will be coordinating identifying the locations, installation and maintenance of 
these litterbins. Area Committee is reminded that following the installation of all the 
litterbins funded by the Area Committee and the round of refurbished litterbins, 
Environmental Services have notified Area Management that the maintenance 
capacity will be reached and they can not support any further allocations of litterbins 
to be installed and emptied. 

 
8.0 Town & District Centre Regeneration Scheme  
 
8.1  Marsh Street 
 
8.1.1 Delays continue with this project because of the intervention of planning. Parks & 

Countryside who have been commissioned to carry out the works are waiting for a 
report which will detail objections to the proposals. Once received officers will 
consider next steps. Work undertaken by Parking Services has seen the clearance of 
vegetation with only a small part of the site remaining to be cleared. When the full 
works begin the contractor will work from the back of the site so that minimal 
disruption is caused to the public and to ensure a clear safe pedestrian route is 
maintained. 

  

8.2  Morley Bottoms  
 
8.2.1   The lay-by is nearing completion, however the formal procedure for Highways to       

formally adopt the lay-by needs to be completed.  
 
8.2.2   S215 Enforcement Action  
 

One property has been renovated and a further two are lodged in court. One of the      
owners is now in breach and LCC intends to ask the court to take action against them, 
on the basis of a £50 per day fine. The prosecuting solicitor, requested further 
evidence, this has obtained from LCC Planning Enforcement officers. The cases are 
to be dealt with as a priority. 

 
8.2.3   Chapel Hill Properties  
 

A purchase price has been agreed with the property owners on a subject to      
contract/without prejudice basis.  
 

Leeds City Council has agreed to gap fund the Yorkshire Housing Association      
scheme. Yorkshire Housing Association has undertaken revised appraisals. LCC 
officers will meet with YHA in order to discuss the appraisals and outline scheme. 
YHA intend to their proposals with the Housing Corporation in December/January. 
 

 

Page 76



9.0 Conservation Audits 
 
9.1  At the September 2007 Area Committee, additional Well-being funding was approved 

towards conservation audits for Morley and Rothwell. 
 
 Morley 
 
9.2  The Community Conservation Officer is appraising the existing conservation area and 

looking at areas of possible extension. A map will be created of any proposed areas 
of extension. Initial thoughts from the Conservation Officer are that it seems likely that 
the extensions will be fairly extensive.  

 
9.3   The map outlining the proposed extended conversation area will form the basis of 

discussion with the steering group, Ward and town Councillors. The first draft of the 
consultation version of the appraisal will be prepared by early December, with the 
formal public consultation planned to take place in January.  

 
 Rothwell 
 
9.4   Work is due to begin in December on the Rothwell Conservation Area Appraisal. The  

work will be undertaken by Naomi Archer, one of three community conservation 
officers who have been employed to carry out 18 conservation area appraisals this 
financial year.  

 
9.5  Conservation areas are places with ‘special architectural or historic interest, the 

character or appearance of which it is desirable to preserve or enhance’. The 
appraisal will clearly identify what makes Rothwell a special and distinctive place, 
identify any negative features or issues that currently detract from its special character 
and make recommendations for future conservation management and enhancement.   

 
9.6   Initial research and analysis will begin in December with public consultation on a draft  

of the appraisal timetabled for February and adoption of the final appraisal by mid 
April. Community consultation is an important part of the process and essential to 
ensure that the appraisal reflects what is valued by the local community. Everyone will 
be encouraged to get involved and have their say.  

 
9.7    In addition to this wider consultation, an advisory panel will be established to guide  

the production of the appraisal and will include representatives from the following 
groups: 

 
o Area Committee 
o Rothwell & District Historical Society 
o Rothwell In Bloom 
o Rothwell Traders 

 
The Panel’s role will be to provide local knowledge on the issues affecting the town  
and its historic environment.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 77



10.0  Participatory Budgeting 
 
10.1  Area Management were invited by the Participatory Budgeting Unit to deliver a 

presentation on the process and findings from the South Leeds pilot at a seminar at 
Bradford University on the 6th November.  The seminar was aimed at local authority 
and voluntary sector officers who were researching the concept of PB. The 
Participatory Budgeting Unit are undertaking a programme of education and 
marketing of PB to support the achievement of the following aim outlined in the 
‘Participatory Budgeting: a National Strategy’ that ‘By 2012, the Government’s 
ambition is that participatory budgeting is used in every local authority area’.  

 
10.2  Directors from the Board of the Department of Communities and Local Government 

(DCLG) visited Leeds on Friday 7th November. A number from the party received a 
tour of South Leeds that concluded in a presentation on the Outer South PB pilot. 
Drighlington Parish Council and Area Management Officers gave an account of the 
project and its outcomes. Members from CLG welcomed the comments from the 
Parish Council representatives as key partners in the scheme and as community 
members. 

 
10.3  In support of the Area Committee’s role of community engagement, Area 

Management applied to the Aire Valley Homes, Outer South Area Panel for £30,000 
to support participatory budgeting schemes in the Outer South. AMT attended the 
panel meeting on the 6th November were the idea was well received; the panel 
approved the full amount over two years. This funding for participatory budgeting 
schemes will form part of the Outer South community engagement strategy, to be 
considered elsewhere on the agenda. 

 
11.0   Youth Service  
 
11.1  In 2008/09 the Executive Board gave Area Committees an enhanced responsibility in 

influencing, developing and consulting over local Children and Young People’s Plans.  
 
11.2  Youth workers focus on the actions and behaviour of young people and address 

relevant matters. Young people are encouraged to reflect on their behaviour and the 
consequences to the community and themselves. All the Youth Service sessions are 
linked to the Every Child Matters five key outcomes (Staying Safe, Enjoying & 
Achieving, Being Healthy, Making a positive contribution and Economic Well being). 
The Youth Service has also included Equality within the ECM, to ensure all young 
people are supported. 

 
11.3  Details of the full programme of activities operated by Youth Service in Ardsley and 

Robin Hood (Appendix 5), Rothwell (Appendix 6) and Morley (Appendix 7) are 
attached for Members to note. 

 
11.4 Mobile Provision and Staffing 
 
11.4.1 A mobile unit has been allocated to Outer South Area, under the direction of the 
 Youth service Managers. At present the mobile provision has been operational since 
 20th October 2008 and is delivering sessions for sixteen and a half hours per week 
 in the Outer South.  

 
11.4.2 The mobile provision is a new facility that Leeds Youth Service is committed to and 

aims to ensure maximum usage is achieved and of a benefit to young people across 

Page 78



the Outer South Area on an ongoing basis.  The following areas are identified as 
priority areas: 

 
Ø Ardsley & Robin Hood (West Ardsley / Robin Hood / Hopefields) 
Ø Rothwell Ward (Wood Lane /  Woodlesford) 
Ø Morley North (Drighlington / Gildersome) 
Ø Morley South ( Central Morley / Newlands) 

 
11.4.3The Youth Service, is currently recruiting staff that when appointed it will see the 
 facility operational for five nights per week across the Outer South Area. The mobile 
 provision is new to the Outer South Area and is aimed at primarily targeting young 
 people aged 13+, the facility will enable the Youth Service to focus in parts of the area 
 that have previously been difficult to engage with young people. The priorities for the 
 Youth Service are to provide guidance, support and be an advocate while assisting 
 young people to develop their lifestyle. Youth Workers aim to guide young people into 
 becoming more active citizens within their community, while addressing issues of Anti 
 Social / criminal behaviour. The mobile is a warm welcoming facility that is proving 
 popular and reducing the level of ASB reports. The mobile provision will increase the 
 number of opportunities for young people to engage in. 
 
11.4.4 Leeds Youth Service has spent a total of £69,237.00 on purchasing the bus and 

covering staffing, fuel and parking for one year. 
 
11.4.5 The facility will contribute to the reduction of anti social behaviour and can target  

areas of concerns. Young people will have access to facilities that support the 
reduction in teenage pregnancies / STD’s. Young people will be able to utilise their 
social time in a positive manner, and be supported in directing their energy into 
constructive outcomes. The facility will aim to develop positive relationships between 
young people / youth workers and Police, reducing the negative image of young 
people in the community. 

 
11.4.6 Youth Service Managers aim to use the mobile provision to target areas where young 

people are known to congregate and will engage young people in diversionary 
activities in a safe environment. A proposal has been developed with member 
support, in conjunction with Area Management and Youth Service requesting Area 
Committee match funding to improve the facilities available on the bus. Details are 
presented for consideration in Well-being Report. 

 
12.0 Recommendations 
 
12.1  The Area Committee is asked to note the above information and make comment as 

appropriate. 
12.2 Members are asked to comment on identifying and adopting or sponsoring telephone 

boxes in the Outer South as outlined in 2.2.  
12.3 Members are asked to note the progress made in developing a protocol for the use of 

CCTV. 
12.4 Members are asked to agree the arrangements for the Rothwell Conservation 

Appraisal and agree a representative to the Advisory Panel. 
12.5 Members are asked to consider ring fencing a proportion of capital well being funding 

for developments at Smithy Lane Recreational Ground as outlined in 4.1. 
12.6 Members are asked to agree the 2009 schedule of Operation Champions at Appendix 

4 as outlined in 7.2. 
12.5 Members are asked to note the Outer South programme of youth service activities as 

outlined in 11.4. 

Page 79



 
Background Papers: 
 

Ø CCTV 7th July 2008 
 
Ø Well being Report 20th October 2008 

 
Ø Area Managers 20th October 2008 

 
Ø Marsh Street Car Park February 2008 

 
Ø Conservation Area Reviews 10th September 2007 

 
Ø Area Committee Roles for 2008/09 1st September 2008 

 
Ø Priority Neighbourhood Worker and Neighbourhood Improvement Plans 1st 

September 
 

 

Page 80



ndix 2 

 
 
 

PRESENT: Councillor Grayshon (in the chair) 
Councillor Wilson 
Officers: Sarah May, Sharon Smith and Les Reed 

APOLOGIES: Councillor Dunn and Gettings, Tom O’Donovan 
 

1. Matters arising and minutes of the last meeting  
 Minutes of the meeting held in June were agreed as an accurate record.  
   
2. Community Centres Action Plan  
 An updated version of the action plan was presented and is attached to the minutes. 

 
Windmill – Cllr Wilson mentioned that the worktops in the kitchen had been scratched 
and may need replacing, due to workmen removing asbestos. SM said that she would 
arrange a visit to the building once the works had been complete to highlight any issues 
that may need resolving. 
 
Blackburn Hall – Some of chairs in the facility are quite old and worn. It is suggested 
that some of surplus chairs from Morley Town Hall are moved to Blackburn Hall to be 
used for large events. 

 
 
 

   
3. Key Holding at Community Centres  
 There are five criteria which groups need to meet to be eligible for key holding within 

Area Committee community centres: 
That they have had an operational base in the community centre for over a year or can 
provide a reference from a council department or Councillor to evidence a positive 
working relationship with the council. 
The group has a management committee that meets regularly. 
The group has a Constitution/Memorandum & Articles of Association. 
Where appropriate the group keeps accounts and can provide a copy of their latest 
audited annual accounts. 
They have a signed lease, licence agreement or regular letting agreement in place. 
 
If members know of a group that may be appropriate for key holding and can meet the 
above criteria, please let SM know in order to progress this further. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
All 

   
4. AOB  
 Cllr Wilson mentioned that funds had now been secured for the changing room facilities 

at Rose Lund Centre. 
 

   
5. Time and date of next meeting  
 A forward schedule of meetings have been drawn up for future community centre sub 

committees:- 
Wednesday 19th November, Churwell Community Centre 
Wednesday 18th February, St Gabriel’s Community Centre 
 
Following these meetings, two venues will be decided upon to hold the committee 
meetings in on a rotational basis. 

 

 
 
 
 

Appendix 1 
Outer South Community Centres Sub Committee 

Wednesday 13th August 2008 
 

Page 81



ndix 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 

PRESENT: Councillor Grayshon (in the chair) 
Councillor Gettings 
Councillor Wilson 
Officers: Sarah May and Sharon Smith  

APOLOGIES: Councillor Dunn, Tom O’Donovan, Les Reed 
 

1. Matters arising and minutes of the last meeting  
 Minutes of the meeting held in June were agreed as an accurate record. 

 
An agenda item around backlog maintenance will be put on the agenda for the February 
meeting. 

 
 

SM 

   
2. Community Centres Action Plan  
 An updated version of the action plan was presented. 

 
Blackburn Hall – There are some issues with parking spaces that have been marked at 
the centre. Parking Services are rectifying the problem. 
 
Morley Town Hall – A Frame has not been provided for piano in Large Banqueting 
Room. SM to purchase one from the Area Committee improvement funding allocated for 
the Town Hall. 
 
Windmill YC – a site visit with Rothwell Ward Members is arranged for Monday 15th 
December. SM has contacted surveyor and internal decorating and new flooring is to be 
put down within next couple of weeks. 

 
 
 
 
 

SM 
 
 

   
3. AOB  
 Youth Service are currently clearing out and tidying up their storage space in St 

Gabriel’s and Tingley Youth & Community Centre 
 

   
4. Time and date of next meeting  
 The next meeting of the sub committee will take place on Wednesday 18th February, St 

Gabriel’s Community Centre, 10am. 
 
A forward schedule of dates will be produced and future meetings will be held at Morley 
Town Hall and Windmill Youth Centre on a rotational basis. Invitations will be sent out 
via Lotus Notes. 

 

 
 

Outer South Community Centres Sub Committee 
Wednesday 19th November 2008 

 

Page 82



Appendix 2 

 
 

Cleaner Neighbourhoods Sub-Group 
 10.30am Tuesday 4

th
 November 2008 

 Small Banqueting Room 
Morley Town Hall  

 

 

ATTENDANCE  

Cllr Judith Elliott Ward Councillor (Chair) 

Cllr Bob Gettings Ward Councillor 

Cllr Jack Dunn Ward Councillor 

Emma Charlton Environmental Services 

Shaun Wright Parks & Countryside 

Anita Keaveny Environmental Enforcement Action Team 

Sarah Henderson Area Management Team 

 

1.0 Welcome and Introductions ACTION 

1.1 Introductions were made and everyone was welcomed. 
 

 

2.0 Apologies  

2.1 Cllr Golton, Angela Smith Environmental Services, Rachel Charlton 
Education and Awareness Assistant Environmental Services. Sue 
Spellman, Aire Valley Homes and Steve Wetherill, Environmental 
Services. 
 

 

3.0 Minutes and Matters Arising  

3.1 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
3.4 
 
 
 
 
3.5 

Minutes were agreed as an accurate record. 
 
Flytipping at Lower Thorpe Lane under Motorway Bridge continues 
to be an issue. Referral made to Environmental Enforcement Action 
Team. 
 
List of ginnels in Drighlington and Gildersome identified by the 
Parish Councils passed to Area Management to send to 
Environmental Services to record. 
 
Environmental Pride held on 29

th
 October at Troy Hill in Morley 

South to tackle littering and overgrown vegetation. Environmental 
Services did excellent job with litter picking but AVH did not 
contribute to the initiative. Environmental Manager to be contacted. 
 
Member request for leaf sweeping schedules for streets in Rothwell 
and confirmation that this includes parallel pavement clearing as 
well as road clearance. Referral to be emailed to Environmental 
Services following meeting. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
AK 
 
 
 
SH 
 
 
 
 
SH 
 
 
 
 
 
SH 

Page 83



 2 

4.0 Action Plan  

4.1 
 
4.2 

New format for action plan agreed. 
 
Updates on Action Plan received. See Action Plan. 

 

 

5.0 Operation Flame  

5.1 
 
 
5.2 

Operation Flame is the multi agency operation over bonfire night 
period. 
 
Operation Flame will run from Friday 31 October to Wednesday 5 
November in the South Leeds area. Its main purpose is to stem the 
historical increase in crime over the period. Morley & Rothwell NPT 
will provide teams to target offenders and conduct high visibility 
patrols in the most problematic areas All agencies will be identifying 
and reporting debris (missiles/fire hazards) by sending an email to: 
cs.south.referrals@leeds.gov.uk. Please mark as “Operation Flame” 
 

 

6.0 Any Other Business  

6.1 None 
 

 

7.0 Date of the next meeting  

7.1 10.30am, Tuesday 20
th
 January 2009, Morley Town Hall, Small 

Banqueting Room. 
SH 

 

Page 84



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 3

4
.1

1
.0

8
O

u
te

r 
S

o
u

th
 C

le
a
n

e
r 

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 S
u

b
 G

ro
u

p
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
A

D
P

 A
c
ti

o
n

 2
0
0
8
/0

9
C

N
 A

c
ti

o
n

W
h

o
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

 

L
it

te
rb

in
s

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 C
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 t
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

tr
e
e
t 
c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s
 i
n
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 

a
re

a
s
 e

.g
. 
m

e
c
h
a
n
ic

a
l 
s
w

e
e
p
e
rs

, 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
lit

te
rb

in
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

E
n
s
u
re

 i
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
0
5
/6

 a
n
d
 

0
7
/0

8
 l
it
te

rb
in

s

A
re

a
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
/ 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
th

ro
u
g
h
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 w

a
s
te

 a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 

s
tr

e
e
t 
c
le

a
n
in

g
.

L
it
te

rb
in

 i
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 b

y
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 O

u
te

r 
S

o
u
th

. 

B
ro

w
n

 B
in

s
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
g
a
rd

e
n
 w

a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
.

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 r
o
ll 

o
u
t 
o
f 
B

ro
w

n
 

B
in

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 i
n
 O

u
te

r 

S
o
u
th

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 /
 A

re
a
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
/ 
g
a
rd

e
n
 w

a
s
te

 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 

a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 

a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
.

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 g

a
rd

e
n
 w

a
s
te

 g
o
in

g
 

to
 l
a
n
d
fi
ll.

B
ro

w
n
 b

in
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t
o
 a

ll 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
8
/0

9
. 

R
e
m

a
in

in
g
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 

to
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 b

ro
w

n
 b

in
s
 w

ill
 d

o
 s

o
 

in
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
.

G
in

n
e
ls

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 C
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 t
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

tr
e
e
t 
c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s
 i
n
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 

a
re

a
s
 e

.g
. 
m

e
c
h
a
n
ic

a
l 
s
w

e
e
p
e
rs

, 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
lit

te
rb

in
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

M
a
p
 g

in
n
e
ls

 i
n
 O

u
te

r 
S

o
u
th

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

D
e
fi
n
it
iv

e
 l
is

t 
o
f 
g
in

n
e
l 
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

.

R
o
th

w
e
ll 

fi
rs

t 
w

a
rd

 t
o
 b

e
 

m
a
p
p
e
d
, 
C

a
rl
to

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

D
ri
g
h
lin

g
to

n
 a

n
d
 G

ild
e
rs

o
m

e
 

P
a
ri
s
h
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t
o
 

g
in

n
e
l 
m

a
p
p
in

g
.

Y
o

u
th

 R
e
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
 

S
c
h

e
m

e

D
e
liv

e
r 

Y
o
u
th

 R
e
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 i
n
 O

u
te

r 
S

o
u
th

 L
e
e
d
s

Y
o
u
th

 R
e
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 

in
 O

u
te

r 
S

o
u
th

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 /
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 l
it
te

r 
d
ro

p
p
in

g
, 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 

a
p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 o

f 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
 

a
n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 e
d
u
c
a
te

d
 

re
g
a
rd

in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
.

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 

re
p
o
rt

 w
h
e
th

e
r 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 g

o
in

g
 

a
h
e
a
d

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l

H
o

ts
p

o
ts

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 C
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 t
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

tr
e
e
t 
c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s
 i
n
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 

a
re

a
s
 e

.g
. 
m

e
c
h
a
n
ic

a
l 
s
w

e
e
p
e
rs

, 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
lit

te
rb

in
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 t
o
 t
a
c
k
le

 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
h
o
ts

p
o
ts

.

A
re

a
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
/ 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

U
s
e
 o

f 
p
ro

b
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 t
o
 

ta
c
k
le

 h
o
ts

p
o
ts

. 
L
a
n
d
 o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

 

a
n
d
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 w
it
h
 C

A
S

T
 t
o
 b

e
 

re
s
e
a
rc

h
e
d

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l

P
ri

d
e

D
e
liv

e
r 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

ri
d
e
 I
n
it
a
ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
. 

A
ir
e
 V

a
lle

y
 H

o
m

e
s
 /
 A

re
a
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
/ 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

ri
d
e
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 h

e
ld

.I
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 

a
p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 r

a
is

in
g
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

m
o
n
g
s
t 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 g

ro
u
p
s
, 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 

o
n
 a

ll 
a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 
R

e
d
u
c
e
, 
R

e
u
s
e
 R

e
c
y
c
le

 e
.g

. 
G

a
rd

e
n
 W

a
s
te

, 

R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 G

re
e
n
 B

in
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
.

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 /
 

G
ro

u
n
d
w

o
rk

 /
 A

re
a
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 r

a
is

in
g
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
. 
In

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

w
a
s
te

 r
e
c
y
c
le

d
. 
In

c
re

a
s
e
d
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 a

m
o
n
g
s
t 

O
u
te

r 
S

o
u
th

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
.

Im
p
ro

v
e
/i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 '
 B

ri
n
g
 S

it
e
s
' r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
.

M
o
rl
e
y
 a

n
d
 R

o
th

w
e
ll 

s
it
e
s
 

to
 b

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d

A
re

a
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
/ 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 b

ri
n
g
 s

it
e
s
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 /
 n

e
w

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
.I
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

w
a
s
te

 r
e
c
y
c
le

d
.

M
o
rl
e
y
 a

n
d
 R

o
th

w
e
ll 

B
ri
n
g
 S

it
e
s
 

u
n
d
e
rg

o
n
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

G
a
rd

e
n

M
a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

S
c
h

e
m

e

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 g
a
rd

e
n
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 f
o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 O

u
te

r 
S

o
u
th

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
G

a
rd

e
n
 

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 i
n
 

O
u
te

r 
S

o
u
th

.

P
a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 C

o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 /
 M

o
rl
e
y
 

E
ld

e
rl
y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 /
 C

a
re

 &
 R

e
p
a
ir
 

L
e
e
d
s
 /
 A

re
a
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
/ 
A

ir
e
 

V
a
lle

y
 H

o
m

e
s
.

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
e
o
p
le

 

b
e
n
e
fi
ti
n
g
 f
ro

m
 g

a
rd

e
n
 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 i
n
 O

u
te

r 

S
o
u
th

 L
e
e
d
s
.I
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 

a
p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 o

f 
g
a
rd

e
n
s
. 

V
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 O

u
te

r 

S
o
u
th

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 i
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 C

a
re

 a
n
d
 R

e
p
a
ir
 L

e
e
d
s
 

a
n
d
 M

o
rl
e
y
 E

ld
e
rl
y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
. 
R

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 

b
e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
 

s
in

g
le

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 t
h
a
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
e
 

w
h
o
le

 o
f 
th

e
 O

u
te

r 
S

o
u
th

.

D
o

g
 W

a
rd

e
n

 

P
a
tr

o
ls

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 D
o
g
 W

a
rd

e
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 a

re
a
s
.

M
o
n
it
o
r 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
D

o
g
 

W
a
rd

e
n
s
 i
n
 O

u
te

r 
S

o
u
th

.

C
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
/ 
A

re
a
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
/ 
P

a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 

C
o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d
a
y
s
 i
n
 O

u
te

r 

S
o
u
th

 W
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fi
n
e
s
 

is
s
u
e
d
.I
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 a

p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 o

f 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 a

re
a
s
 i
n
 O

u
te

r 

S
o
u
th

.R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 d

o
g
 f
o
u
lin

g
 a

n
d

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 s

tr
e
e
t 
c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s
.

S
ti
c
k
e
rs

 b
e
e
n
 p

u
t 
o
n
 l
a
m

p
o
s
ts

 i
n
 

G
ild

e
rs

o
m

e
. 
P

ro
v
is

io
n
 b

e
in

g
 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 S

c
ru

n
ti
n
y
 

B
o
a
rd

.

R
e
c
y
c
li
n

g

Page 85



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 3

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n

C
h

a
m

p
io

n

D
e
liv

e
r 

m
u
lt
i 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 C

ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 G

ri
m

e
 i
n
it
a
ti
v
e
s
 i
n
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
tw

o
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 O

u
te

r 
S

o
u
th

A
re

a
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
/ 
A

ir
e
 V

a
lle

y
 

H
o
m

e
s
 /
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

/ 
P

o
lic

e
 /
 F

ir
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 /
 Y

o
u
th

 

S
e
rv

ic
e

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
.

1
4
th

 -
1
6
th

 O
c
to

b
e
r 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

C
h
a
m

p
io

n
 i
n
 A

rd
s
le

y
 a

n
d
 R

o
b
in

 

H
o
o
d
 W

a
rd

.

T
a
c
k
le

 g
ra

ff
it
i 
h
o
ts

p
o
ts

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
g
ra

ff
it
ti
 i
n
c
id

e
n
ts

 

re
m

o
v
e
d
. 
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 g

ra
ff
it
i

G
ra

ff
it
i 
lo

g
 e

m
a
ile

d
 t
o
 A

M
T

T
a
c
k
le

 n
e
e
d
le

 w
a
s
te

.
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
n
e
e
d
le

s
 

re
m

o
v
e
d
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 n

e
e
d
le

 

w
a
s
te

N
e
e
d
le

 l
o
g
 e

m
a
ile

d
 t
o
 A

M
T

T
a
c
k
le

 f
ly

ti
p
p
in

g
 a

n
d
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
h
o
ts

p
o
ts

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

%
 o

f 
fl
y
ti
p
p
in

g
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 

ti
m

e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
a
rg

e
ts

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 

a
p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 o

f 
a
re

a
 -

 l
e
s
s
 l
it
te

r 
o
n
 

s
tr

e
e
t

B
u
lk

y
 W

a
s
te

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
n
 O

u
te

r 

S
o
u
th

 N
e
w

s
le

tt
e
r

C
A

S
T

T
a
rg

e
t 
th

e
 C

A
S

T
 T

e
a
m

 t
o
 t
a
c
k
le

 h
o
ts

p
o
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 o

u
te

r 

s
o
u
th

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 f
ro

m
 E

le
c
te

d
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

, 
A

re
a
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,
 P

o
lic

e
. 
F

ir
e
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

A
g
e
n
c
ie

s

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 /
 A

re
a
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

 /
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
A

c
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

s

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
C

a
s
t 
R

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
.I
m

p
ro

v
e
d

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
a
p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 o

f 

h
o
ts

p
o
ts

 i
n
 O

u
te

r 
S

o
u
th

.

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 g

ro
u
p
s
 i
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
e
.g

. 
In

 B
lo

o
m

 G
ro

u
p
s

A
re

a
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
/ 
P

a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 

C
o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 /
 E

n
v
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 /
A

ir
e
 

V
a
lle

y
 H

o
m

e
s

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
g
ro

u
p
s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
.I
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 a

p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 

o
f 
lo

c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
 a

n
d
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 p

ri
d
e
.

P
ro

v
id

e
 s

k
ip

s
 f
o
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

le
a
n
 u

p
s
.

A
re

a
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

k
ip

s
 

re
q
u
e
s
ts

.I
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 a

p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 o

f 

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

s
e
n
s
e
 o

f 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 p

ri
d
e

G
re

e
n

 S
p

a
c
e

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
g
re

e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 a

re
a
s
 

a
n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 g

re
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 e

.g
. 
S

it
e
 B

a
s
e
d
 G

a
rd

e
n
e
rs

. 

P
a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 C

o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 /
 A

re
a
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 g

re
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 i
n
 O

u
te

r 

S
o
u
th

.I
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
g
re

e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
.

R
e
d

u
c
e

E
m

is
s
io

n
s

A
ll 

L
C

C
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 i
n
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

 g
e
t 
e
n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 

ra
ti
n
g
.

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 e

n
e
rg

y
 

e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 r

a
ti
n
g
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 e

n
e
rg

y
 

b
ill

s
.R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 f
ro

m
 

L
C

C
b
u

ild
in

g
s
.

E
n
e
rg

y
 G

u
a
rd

ia
n
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
o
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
.

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
.R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

in
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 f
ro

m
 L

C
C

 b
u
ild

in
g
s

D
ri
v
e
r 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 t
ra

in
in

g
. 
R

o
u
te

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 i
n
to

 

fu
e
l 
e
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
fl
e
e
t 
v
e
h
ic

le
s

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
in

it
a
ti
v
e
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

to
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 f
u
e
l 

e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
.R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

Im
p

a
c
t 

o
n

 C
li
m

a
te

 

C
h

a
n

g
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 o

f 
g
u
lly

 e
m

p
ty

in
g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
.

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 g

u
lly

 e
m

p
ty

in
g
. 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 s

y
s
te

m
 t
o
 c

o
p
e
 w

it
h
 

h
e
a
v
y
 r

a
in

fa
lls

 a
n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 r

is
k
 o

f 

lo
c
a
lis

e
d
 f
lo

o
d
in

g
.

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 n

e
w

 g
re

e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 t
o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 r

a
in

 s
a
tu

ra
ti
o
n
 .

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 /
 P

a
rk

s
 

a
n
d
 C

o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 /
 A

ir
e
 V

a
lle

y
 

H
o
m

e
s
 /
 A

re
a
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
 

a
n
d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 g
re

e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 

s
a
tu

ra
ti
o
n
 p

o
in

ts
 I
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

re
s
ile

n
c
e
 t
o
 c

lim
a
te

 c
h
a
n

g
e
 a

n
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

P
ri
o
ri
ty

 A
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
A

c
ti
o
n
s
 n

e
e
d
in

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

S
u

p
p

o
rt

A
S

B
R

e
fe

r 
a
ll 

in
c
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

re
m

o
v
a
l.
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

to
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

Page 86



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 4
 

 
2
0
0
9
 O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 C
h
a
m
p
io
n
 S
c
h
e
d
u
le
 

S
o
u
th
 L
e
e
d
s
 

M
o
n
th
 

D
a
te
s
 o
f 
O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

C
h
a
m
p
io
n
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

d
a
te
  

A
re
a
 

L
e
a
d
 

O
ff
ic
e
r 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

T
u
e
s
 1
3
 –
 T
h
u
rs
 1
5
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

T
u
e
s
 1
6
th
 D
e
c
 1
0
a
m
 D
e
w
s
b
u
ry
 

R
o
a
d
 O
n
e
 S
to
p
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

M
id
d
le
to
n
 

L
e
a
n
n
e
 

M
o
tt
e
rs
h
e
a
d
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

T
u
e
s
 2
4
 -
 T
h
u
rs
 2
6
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

T
u
e
s
 3
rd
 F
e
b
 1
0
a
m
 v
e
n
u
e
 t
o
 

b
e
 c
o
n
fi
rm
e
d
 

M
o
rl
e
y
 S
o
u
th
  

K
a
te
 S
ib
s
o
n
 

M
a
rc
h
 

T
u
e
s
 1
0
 –
 T
h
u
rs
 1
2
 M
a
rc
h
 

T
u
e
s
 1
7
th
 F
e
b
 1
0
a
m
 

D
e
w
s
b
u
ry
 R
o
a
d
 O
n
e
 S
to
p
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 

B
e
e
s
to
n
 H
ill
 

L
e
a
n
n
e
 

M
o
tt
e
rs
h
e
a
d
 

A
p
ri
l 

T
u
e
s
 3
1
 M
a
rc
h
 t
o
 T
h
u
rs
 2
 A
p
ri
l 

F
ri
 6
th
 M
a
rc
h
 1
0
a
m
 D
e
w
s
b
u
ry
 

R
o
a
d
 O
n
e
 S
to
p
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

H
o
lb
e
c
k
 

G
e
rr
y
 S
h
e
v
lin
 

M
a
y
 

W
e
d
 6
 –
 F
ri
 8
 M
a
y
 

W
e
d
 8
th
 A
p
ri
l 
1
0
a
m
 D
e
w
s
b
u
ry
 

R
o
a
d
 O
n
e
 S
to
p
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

H
u
n
s
le
t 

G
e
rr
y
 S
h
e
v
lin
 

J
u
n
e
 

T
u
e
s
 9
 –
 T
h
u
rs
 1
1
 J
u
n
e
 

T
u
e
s
 1
9
th
 M
a
y
 1
0
a
m
 D
e
w
s
b
u
ry
 

R
o
a
d
 O
n
e
 S
to
p
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

B
e
e
s
to
n
 H
ill
 

L
e
a
n
n
e
 

M
o
tt
e
rs
h
e
a
d
 

J
u
ly
 

T
u
e
s
 1
4
 –
 T
h
u
rs
 1
6
 J
u
ly
 

T
u
e
s
 2
3
rd
 J
u
n
e
 1
0
a
m
 

D
e
w
s
b
u
ry
 R
o
a
d
 O
n
e
 S
to
p
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 

B
e
lle
 I
s
le
 

L
e
a
n
n
e
 

M
o
tt
e
rs
h
e
a
d
 

A
u
g
u
s
t 

T
u
e
s
 4
 –
 T
h
u
rs
 6
 A
u
g
u
s
t 

T
u
e
s
 3
0
th
 J
u
n
e
 1
0
a
m
 

D
e
w
s
b
u
ry
 R
o
a
d
 O
n
e
 S
to
p
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 

M
o
rl
e
y
 N
o
rt
h
 

K
a
te
 S
ib
s
o
n
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

T
u
e
s
 8
 –
 T
h
u
rs
 1
0
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

T
u
e
s
 1
8
th
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
1
0
a
m
 

D
e
w
s
b
u
ry
 R
o
a
d
 O
n
e
 S
to
p
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 

B
e
e
s
to
n
 H
ill
 

L
e
a
n
n
e
 

M
o
tt
e
rs
h
e
a
d
 

O
c
to
b
e
r 

T
u
e
s
 6
 –
 T
h
u
rs
 8
 O
c
to
b
e
r 

F
ri
 1
1
th
 S
e
p
t 
1
0
a
m
 D
e
w
s
b
u
ry
 

R
o
a
d
 O
n
e
 S
to
p
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

F
a
r 
B
e
e
s
to
n
 

G
e
rr
y
 S
h
e
v
lin
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

T
u
e
s
 3
 –
 T
h
u
rs
 5
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

T
u
e
s
 1
3
th
 O
c
t 
1
0
a
m
 D
e
w
s
b
u
ry
 

R
o
a
d
 O
n
e
 S
to
p
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

B
e
e
s
to
n
 H
ill
 

L
e
a
n
n
e
 

M
o
tt
e
rs
h
e
a
d
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

N
o
 O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 t
h
is
 m
o
n
th
 

 
 

 

   

Page 87



Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 5
 

Y
O
U
T
H
 S
E
R
V
IC
E
 

Y
O
U
T
H
 G
R
O
U
P
S
 

A
R
D
S
L
E
Y
 &
 R
O
B
IN
 H
O
O
D
 

                                    

         

 
     

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
 
2
0
0
8
 

   

Page 89



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 5
 

Y
O
U
T
H
 S
E
R
V
IC
E
 

Y
O
U
T
H
 G
R
O
U
P
S
 

A
R
D
S
L
E
Y
 &
 R
O
B
IN
 H
O
O
D
 

 Q
I 

R
E
F
 

U
N
IT
 O
F
 W

O
R
K
 /
 P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 

T
A
K
IN
G
 P
L
A
C
E
 A
T
: 

F
u
ll
 A
d
d
re
s
s
 

A
G
E
 

G
R
O
U
P
 

S
E
S
S
IO
N
S
 H
E
L
D
  

D
A
Y
S
  
&
 T
IM

E
S
 

P
E
R
S
O
N
 

R
E
S
P
O
N
S
IB
L
E
 

S
E
N
IO
R
 W

O
R
K
E
R
 

A
R
1
 

   

R
O
B
IN
 H
O
O
D
 M
O
B
IL
E
 P
R
O
V
IS
IO
N
  
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 m

e
e
t,
 s
o
c
ia
lis
e
, 
a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

in
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 w

h
ile
 h
a
v
in
g
 f
u
n
 i
n
 a
 

s
a
fe
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
 

S
h
a
rp
 L
a
n
e
 P
la
y
in
g
 F
ie
ld
 

S
h
a
rp
 L
a
n
e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
1
 t
o
 1
6
 

  

T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 

  

6
.0
0
 –
 7
.3
0
 

  

P
a
m
 A
b
b
o
tt
 

N
a
ta
lie
 B
a
tt
y
e
 

G
le
n
 O
’M
a
lle
y
 

A
R
2
 

R
O
B
IN
 H
O
O
D
 M
O
B
IL
E
 P
R
O
V
IS
IO
N
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 m

e
e
t,
 s
o
c
ia
lis
e
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

in
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 w
h
ile
 h
a
v
in
g
 f
u
n
 i
n
 a
 

s
a
fe
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
  

O
ld
 H
a
lf
w
a
y
 H
o
u
s
e
  

L
e
a
d
w
e
ll 
L
a
n
e
 

1
1
 t
o
 1
6
 

T
h
u
rs
d
a
y
 

7
.3
0
 –
 9
.0
0
 

P
a
m
 A
b
b
o
tt
 

N
a
ta
lie
 B
a
tt
y
e
 

G
le
n
 O
’M
a
lle
y
 

A
R
3
 

R
O
B
IN
 H
O
O
D
 M
O
B
IL
E
 P
R
O
V
IS
IO
N
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 m

e
e
t,
 s
o
c
ia
lis
e
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

in
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 w
h
ile
 h
a
v
in
g
 f
u
n
 i
n
 a
 

s
a
fe
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
  

S
h
a
rp
 L
a
n
e
 P
la
y
in
g
 F
ie
ld
 

S
h
a
rp
 L
a
n
e
 

1
1
 t
o
 1
6
 

F
ri
d
a
y
  

6
.0
0
 –
 9
.0
0
 

J
o
h
n
 M
e
n
d
e
s
 

K
im
 P
o
o
le
 

 

A
R
4
 

T
IN
G
L
E
Y
 S
E
N
IO
R
 G
IR
L
S
 

P
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
l 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 

d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 y
o
u
n
g
 w
o
m
e
n
’s
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

i.
e
. 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
. 

T
in
g
le
y
 Y
o
u
th
 &
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 

S
m
it
h
y
 L
a
n
e
 

T
in
g
le
y
 

W
F
3
 1
Q
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
1
+
 

M
o
n
d
a
y
 

 
7
.4
5
 –
 2
1
.0
0
 

K
im
 W

a
lk
e
r 

A
R
5
 

E
A
S
T
 A
R
D
S
L
E
Y
 I
N
T
E
R
M
E
D
IA
T
E
 Y
O
U
T
H
 

C
L
U
B
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
c
a
n
 
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 
in
 
a
 
v
a
ri
e
ty
 
o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 w
h
ic
h
 h
e
lp
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
if
e
 a
n
d
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
s
k
ill
s
. 
A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 c
o
o
k
in
g
, 
a
rt
s
 &
 

c
ra
ft
s
, 
tr
ip
s
 o
u
t 
a
n
d
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
g
a
m
e
s
. 

S
t 
G
a
b
ri
e
l’s
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 

F
a
ll 
L
a
n
e
 

E
a
s
t 
A
rd
s
le
y
 

W
F
3
 2
B
G
 

 

1
1
 t
o
 1
3
 

T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 

6
.0
0
 –
 8
.0
0
 

S
h
a
ro
n
 B
o
tt
o
m
le
y
 

M
e
l 
T
a
y
lo
r 

M
o
n
d
a
y
 

  

7
.0
0
 –
 9
.0
0
 

  

J
o
h
n
 M
e
n
d
e
s
 

D
a
v
id
 W

a
lt
o
n
 

A
R
6
 

E
A
S
T
 A
R
D
S
L
E
Y
 S
E
N
IO
R
 Y
O
U
T
H
 C
L
U
B
  

Y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 m

e
e
t,
 s
o
c
ia
lis
e
, 
a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

in
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 w

h
ile
 h
a
v
in
g
 f
u
n
 i
n
 a
 

s
a
fe
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
  

S
t 
G
a
b
ri
e
l’s
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 

F
a
ll 
L
a
n
e
 

E
a
s
t 
A
rd
s
le
y
 

W
F
3
 2
B
G
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
3
 t
o
 1
9
 

T
h
u
rs
d
a
y
 

 
7
.0
0
 –
 9
.0
0
 

 
K
im
 W

a
lk
e
r 

D
a
v
id
 W

a
lt
o
n
 

A
R
7
 

T
IN
G
L
E
Y
 I
N
T
E
R
M
E
D
IA
T
E
 Y
O
U
T
H
 C
L
U
B
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
c
a
n
 
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 
in
 
a
 
v
a
ri
e
ty
 
o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 w
h
ic
h
 h
e
lp
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
if
e
 a
n
d
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
s
k
ill
s
. 
A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 c
o
o
k
in
g
, 
a
rt
s
 &
 

c
ra
ft
s
, 
tr
ip
s
 o
u
t 
a
n
d
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
g
a
m
e
s
. 

T
in
g
le
y
 Y
o
u
th
 &
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 

S
m
it
h
y
 L
a
n
e
 

T
in
g
le
y
 

W
F
3
 1
Q
  
  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
1
 t
o
 1
2
 

T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 

5
.0
0
 –
 7
.0
0
 

J
o
h
n
 M
e
n
d
e
s
  

K
im
 W

a
lk
e
r 

Page 90



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 5
 

Y
O
U
T
H
 S
E
R
V
IC
E
 

Y
O
U
T
H
 G
R
O
U
P
S
 

A
R
D
S
L
E
Y
 &
 R
O
B
IN
 H
O
O
D
 

 A
R
8
 

E
A
S
T
 A
R
D
S
L
E
Y
 C
 C
A
R
D
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 h
a
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

in
 
re
la
ti
o
n
 
to
 
s
e
x
u
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 
c
a
n
 

o
b
ta
in
 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 
to
 
re
d
u
c
e
 

te
e
n
a
g
e
 
p
re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
x
u
a
lly
 
tr
a
n
s
m
it
te
d
 

in
fe
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

S
t 
G
a
b
ri
e
l’s
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 

F
a
ll 
L
a
n
e
 

E
a
s
t 
A
rd
s
le
y
 

W
F
3
 2
B
G
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

1
3
 t
o
 1
9
 

T
h
u
rs
d
a
y
 

7
.0
0
 -
9
.0
0
 

 
O
N
 H
O
L
D
 

  
O
n
 h
o
ld
 u
n
ti
l 
s
ta
ff
 a
re
 

tr
a
in
e
d
! 

A
R
9
 

B
O
X
E
R
C
IS
E
 

H
e
a
lt
h
y
 
L
if
e
s
ty
le
s
 
/ 
F
it
n
e
s
s
 
s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 
w
h
e
re
 

y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
c
a
n
 
d
ir
e
c
t 
th
e
ir
 
e
n
e
rg
y
 
in
to
 
a
 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 

S
t 
G
a
b
ri
e
l’s
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 

F
a
ll 
L
a
n
e
 

E
a
s
t 
A
rd
s
le
y
 

W
F
3
 2
B
G
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
 

1
1
+
 

W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
 

4
.3
0
 -
 6
.3
0
 

 
O
N
 H
O
L
D
 

G
le
n
 O
’M
a
lle
y
 

A
R
1
0
 

 
T
IN
G
L
E
Y
 J
U
N
IO
R
S
  
D
A
N
C
E
 D
A
Z
L
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
a
n
c
e
 s
k
ill
s
. 
Im

p
ro
v
in
g
 

th
e
ir
 l
is
te
n
in
g
 s
k
ill
s
. 
B
e
in
g
 a
b
le
 t
o
 f
o
llo
w
 s
im
p
le
 

ru
le
s
. 

R
e
s
p
e
c
ti
n
g
 

d
is
c
ip
lin
e
. 

F
o
llo
w
in
g
 

in
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 
th
ro
u
g
h
 
e
n
jo
y
m
e
n
t.
 

K
e
e
p
in
g
 
a
c
ti
v
e
, 
fi
t 
a
n
d
 
h
e
a
lt
h
y
. 
M
a
k
in
g
 
n
e
w
 

a
n
d
 v
a
lu
e
d
 f
ri
e
n
d
s
h
ip
s
. 

 

T
in
g
le
y
 Y
o
u
th
 &
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 

S
m
it
h
y
 L
a
n
e
 

T
in
g
le
y
 

W
F
3
 1
Q
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

1
1
 

M
o
n
d
a
y
 

4
.3
0
 –
 5
.3
0
 

K
im
 W

a
lk
e
r 

 A
R
1
1
 

T
H
E
 H
E
A
L
T
H
 B
U
S
 (
P
C
T
) 

P
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
 s
a
fe
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 r
e
la
te
d
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 
fo
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
. 
W
o
rk
 
to
g
e
th
e
r 
in
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 
w
it
h
 
th
e
 
N
H
S
 
fo
r 
th
e
 
b
e
n
e
fi
t 
o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
. 
P
ro
v
id
e
 
u
p
 
to
 
d
a
te
 
re
le
v
a
n
t 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 
fo
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
. 

P
ro
v
id
e
 
a
 

s
ig
n
p
o
s
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
fo
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
. 
C
. 
C
a
rd
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 
M
e
d
ic
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
n
 

th
e
 
b
u
s
 
fo
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
to
 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 
if
 
th
e
y
 

n
e
e
d
 t
o
. 
P
re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 t
e
s
ti
n
g
/ 
C
h
la
m
y
d
ia
 t
e
s
ti
n
g
. 

T
in
g
le
y
 Y
o
u
th
 &
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 

S
m
it
h
y
 L
a
n
e
 

T
in
g
le
y
 

W
F
3
 1
Q
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

      
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
3
 t
o
 1
9
 

A
lt
e
rn
a
te
 

M
o
n
d
a
y
s
 

5
.0
0
 -
6
.3
0
 

J
o
h
n
 M
e
n
d
e
s
 

A
R
1
2
 

R
O
D
IL
L
IA
N
 M
O
B
IL
E
 P
R
O
V
IS
IO
N
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 m

e
e
t 
o
n
 m
o
b
ile
 y
o
u
th
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
s
 

a
im
e
d
 
a
t 
e
n
g
a
g
in
g
 
in
 
p
o
s
it
iv
e
 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 
a
n
d
 

re
c
e
iv
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
. 

R
o
d
ill
ia
n
 H
ig
h
 S
c
h
o
o
l 

E
n
tr
a
n
c
e
, 
L
o
n
g
th
o
rp
e
 L
a
n
e
, 

L
o
ft
h
o
u
s
e
, 

W
F
3
 3
P
S
 

  

1
1
+
 

T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 

4
.0
0
 –
 5
.4
5
 

N
a
ta
lie
 B
a
tt
y
e
 

G
le
n
 O
’ 
M
a
lle
y
 

Page 91



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 5
 

Y
O
U
T
H
 S
E
R
V
IC
E
 

Y
O
U
T
H
 G
R
O
U
P
S
 

A
R
D
S
L
E
Y
 &
 R
O
B
IN
 H
O
O
D
 

 A
R
1
4
 

W
IN
T
H
O
R
P
E
 S
E
N
IO
R
 Y
O
U
T
H
 C
L
U
B
  

Y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 m

e
e
t,
 s
o
c
ia
lis
e
, 
a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

in
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 w

h
ile
 h
a
v
in
g
 f
u
n
 i
n
 a
 

s
a
fe
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
 

W
in
th
o
rp
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

U
p
p
e
r 
T
h
o
rp
e
 

N
e
a
r 
W
a
k
e
fi
e
ld
  
  
  
  
 

   
  
  

1
3
 t
o
 1
9
 

T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 

6
.0
0
 -
 8
.0
0
 

  

A
lis
o
n
 D
ix
o
n
 

N
ig
e
l 
B
in
k
's
 

 

W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
 

7
.0
0
 –
 9
.0
0
 

A
R
2
1
 

T
IN
G
L
E
Y
 S
E
N
IO
R
 Y
O
U
T
H
 C
L
U
B
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 m

e
e
t,
 s
o
c
ia
lis
e
, 
a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

in
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 w

h
ile
 h
a
v
in
g
 f
u
n
 i
n
 a
 

s
a
fe
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
 

T
in
g
le
y
 Y
o
u
th
 &
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 

S
m
it
h
y
 L
a
n
e
 

T
in
g
le
y
 

W
F
3
 1
Q
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
3
 t
o
 1
9
 

 
O
N
 H
O
L
D
 

J
o
h
n
 M
e
n
d
e
s
 

K
im
 W

a
lk
e
r 

 

A
R
2
2
 

R
O
D
IL
L
IA
N
 S
C
H
O
O
L
 S
U
P
P
O
R
T
 (
Y
e
a
r 
8
) 

T
o
 
b
u
ild
 
y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
’s
 
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
lf
 

e
s
te
e
m
. 
L
e
a
rn
 
in
 
a
 
fu
n
 
a
n
d
 
n
o
n
 
th
re
a
te
n
in
g
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
 
T
o
 
le
a
rn
 
in
 
a
 
s
a
fe
, 
in
ti
m
id
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 
fr
e
e
 
fr
o
m
 
b
u
lly
in
g
. 

C
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 
n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r.
 
B
u
ild
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
’s
 s
o
c
ia
l 
s
k
ill
s
. 

R
o
d
ill
ia
n
 H
ig
h
 S
c
h
o
o
l 

L
o
n
g
th
o
rp
e
 L
a
n
e
, 
L
o
ft
h
o
u
s
e
, 

W
F
3
 3
P
S
 

    
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
3
+
 

M
o
n
d
a
y
 

1
.3
0
 –
 3
.0
0
 

J
o
h
n
 M
e
n
d
e
s
 

K
im
 P
o
o
le
 (
Q
I)
 

A
R
3
1
 

R
O
D
IL
L
IA
N
 S
C
H
O
O
L
 S
U
P
P
O
R
T
 (
Y
e
a
r 
7
) 

T
o
 
b
u
ild
 
y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
’s
 
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
lf
 

e
s
te
e
m
. 
L
e
a
rn
 
in
 
a
 
fu
n
 
a
n
d
 
n
o
n
 
th
re
a
te
n
in
g
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
 
T
o
 
le
a
rn
 
in
 
a
 
s
a
fe
, 
fr
e
e
 
fr
o
m
 

in
ti
m
id
a
ti
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
b
u
lly
in
g
. 
C
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 
n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r.
 
B
u
ild
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
’s
 s
o
c
ia
l 
s
k
ill
s
. 

R
o
d
ill
ia
n
 H
ig
h
 S
c
h
o
o
l 

L
o
n
g
th
o
rp
e
 L
a
n
e
, 
L
o
ft
h
o
u
s
e
, 

W
F
3
 3
P
S
 

    
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Y
e
a
r 
7
 

T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 

1
.3
0
-3
.0
0
 

J
o
h
n
 M
e
n
d
e
s
 (
Q
I)
 

K
im
 P
o
o
le
 

A
R
2
9
 

M
O
V
IN
G
 O
N
 G
R
O
U
P
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
c
a
n
 
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 
in
 
a
 
v
a
ri
e
ty
 
o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 w
h
ic
h
 h
e
lp
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
if
e
 a
n
d
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
s
k
ill
s
. 
A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 c
o
o
k
in
g
, 
a
rt
s
 &
 

c
ra
ft
s
, 
tr
ip
s
 o
u
t 
a
n
d
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
g
a
m
e
s
. 

T
in
g
le
y
 Y
o
u
th
 &
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 

S
m
it
h
y
 L
a
n
e
 

T
in
g
le
y
 

W
F
3
 1
Q
  
  
  
 

  
  
  
  

1
3
 t
o
 1
9
 

T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 

7
.0
0
 -
9
.0
0
 

J
o
h
n
 M
e
n
d
e
s
 

K
im
 W

a
lk
e
r 

A
R
2
8
 

T
IN
G
L
E
Y
 1
6
+
 D
R
O
P
-I
N
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
c
a
n
 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
a
n
d
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
, 
w
h
ile
 f
o
c
u
s
s
in
g
 o
n
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

tr
a
in
in
g
. 
 

T
in
g
le
y
 Y
o
u
th
 &
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 

S
m
it
h
y
 L
a
n
e
 

T
in
g
le
y
 

W
F
3
 1
Q
 

 

1
6
+
 

T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 

3
.0
0
 –
 4
.3
0
 

J
o
h
n
 M
e
n
d
e
s
 

Page 92



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 5
 

Y
O
U
T
H
 S
E
R
V
IC
E
 

Y
O
U
T
H
 G
R
O
U
P
S
 

A
R
D
S
L
E
Y
 &
 R
O
B
IN
 H
O
O
D
 

 A
R
3
0
 

T
IN
G
L
E
Y
 S
E
N
IO
R
S
 D
A
N
C
E
 D
A
Z
L
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
le
a
rn
in
g
 
d
a
n
c
e
 
s
k
ill
s
, 
w
o
rk
in
g
 

w
it
h
 t
u
to
rs
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
ir
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
ti
o
n
 s
k
ill
s
. 

G
ro
u
p
 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

w
o
rk
 

to
w
a
rd
s
 

p
u
b
lic
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
s
 
w
h
ile
 
k
e
e
p
in
g
 
h
e
a
lt
h
y
 
a
n
d
 

h
a
v
in
g
 f
u
n
 w
h
ile
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
. 

T
in
g
le
y
 Y
o
u
th
 &
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 

S
m
it
h
y
 L
a
n
e
 

T
in
g
le
y
 

W
F
3
 1
Q
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
4
+
 

M
o
n
d
a
y
 

6
.3
0
 –
 7
.3
0
 

K
im
 W

a
lk
e
r 

A
R
3
4
 

   

T
IN
G
L
E
Y
 I
N
T
E
R
S
 D
A
N
C
E
 D
A
Z
L
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
le
a
rn
in
g
 
d
a
n
c
e
 
s
k
ill
s
, 
w
o
rk
in
g
 

w
it
h
 t
u
to
rs
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
ir
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
ti
o
n
 s
k
ill
s
. 

G
ro
u
p
 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

w
o
rk
 

to
w
a
rd
s
 

p
u
b
lic
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
s
 
w
h
ile
 
k
e
e
p
in
g
 
h
e
a
lt
h
y
 
a
n
d
 

h
a
v
in
g
 f
u
n
 w
h
ile
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
. 

T
in
g
le
y
 Y
o
u
th
 &
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 

S
m
it
h
y
 L
a
n
e
 

T
in
g
le
y
 

W
F
3
 1
Q
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
2
 t
o
 1
3
 

M
o
n
d
a
y
 

5
.3
0
 -
 6
.3
0
 

K
im
 W

a
lk
e
r 

 A
R
3
6
 

S
T
R
E
E
T
 A
W
A
R
E
N
E
S
S
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 g
ro
u
p
 w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 

T
in
g
le
y
 Y
o
u
th
 &
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 

S
m
it
h
y
 L
a
n
e
 

T
in
g
le
y
 

W
F
3
 1
Q
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
1
+
 

T
h
u
rs
d
a
y
 

4
.3
0
 –
 6
.3
0
 

 
O
N
 H
O
L
D
 

 

J
o
h
n
 M
e
n
d
e
s
 

A
R
4
1
 

O
U
T
 O
F
 S
C
H
O
O
L
 A
C
T
IV
IT
IE
S
 

O
u
t 
o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 
–
 
S
c
h
o
o
l 
h
o
lid
a
y
 

p
ro
je
c
t 
w
h
ic
h
 
o
ff
e
rs
 
a
 
ra
n
g
e
 
o
f 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
, 
tr
ip
s
 o
u
t 
a
n
d
 f
u
n
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 

A
rd
s
le
y
 &
 R
o
b
in
 H
o
o
d
 A
re
a
 

1
0
+
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
H
o
lid
a
y
 O
n
ly
 

T
im
e
s
 V
a
ry
 

G
le
n
 O
’ 
M
a
lle
y
  

  

   

Page 93



Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank



  
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 6
 

Y
O
U
T
H
 S
E
R
V
IC
E
 

Y
O
U
T
H
 G
R
O
U
P
S
 

R
O
T
H
W
E
L
L
 W
A
R
D
 

                                    

         

 
     

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
 
– 
U
pd

a
te

d
 0

6
/1

1
/0

8
 

   

Page 95



  
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 6
 

Y
O
U
T
H
 S
E
R
V
IC
E
 

Y
O
U
T
H
 G
R
O
U
P
S
 

R
O
T
H
W
E
L
L
 W
A
R
D
 

 Q
I 

R
E
F
 

U
N
IT
 O
F
 W
O
R
K
 /
 P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 

T
A
K
IN
G
 P
L
A
C
E
 A
T
: 

F
u
ll
 A
d
d
re
s
s
 

A
G
E
 

G
R
O
U
P
 

S
E
S
S
IO
N
S
 H
E
L
D
  

D
A
Y
S
  
&
 T
IM
E
S
 

P
E
R
S
O
N
 

R
E
S
P
O
N
S
IB
L
E
 

S
E
N
IO
R
 W
O
R
K
E
R
 

R
O
1
 

   

W
IN
D
M
IL
L
 S
E
N
IO
R
 Y
O
U
T
H
 C
L
U
B
  

Y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
m
e
e
t,
 
s
o
c
ia
lis
e
, 
a
n
d
 
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 
in
 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 
w
h
ile
 
h
a
v
in
g
 
fu
n
 
in
 
a
 
s
a
fe
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
 

W
in
d
m
ill
 Y
o
u
th
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

M
a
rs
h
 S
tr
e
e
t 

R
o
th
w
e
ll 

L
S
2
6
 0
A
G
 

 
1
3
 -
 1
9
 

 M
o
n
d
a
y
 

 
7
.0
0
 -
9
.0
0
 

M
e
l 
T
a
y
lo
r 

D
e
b
ra
 S
p
in
k
 

K
a
re
n
 S
tu
rn
e
y
 

R
O
2
 

W
IN
D
M
IL
L
 S
E
N
IO
R
 Y
O
U
T
H
 C
L
U
B
  

Y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
m
e
e
t,
 
s
o
c
ia
lis
e
, 
a
n
d
 
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 
in
 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 
w
h
ile
 
h
a
v
in
g
 
fu
n
 
in
 
a
 
s
a
fe
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
 

W
in
d
m
ill
 Y
o
u
th
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

M
a
rs
h
 S
tr
e
e
t 

R
o
th
w
e
ll 

L
S
2
6
 0
A
G
 

 
1
3
 -
 1
9
 

 T
h
u
rs
d
a
y
 

 
7
.0
0
 -
9
.0
0
 

M
e
l 
T
a
y
lo
r 

D
e
b
ra
 S
p
in
k
 

K
a
re
n
 S
tu
rn
e
y
 

R
O
3
 

W
IN
D
M
IL
L
 I
N
T
E
R
M
E
D
IA
T
E
 Y
O
U
T
H
 C
L
U
B
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
c
a
n
 
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 
in
 
a
 
v
a
ri
e
ty
 
o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 
w
h
ic
h
 
h
e
lp
 
y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
w
it
h
 
lif
e
 
a
n
d
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
s
k
ill
s
. 
A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 c
o
o
k
in
g
, 
a
rt
s
 &
 c
ra
ft
s
, 

tr
ip
s
 o
u
t 
a
n
d
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
g
a
m
e
s
. 
 

W
in
d
m
ill
 Y
o
u
th
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

M
a
rs
h
 S
tr
e
e
t 

R
o
th
w
e
ll 

L
S
2
6
 0
A
G
 

 
1
1
 -
 1
3
 

 F
ri
d
a
y
 

 
6
.0
0
 -
8
.0
0
 

M
e
l 
T
a
y
lo
r 

D
e
b
ra
 S
p
in
k
 

K
a
re
n
 S
tu
rn
e
y
 

R
O
5
 

R
O
S
E
 L
U
N
D
 S
E
N
IO
R
 C
L
U
B
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
m
e
e
t,
 
s
o
c
ia
lis
e
, 
a
n
d
 
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 
in
 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 
w
h
ile
 
h
a
v
in
g
 
fu
n
 
in
 
a
 
s
a
fe
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
 

R
o
s
e
 L
u
n
d
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

6
th
 A
v
e
n
u
e
  

R
o
th
w
e
ll 

L
S
2
6
 0
H
D
 

 
1
3
 –
 1
9
 

 M
o
n
d
a
y
 

 
5
.3
0
 –
 7
.3
0
 

M
e
l 
T
a
y
lo
r 

D
e
b
ra
 S
p
in
k
 

V
e
ro
n
a
 M
c
 S
h
a
n
e
 

K
a
re
n
 S
tu
rn
e
y
 

R
O
6
 

M
O
V
IN
G
 O
N
 

S
e
n
io
r 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
te
rm

e
d
ia
te
 y
o
u
th
 c
lu
b
 a
re
  

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 s
e
n
io
r 
a
g
e
 g
ro
u
p
 

y
o
u
th
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
’s
  

W
in
d
m
ill
 Y
o
u
th
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

M
a
rs
h
 S
tr
e
e
t 

R
o
th
w
e
ll 

L
S
2
6
 0
A
G
 

 
1
4
+
 

 T
h
u
rs
d
a
y
 

 
5
.3
0
 –
 6
.3
0
 

M
e
l 
T
a
y
lo
r 

D
e
b
ra
 S
p
in
k
 

K
a
re
n
 S
tu
rn
e
y
 

R
O
9
 

H
E
A
L
T
H
 B
U
S
 

P
ro
v
id
e
s
 
a
 
s
a
fe
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 
re
la
te
d
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 
fo
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
. 

W
o
rk
 
to
g
e
th
e
r 

in
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 N

H
S
 f
o
r 
th
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
. 
P
ro
v
id
e
 u
p
 t
o
 d
a
te
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 
P
ro
v
id
e
 a
 s
ig
n
p
o
s
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
. 
C
. 
C
a
rd
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 
M
e
d
ic
a
l 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
n
 t
h
e
 b
u
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 i
f 

th
e
y
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
. 
P
re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 t
e
s
ti
n
g
/ 
C
h
la
m
y
d
ia
 t
e
s
ti
n
g
. 

R
o
s
e
 L
u
n
d
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

6
th
 A
v
e
n
u
e
  

R
o
th
w
e
ll 

L
S
2
6
 0
H
D
 

 

 
1
3
 -
 1
9
 

 W
e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
 

 
4
.0
0
 –
 5
.0
0
 

 K
im
 P
o
o
le
 

R
O
1
0
 

W
O
O
D
L
E
S
F
O
R
D
 M
O
B
IL
E
 P
R
O
V
IS
IO
N
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 c
a
n
 m

e
e
t 
u
p
 w

it
h
 y
o
u
th
 w

o
rk
e
rs
 i
n
 

th
e
 
W
o
o
d
le
s
fo
rd
 
P
a
rk
, 
th
e
 
k
e
y
 
b
e
in
g
 
c
o
n
ta
c
ti
n
g
 

h
a
rd
 
to
 
re
a
c
h
 
y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
, 
o
ff
e
ri
n
g
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 
a
n
d
 

W
o
o
d
le
s
fo
rd
 P
a
rk
 

 
1
3
+
 

 T
h
u
rs
d
a
y
 

 
5
.4
5
 –
 7
.3
0
 

 G
le
n
 O
’ 
M
a
lle
y
 

K
im
 P
o
o
le
 

Page 96



  
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 6
 

Y
O
U
T
H
 S
E
R
V
IC
E
 

Y
O
U
T
H
 G
R
O
U
P
S
 

R
O
T
H
W
E
L
L
 W
A
R
D
 

 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
 a
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 l
if
e
s
ty
le
. 

R
O
1
1
 

M
O
B
IL
E
 S
T
R
E
E
T
 S
P
O
R
T
S
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
fr
o
m
 
th
e
 
W
o
o
d
le
s
fo
rd
 
a
re
a
 
c
a
n
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 i
n
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
te
a
m
 g
a
m
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 

s
k
ill
s
, 
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 a
 h
e
a
lt
h
ie
r 
lif
e
s
ty
le
 w
h
ile
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 

fr
ie
n
d
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
v
in
g
 f
u
n
. 

W
o
o
d
le
s
fo
rd
 P
a
rk
 

  
1
1
+
 

  F
ri
d
a
y
 

  
4
.0
0
 –
 6
.0
0
 

  G
le
n
 O
’ 
M
a
lle
y
 

K
im
 P
o
o
le
 

R
O
4
 

W
O
O
D
 L
A
N
E
 E
S
T
A
T
E
 

M
o
b
ile
 y
o
u
th
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 w
h
ic
h
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 
A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 g
a
m
e
 

c
o
n
s
o
le
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
rn
e
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
. 

M
a
n
o
r 
C
re
s
c
e
n
t 
 

R
o
th
w
e
ll 

 
1
3
+
 

 T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 

 
7
.3
0
 –
 9
.0
0
 

 G
le
n
 O
’M
a
lle
y
 

K
im
 P
o
o
le
 

R
O
7
 

W
O
O
D
 L
A
N
E
 E
S
T
A
T
E
 

M
o
b
ile
 y
o
u
th
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 w
h
ic
h
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 
A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 g
a
m
e
 

c
o
n
s
o
le
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
rn
e
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
. 

M
a
n
o
r 
C
re
s
c
e
n
t 
 

R
o
th
w
e
ll 

 
1
1
 -
 1
3
 

 T
h
u
rs
d
a
y
 

 

 
4
.0
0
 –
 6
.0
0
 

 

 G
le
n
 O
’ 
M
a
lle
y
  

N
a
ta
lie
 B
a
tt
y
e
 

R
O
4
1
 

O
U
T
 O
F
 S
C
H
O
O
L
 A
C
T
IV
IT
IE
S
 

O
u
t 
o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 –
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
h
o
lid
a
y
 p
ro
je
c
t 

w
h
ic
h
 o
ff
e
rs
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
, 
tr
ip
s
 

o
u
t 
a
n
d
 f
u
n
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 

R
o
th
w
e
ll 
A
re
a
 

1
1
+
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
H
o
lid
a
y
 T
im
e
 O
n
ly
 

T
im
e
s
 V
a
ry
 

G
le
n
 O
’ 
M
a
lle
y
  

  

  

Page 97



Page 98

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 7

L
iv

e
D

a
te

U
p

d
a

te
d

V
e

n
u

e
A

d
d

re
s

s
E

x
a

c
t

P
o

s
tc

o
d

e

E
le

c
to

ra
l

W
a

rd

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le

W
o

rk
e

r
R

e
fe

re
n

c
e

T
it

le
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

e
v

e
n

t
O

n
g

o
in

g
?

S
ta

rt
 d

a
te

E
n

d
 d

a
te

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y

M
o

n
T

u
e

s
W

e
d

T
h

u
rs

F
ri

S
a

t
S

u
n

S
ta

rt

ti
m

e

F
in

is
h

ti
m

e
H

o
w

 t
o

 g
e

t 
in

v
o

lv
e

d
M

a
te

ri
a

ls
 t

o
 

b
ri

n
g

?
In

c
e

n
ti

v
e

s
A

g
e

ra
n

g
e

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

P
la

c
e

s

A
v

a
il

a
b

le

A
c

c
e

s
s

ib
il

it
y

Y
E

S
1

2
/1

1
/0

8

G
ild

e
rs

o
m

e

Y
o
u
th

C
e
n
tr

e

2
0
, 
S
tr

e
e
t 

L
a
n
e
, 

G
ild

e
rs

o
m

e
,

L
S
2
7
 7

H
T

L
S

2
7

 7
H

T
M

o
rl
e
y

N
o
rt

h
Ju

lie
 B

la
y
lo

ck
M

N
1

G
il

d
e

rs
o

m
e

S
e

n
io

rs

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
Y
o
u
th

 

C
lu

b
 A

ct
iv

it
ie

s
Y

e
s

0
1

/0
4

/0
8

3
1

/0
3

/0
9

W
e

e
k
ly

X
X

1
9

.3
0

2
1

.3
0

A
tt

e
n

d
 S

e
s
s
io

n
 o

r 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

J
u

li
e

 

B
la

y
lo

c
k

 0
7

8
9

1
-

2
7

9
9

9
8

n
o

N
/A

1
3

-1
9

O
p
e
n

(c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 2

5
 

B
o
y
s 

a
n
d
 1

8
 

G
ir
ls

 a
re

 

a
tt

e
n
d
in

g
 t

h
is

 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
)

D
is

a
b
le

d
 A

cc
e
ss

Y
E

S
1

2
/1

1
/0

8

G
ild

e
rs

o
m

e

Y
o
u
th

C
e
n
tr

e

2
0
, 
S
tr

e
e
t 

L
a
n
e
, 

G
ild

e
rs

o
m

e
,

L
S
2
7
 7

H
T

L
S

2
7

 7
H

T
M

o
rl
e
y

N
o
rt

h
Ju

lie
 B

la
y
lo

ck
M

N
4

C
-C

a
rd

G
il

d
e

rs
o

m
e

C
-C

a
rd

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 &

 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

Y
e

s
0

1
/0

4
/0

8
3

1
/0

3
/0

9
W

e
e

k
ly

X
1

9
.3

0
2

1
.3

0

A
tt

e
n

d
 S

e
s
s
io

n
 o

r 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

J
u

li
e

 

B
la

y
lo

c
k

 0
7

8
9

1
-

2
7

9
9

9
8

n
o

N
/A

1
3
-1

9
O

p
e
n

D
is

a
b
le

d
 A

cc
e
ss

Y
E

S
1

2
/1

1
/0

8

O
u
t 

o
f 

G
ild

e
rs

o
m

e

Y
o
u
th

C
e
n
tr

e

2
0
, 
S
tr

e
e
t 

L
a
n
e
, 

G
ild

e
rs

o
m

e
,

L
S
2
7
 7

H
T

L
S

2
7

 7
H

T
M

o
rl
e
y

N
o
rt

h
Ju

lie
 B

la
y
lo

ck
M

N
5

G
il

d
e

rs
o

m
e

D
e

ta
c
h

e
d

D
e
ta

ch
e
d

Y
o
u
th

 W
o
rk

 

(e
it

h
e

r 
M

N
5

 

o
r 

M
N

6
 r

u
n

s
)

Y
e

s
0

1
/0

4
/0

8
3

1
/0

3
/0

9
W

e
e

k
ly

X
1

9
.0

0
2

1
.0

0

D
e

ta
c
h

e
d

E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
r 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

J
u

li
e

 

B
la

y
lo

c
k

 0
7

8
9

1
-

2
7

9
9

9
8

n
o

N
/A

1
3
-1

9
O

p
e
n

D
is

a
b
le

d
 A

cc
e
ss

Y
E

S
1

2
/1

1
/0

8

O
u
t 

o
f 

G
ild

e
rs

o
m

e

Y
o
u
th

C
e
n
tr

e

2
0
, 
S
tr

e
e
t 

L
a
n
e
, 

G
ild

e
rs

o
m

e
,

L
S
2
7
 7

H
T

L
S

2
7

 7
H

T
M

o
rl
e
y

N
o
rt

h
Ju

lie
 B

la
y
lo

ck
M

N
6

D
ri

g
h

li
n

g
to

n

D
e

ta
c
h

e
d

D
e
ta

ch
e
d

Y
o
u
th

 W
o
rk

 

(e
it

h
e

r 
M

N
5

 

o
r 

M
N

6
 r

u
n

s
)

Y
e

s
0

1
/0

4
/0

8
0

1
/0

4
/0

8
W

e
e

k
ly

X
1

9
.0

0
2

1
.0

0

D
e

ta
c
h

e
d

E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
r 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

J
u

li
e

 

B
la

y
lo

c
k

 0
7

8
9

1
-

2
7

9
9

9
8

n
o

N
/A

1
3
-1

9
O

p
e
n

D
is

a
b
le

d
 A

cc
e
ss

Y
E

S
1

2
/1

1
/0

8

L
e
w

is
h
a
m

P
a
rk

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

C
e
n
tr

e

C
lo

u
g
h
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 

L
e
e
d
s,

 L
S
2
7
 

8
D

H
L

S
2

7
 8

D
H

M
o
rl
e
y

S
o
u
th

Ju
lie

 B
la

y
lo

ck
M

S
1

L
e

w
is

h
a

m

P
a

rk

In
te

rm
e

d
ia

t

e
s

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
Y
o
u
th

 

C
lu

b
 A

ct
iv

it
ie

s
Y

e
s

0
1

/0
4

/0
8

3
1

/0
3

/0
9

W
e

e
k
ly

X
1

7
.3

0
1

9
.0

0

A
tt

e
n

d
 S

e
s
s
io

n
 o

r 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

J
u

li
e

 

B
la

y
lo

c
k

 0
7

8
9

1
-

2
7

9
9

9
8

n
o

N
/A

9
-1

3
O

p
e
n

D
is

a
b
le

d
 A

cc
e
ss

Y
E

S
1

2
/1

1
/0

8

L
e
w

is
h
a
m

P
a
rk

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

C
e
n
tr

e

C
lo

u
g
h
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 

L
e
e
d
s,

 L
S
2
7
 

8
D

H
L

S
2

7
 8

D
H

M
o
rl
e
y

S
o
u
th

Ju
lie

 B
la

y
lo

ck
M

S
2

L
e

w
is

h
a

m

P
a

rk
 S

e
n

io
rs

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
Y
o
u
th

 

C
lu

b
 A

ct
iv

it
ie

s
Y

e
s

0
1

/0
4

/0
8

3
1

/0
3

/0
9

W
e

e
k
ly

X
1

9
.3

0
2

1
.0

0

A
tt

e
n

d
 S

e
s
s
io

n
 o

r 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

J
u

li
e

 

B
la

y
lo

c
k

 0
7

8
9

1
-

2
7

9
9

9
8

n
o

N
/A

1
3
-1

9
O

p
e
n

D
is

a
b
le

d
 A

cc
e
ss

Y
E

S
1

2
/1

1
/0

8

L
e
w

is
h
a
m

P
a
rk

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

C
e
n
tr

e

C
lo

u
g
h
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 

L
e
e
d
s,

 L
S
2
7
 

8
D

H
L

S
2

7
 8

D
H

M
o
rl
e
y

S
o
u
th

Ju
lie

 B
la

y
lo

ck
M

S
3

L
e

w
is

h
a

m

P
a

rk
 C

-

C
A

R
D

C
-C

a
rd

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 &

 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

Y
e

s
0

1
/0

4
/0

8
3

1
/0

3
/0

9
W

e
e

k
ly

X
X

1
7

.0
0

2
1

.0
0

A
tt

e
n

d
 S

e
s
s
io

n
 o

r 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

J
u

li
e

 

B
la

y
lo

c
k

 0
7

8
9

1
-

2
7

9
9

9
8

n
o

N
/A

1
3
-1

9
O

p
e
n

D
is

a
b
le

d
 A

cc
e
ss

Y
E

S
1

2
/1

1
/0

8

C
h
u
rw

e
ll

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

C
e
n
tr

e

V
ic

to
ri
a
 R

o
a
d
, 

C
h
u
rw

e
ll,

 L
e
e
d
s 

L
S
2
7

L
S

2
7

M
o
rl
e
y

S
o
u
th

Ju
lie

 B
la

y
lo

ck
M

S
4

C
h

u
rw

e
ll

Y
o

u
th

 C
lu

b

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
Y
o
u
th

 

C
lu

b
 A

ct
iv

it
ie

s
Y

e
s

0
1

/0
4

/0
8

3
1

/0
3

/0
9

W
e

e
k
ly

X
X

1
9

.0
0

2
1

:0
0

A
tt

e
n

d
 S

e
s
s
io

n
 o

r 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

J
u

li
e

 

B
la

y
lo

c
k

 0
7

8
9

1
-

2
7

9
9

9
8

n
o

N
/A

1
3
-1

9
O

p
e
n

D
is

a
b
le

d
 A

cc
e
ss

Y
E

S
1

2
/1

1
/0

8

M
o
n
d
a
y
s:

M
o
rr

is
so

n
's

C
a
r 

P
a
rk

 i
n
 

M
o
rl
e
y

M
o
n
d
a
y
s:

M
o
rr

is
so

n
's

S
u
p
e
rm

a
rk

e
t

C
a
r 

P
a
rk

, 

M
o
rl
e
y
, 
L
e
e
d
s,

 

W
e
st

 Y
o
rk

sh
ir
e
 

a
n
d
 T

h
u
rs

d
a
y
s:

 

F
a
ir
fa

x
 A

v
e
n
u
e
, 

D
ri
g
h
lin

g
to

n
,

M
o
rl
e
y
, 
W

e
st

 

Y
o
rk

sh
ir
e

M
o
rl
e
y

S
o
u
th

Ju
lie

 B
la

y
lo

ck
M

S
5

H
e

a
lt

h
 B

u
s
 

M
o

rl
e

y

C
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
l

H
e
a
lt
h

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 &

 

A
d
v
ic

e

Y
e

s
0

1
/0

4
/0

8
3

1
/0

3
/0

9
W

e
e

k
ly

X
X

1
5

.0
0

1
7

.0
0

A
tt

e
n

d
 H

e
a

lt
h

 B
u

s
 

[o
r 

c
a

ll
 N

ic
k

 P
ri

c
a

 

0
1

1
3

-2
7

7
5

7
4

7
 f

o
r 

d
e

ta
il

s
]

n
o

N
/A

1
3
-1

9
O

p
e
n

D
is

a
b
le

d
 A

cc
e
ss

Page 99



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 7

Y
E

S
1

2
/1

1
/0

8

O
u
t 

o
f:

 

L
e
w

is
h
a
m

P
a
rk

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

C
e
n
tr

e

C
lo

u
g
h
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 

L
e
e
d
s,

 L
S
2
7
 

8
D

H

L
S

2
7

 8
D

H
M

o
rl
e
y

S
o
u
th

Ju
lie

 B
la

y
lo

ck
M

S
6

L
e

w
is

h
a

m

P
a

rk

D
e

ta
c
h

e
d

S
e

n
io

rs

D
e
ta

ch
e
d

Y
o
u
th

 W
o
rk

Y
e

s
0

1
/0

4
/0

8
3

1
/0

3
/0

9
W

e
e

k
ly

X
1

8
.3

0
2

1
.0

0

D
e

ta
c
h

e
d

E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
r 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

J
u

li
e

 

B
la

y
lo

c
k

 0
7

8
9

1
-

2
7

9
9

9
8

n
o

N
/A

1
3
-1

9
O

p
e
n

D
is

a
b
le

d
 A

cc
e
ss

Y
E

S
1

2
/1

1
/0

8

C
h
u
rw

e
ll

A
re

a
; 

o
u
t 

o
f 

C
h
u
rw

e
ll

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

C
e
n
tr

e

V
ic

to
ri
a
 R

o
a
d
, 

C
h
u
rw

e
ll,

 L
e
e
d
s 

L
S
2
7

L
S

2
7

M
o
rl
e
y

S
o
u
th

Ju
lie

 B
la

y
lo

ck
M

S
7

C
h

u
rw

e
ll

D
e

ta
c
h

e
d

D
e
ta

ch
e
d

Y
o
u
th

 W
o
rk

Y
e

s
2

1
/1

0
/0

8
3

1
/0

3
/0

9
W

e
e

k
ly

X
1

8
:3

0
2

0
:3

0

D
e

ta
c
h

e
d

E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
r 

c
a

ll
 

0
1

1
3

-2
7

7
5

7
4

7

n
o

N
/A

1
3
-1

9
O

p
e
n

D
e
ta

ch
e
d

Page 100



D
ri

g
h

li
n

g
to

n
 M

e
e
ti

n
g

 H
a
ll
, 

D
ri

g
h

li
n

g
to

n
 L

ib
ra

ry
, 

M
o

o
rl

a
n

d
 R

o
a
d

, 
D

ig
h

li
n

g
to

n
, 

B
D

1
1
 1

J
Z

 

Agenda Annex

Page 101



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Minutes - 20th October 2008
	8 Leeds Colleges Merger - Consultation
	9 The Children and Young People's Plan (2009-2014) and the development of local priorities for action
	10 Revised Children™s Services arrangements for more effective locality working with families
	11 Community Engagement Plan
	12 Operation Champion
	13 Outer South Area Committee Well-being Budget Report
	Outer South Area Committee Well-being Budget Report - Appendix 1
	Outer South Area Committee Well-being Budget Report - Appendix 2

	14 Area Manager's Report
	Area Manager's Report - Appendix 1
	Area Manager's Report - Appendix 2
	Area Manager's Report - Appendix 3
	Area Manager's Report - Appendix 4
	Area Manager's Report - Appendix 5
	Area Manager's Report - Appendix 6
	Area Manager's Report - Appendix 7

	Map of Today's Venue

